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August 21,2008 

BY HAND DELIVERY 
Ann Cole , Director 
The Commission Clerk and Administrative Services 
Room 110, Easley Building 
Florida Public Service Commission 
2540 Shumard Oak Blvd. 
Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0850 

Dear Ms. Cole: 

Enclosed for filing are the original and four (4) copies of an Application for Authority to 
Issue and Sell Securities on behalf of Florida Public Utilities Company. This application is 
submitted pursuant to section 366.04, Florida Statutes and Chapter 25-8, Florida Administrative 
Code. A copy of the application is being provided to the Ofice of Public Counsel. 

Please acknowledge receipt of this letter by stamping the extra copy of this letter "filed" and 
returning the same to me. 
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E a  - Thank you for your assistance with this filing. 
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Enclosures 
cc: Charlie Beck, Esq. 

- 

Mr. George Bachman 

Sincerely yours, 

Norman H. Horton, Jr. c . 2  

_ _ ~  
Regional Center Office Park 2618 Centennial Place / Tallahassee, Florida 32308 

Mailing Address: P.O. Box 15579 / Tallahassee. Florida 32317 
Main  Telephone: (850) 222-0720 / Fax: (850) 224-4359 



Docket No. 

Florida Public Service Commission 
Tallahassee, Florida 

Application of 

Florida Public Utilities Company 

For Authority to Issue and Sell Securities 

Pursuant to Section 366.04, Florida Statutes, 

And Chapter 25-8, Florida Administrative Code 

Address communications in connection with this Application to: 

George M. Bachman, CFO and Treasurer 
Florida Public Utilities Company 

PO Box 3395 
West Palm Beach, Florida 33402-3395 

(561) 838-1731 

Cheryl M. Martin, Controller 
Florida Public Utilities Company 

PO Box 3395 
West Palm Beach, Florida 33402-3395 

(561) 838-1725 

Norman H. Horton, Jr. 
Messer, Caparello & Self 

2618 Centennial Place 
PO Box 15579 

Tallahassee, FL 32317 
(850) 222-0720 

The Date of this Application is August 14,2008 
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APPLICATION OF 
FLORIDA PUBLIC UTILITIES COMPANY (FPUC) 

FOR AUTHORITY TO ISSUE AND SELL SECURITIES 
PURSUANT TO SECTION 366.04, FLORIDA STATUTES, 

AND CHAPTER 25-8, FLORIDA ADMINISTRATIVE CODE 

A. Amlicabilitv 

This Application is filed in accordance with Section 366.04, 

Florida Statutes, and Chapter 25-8, Florida Administrative Code. 

B. Contents of Amlication 

1 .  Name and Principal Business Office Address 

Business Office: 
Florida Public Utilities Company 
401 South Dixie Highway 
West Palm Beach, Florida 33401-5886 

Mailing Address: 
Florida Public Utilities Company 
PO Box 3395 
West Palm Beach, Florida 33402-3395 

2. State and Date Incorporated 

State of Florida 

The company was incorporated by letters patent issued by the State 

of Florida on March 6, 1924 under the name of Palm Beach Gas 

Company. By subsequent amendment the name was changed to Florida 

Public Utilities Company on October 14, 1927. On April 25, 1929 the 

Company was incorporated under the 1925 Florida Corporation Law and 

is continuing its corporate existence pursuant to the 1925 Corporation Law 

and its Certificate of Reincorporation, as amended. 
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3. Persons Authorized to Receive Notices and Communications 

George M. Bachman, CFO and Treasurer 
Florida Public Utilities Company 
PO Box 3395 
West Palm Beach, Florida 33402-3395 
(561) 838-1731 

Cheryl M. Martin, Controller 
Florida Public Utilities Company 
PO Box 3395 
West Palm Beach, Florida 33402-3395 
(561) 838-1725 

Norman H. Horton, Jr. 
Messer, Caparello & Self 
261 8 Centennial Place 
PO Box 15579 
Tallahassee, FL 323 17 
(850) 222-0720 

4. Capital Stock and Funded Debt 

(a)-(g) Information responsive to description and amounts authorized, 

outstanding, reacquired, pledged, owned by affiliated corporations and 

held in any fund are contained in Exhibit C “Statement of Capital Stock 

and Debt - June 30,2008”. 

5 .  Proposed Transactions 

(a)(b)(c) Description of proposed transactions, kind and nature of 

securities and the maximum principal amounts and present estimate of 

interest rates and dividend rates. 

Florida Public Utilities Company (FPUC) seeks permission to 

issue and sell and/or exchange any combination of the long-term debt, 

short-term notes and equity securities and/or to assume liabilities 01 
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obligations as guarantor, endorser or surety in an incremental amount not 

to exceed $45,000,000, excluding retained earnings during the calendar 

year 2009. The regulated share of this financing will not exceed 90%, or 

$40,500,000. 

The long-term debt securities may include first mortgage bonds, 

private activity bonds, medium-term notes, debentures convertible or 

exchangeable debentures, notes, convertible or exchangeable notes, or 

other straight debt or hybrid debt securities, whether secured or unsecured, 

with maturities ranging from one to one hundred years. The expected 

interest rate on long-term debt is 7.25 %. 

Authority to issue up to $25,000,000 of short-term notes will give 

the Company financial flexibility with respect to future permanent 

financing. At the June 30,2008 the short-term notes interest rate was 

3.3625 %. 

The equity securities would be common stock issued at Fair 

Market Value less any issuance costs. The expected dividend rate would 

be $ .47 per share annually. The expected issuance price would be $ 11 .OO 

per share (net) with a maximum number of shares to be issued of 

2,000,000 for a net outstanding number of shares not to exceed 9,000,000. 

6. Purposes of Issues 

(a)(b)(c) The net proceeds to be received from the issuance and sale and/or 

exchange of the debt and equity securities will be added to FPUC’s 

general funds and will be used to provide additional facilities through 

4 



construction or acquisitions expenditures, and to repay short-term notes. 

Excess proceeds, if any, will be temporarily invested in short-term 

instruments pending their application to the foregoing purposes. 

Under future market conditions, the interest rate on new issue 

long-term debt may be such that it becomes economically attractive to 

reacquire a portion or all of certain of its debt securities or equity 

securities. 

The short-term securities are to provide funds temporarily to 

finance portions of FPUC’s general construction program, operating 

expenses and capital commitments and for other corporate purposes. 

Significant parts of FPUC cash requirements may temporarily be financed 

through the sale of short-term securities from time to time. Also, during 

the 2009 period, FPUC may need short-term financing capabilities for 

seasonal fuel requirements, contingency financing such as fuel under 

recoveries or storm restorations costs, acquisition costs, environmental 

clean-up or general operating expenditures. 

7. Facts Supporting Legality. Necessity or Auuropriateness 

The Company’s Certificate of Incorporation, as amended, and the 

Laws of the State of Florida under which the Company is organized permit 

the Company to issue its securities for proper corporate purposes, 

including the refunding of bank loans and for construction expenditures. 

The issuance of the securities for which approval is now being sought will 

not impair the ability of the Company to perform its public utilities 
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services in an efficient manner and will enable the Company to meet the 

growing needs o f  the communities that it services and is reasonably 

necessary and appropriate for such purposes. 

8. Name and Address of Counsel Passing upon the Legality of the Proposed 
Issues 
Norman H. Horton, Jr. 
Messer, Caparello & Self 
261 8 Centennial Place 
PO Box 15579 
Tallahassee, FL 32317 
(850) 222-0720 

9. Other State or Federal Redatorv Body 

If required a Registration Statement with respect to each sale of 

securities hereunder subject to the Securities Act of 1933, as amended will 

be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission at the following 

address: 

Securities and Exchange Commission 
Judiciary Plaza, 450 Fifth Street 
NW. Washington, D.C. 20549 

In addition, issuance of the $ 14,000,000 Palm Beach County 

industrial bond is an exempt transaction under the provisions of the 

Securities Act of 1933. 

10. Control or Ownership 

There is no measure of control or ownership exercised by or over 

applicant as to any public utility. No inter-corporate relationship exists 
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with the exception of the wholly owned subsidiary, Flo-Gas Corporation. 

Applicant is not a member of any holding company system. 

C. Exhibits 

Exhibit Number: 

Exhibit A - Annual Report on Form 10-K for the calendar year ended 
December 3 1,2007 and Form 10-Q for the six months ended June 30, 
2008. * 

Exhibit B - Sources and Uses of Funds Forecast and Construction 
Budget for Gross Property Additions for calendar year 2009. 

Exhibit C - Statement of Capital Stock and Debt as of June 30,2008. 

*As permitted by Rule 25-8.003 (l)(a)(6), Florida Administrative Code, 
FPUC is satisfylng the requirements for Schedules A (1) through A (5) by 
submitting its Annual Report on Form 10-K for the calendar year ended 
December 3 1,2007 and Form 10-Q for the six months ended June 30, 
2008 in conjunction with this Application. 

SIGNATURE 

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 366.04, Florida Statutes and Chapter 25-8, Florida 
Administrative Code, Florida Public Utilities Company has caused its duly authorized 
officer to execute this Application on this 14th day of August, 2008. 

Florida Public Utilities Company 

By: 

401 south Dixie Highway 
West Palm Beach, Florida 33401 
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10-Q 1 f2ndquarterlOq.htm 10-Q 
UNITED STATES 

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION 
Washington, D.C. 20549 

FORM l0-Q 

(Mark One) 

QUARTERLY REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15 (d) OF THE SECURITIES 
EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934 

For the quarterly period ended June 30,2008 

[ ] TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES 
EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934 

For the transition period &om to 

Commission File Number: 001-10608 

FLORIDA PUBLIC UTILITIES COMPANY 
(Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter) 

Florida 59-0539080 
(State or other jurisdiction of incorporation 

or organization) 
(I.R.S. Employer Identification No.) 

401 South Dixie Highway, 
West Palm Beach, F1. 33401 

(Address of principal executive offices) 

(561) 832-0872 
(Registrant’s telephone number, including area code) 

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by 
Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the precedmg 12 months (or for 
such shorter period that the registrant was required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject 
to such filing requirements for the past 90 days. Yes [ X ] 

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a 
non-accelerated filer, or a smaller reporting company. See the definitions of “large accelerated 
filer,” “accelerated filer” and “smaller reporting company” in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act. 
(Check one): 

No [ ] 

Large accelerated filer [ ] 
Non-accelerated filer 
(Do not check if a smaller reporting company) 

Accelerated filer [ ] 
Smaller reporting company [ ] 

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the 
Exchange Act). Yes [ I No [XI 

On August 8, 2008, there were 6,195,384 shares of $1.50 par value common stock outstanding. 

http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgaridatai37643/000003764308000008/f2ndquarter1Oq.htm 8/18/2008 
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I N D M  

Part I. Financial Information 

Item 1. Financial Statements 

Condensed Consolidated Statements of Income 
Condensed Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income 
Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets 
Condensed Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows 
Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements 

Manazement’s Discussion and Analvsis of Financial Condition 
and Results of ODerations 

Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk 

Item 2. 

Item 3. 

Item 4T. Controls and Procedures 

Part 11. Other  Information 

Item 1A. Risk Factors 

Item 4. 

Item 6. Exhibits 

Submission of Matters to a Vote of Securitv Holders 

Sienatures 

h t t p : / / w w w . s e c . g o v / ~ c h i v e s / e d g a r / d a t a / 3 l O q . h t m  8/18/2008 
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PART I. FINANCIAL INFORMATION 

Item 1. Financial Statements 

FLORIDA PUBLIC UTILITIES COMPANY 
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME (Unaudited) 

(Dollars in thousands, except share data) 

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended 
June 30, June 30, 

2008 2007 2008 2OOi 
.evenues 
Natural  gas 
Electric 
Propane gas 

ost of Fuel and Other Pass  Through 
osts 
ross Profit 

Total revenues 

lperating Expenses 
Operation and maintenance 
Depreciation and amortization 
Taxes other than  income taxes 

Total operating expenses 
'perating Income 

Ither Income and @eductions) 
Merchandise and service revenue 
Merchandise and service expenses 
Other income 
Interest expense 

arnings Before Income Taxes 
icome tax (expense) benefit 
e t  Income 
referred Stock Dividends 

arnings For Common Stock 

% a s k  and Diluted): 
Earnings Per Common Share 

Total other deductions - net 

$18,973 
18,214 
4,189 

41,376 

29,351 
12,025 

7,913 
2,206 

764 
10,883 

1,142 

$0.01 

Dividends Declared Per  Common Share $0.1175 

Average Shares Outstanding 6,078,446 
w e  fmnancd statements should be read with the accompanying Notes to Condens 

$15,502 $41,110 $36,075 
13,135 35,737 26,493 
3,831 9,559 8,512 

32,468 86,406 71,080 

20,699 60,263 45,468 
11,769 26,143 25,612 

7,443 14,894 14,616 
2,031 4,459 4,103 

699 1,637 1,559 
10,173 20,990 20,278 

1,596 5,153 5,334 

752 1,256 1,667 
(670) (1,215) (1,480: 
145 300 296 

(1,216) (2,418) (2,383 
(989) (2,077) (1,900 
607 3,076 3,434 

(197) (1,045) (1,226: 
410 2,031 2,208 

7 14 14 
$403 $2,017 $2,194 

$0.07 $0.33 $0.36 

$0.1125 $0.2300 $0.2200 

6,030,928 6,075,005 6,027,833 
Sonsohdated Fmancial Statements 

h~p://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgaridata/37643/000003764308000008/f2ndqu~er 1 Oq.htm 8/18/2008 
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CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 
(Unaudited) 

(Dollars in thousands) 
Three months ended Six months ended 

June 30, June 30, 
2008 2007 2008 2007 

Net income $81 $410 $2,031 $2,208 
Other comprehensive income 

Pension and post retirement costs 36 41 73 80 
Income tax  expense on other 
comprehensive income (14) (15) (28) (30 

Comprehensive income $103 $436 $2,076 $2,258 
These financial statements should be read with the acmmpaoylng Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements 

FLORIDA PUBLIC UTILITIES COMPANY 
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS (Unaudited) 

(Dollars in thousands) 

WETS 
tility Plant 
Utility Plant 
Less Accumulated depreciation 

Net utility plant 

=rent Assets 
Cash 
Accounts receivable 
Allowance for uncollectible accounts 
Unbilled receivables 
Notes receivable 
Inventories (at average unit  cost) 
Prepaid expenses 
Under-recovery of fuel 
Deferred income taxes-current 
Income tax prepayment 
Other regulatory assets-environmental 
Deferred charges-current 

June 30, 
2008 

$206,693 
66,053 

140,640 

2,492 
14,851 

1,923 
292 

4,476 
475 

9 
42 1 
505 
456 
356 

(363) 

Investments held for environmental costs-current 3,509 
Total current assets 29,402 

:her Assets 
Other regulatory assets-environmental 
Long-term receivables and other investments 
Deferred charges 
Goodwill 

6,903 
5,466 
6,079 
2,405 

December 31, 
2007 

$202,384 
64,012 

138,372 

3,478 
12,269 

(326 
1,879 

298 
4,251 

86 1 

949 

456 
399 

3,444 
27,958 

7,197 
5,622 
6,360 
2,405 

http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/37643/000003764308000008/f2ndquarter1Oq.htm 8/18/2008 
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Intangible assets (net) 
Total other assets 

Total Assets 

4,253 
25,106 

$195,148 

These tinancia1 statements should be read with the accompanying Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements. I 

FLORIDA PUBLIC UTILITIES COMP- 
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS (Unaudited) 

(Dollars in  thousands) 

June 30, December 31, 
2008 2007 

lAPITALIZATION AND LIABILITIES 
apitalization 
Common shareholders' equity $49,926 $48,946 
Preferred stock 600 60( 
Long-term debt 47,995 49,36: 

Total capitalization 98,521 98,90$ 

urrent  Liabilities 
Line of credit 
Accounts payable 
Current portion of long-term debt 
Insurance accrued 
Interest accrued 
Other accruals and payables 
Environmental Liability - current 
Taxes accrued 
Over-earnings liability 
Over-recovery of fuel costs and other 
Customer deposits 

Total current liabilities 

12,529 
11,941 

1,409 
230 
629 

3,077 
588 

2,693 
27 

1,839 
10,857 
45,819 

11,122 
9,901 
1,402 

21t 
1,16: 
2,72$ 
1,37$ 
2,16€ 

26 
3,205 

10,545 
43,861 

Ither Liabilities 
Deferred income taxes 15,766 16,896 
Environmental liability 12,891 12,25C 
Regulatory liability-storm reserve 2,448 2,385 
Regulatory liabilities-other 11,600 10,711 
Other liabilities 8,103 7,314 

Total other liabilities 50,808 49,566 

Total Capitalization and Liabilities $195,148 $192,341 

lese financial statements should be read with the accompanying Notee to Condensed Candidaced Financial Statements. 

I I 

http://www.sec.gov/Achives/edgar/dat~37643/000003764308000008/f2ndquarter1Oq.htm 8/18/2008 
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FLORIDA PUBLIC UTILITIES COMPANY 
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (Unaudited  

(Dollars in thousands) 

Six Months  E n d e d  
June 80, 

2007 1 2008 

Net cash provided by operating activities $4,043 $10,980 

Investing Activities 
Construction expenditures 
Proceeds received on notes receivable 
Other 

Net cash used in investing activities 

(5,749) (6,537) 
283 371 

(2,361) 
(1,307) 

Financing Activities 
Net increase (decrease) in short-term borrowings 
Dividends paid 
Other increases 

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities 

Net (decrease) increase in cash (986) 

Cash a t  beginning of period 3,478 

Cash a t  end of period $2,492 $1,315 
These hnaneml statements should be read with the accompanymg Notes to Condensed Consohdated F~nanaal Statements 

http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/datai37643/000003764308000008/fZndquarter1Oq.htm 8/18/2008 
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FLORIDA PUBLIC UTILITIES COMPANY 
NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

(Unaudited) 
June 30,2008 

1. Basis of Presentation 
The accompanying unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements have been 
prepared in accordance with the generally accepted accounting principles in the United 
States (GAAP) for interim financial information and with the instructions for Form IO-Q and 
Article 10 of Regulation S-X. Accordingly, they do not include all of the information and 
footnotes required by GAAP for complete financial statements. In the opinion of 
management, all adjustments necessary for fair presentation have been included. The 
operating results for the period are not necessarily indicative of the results that may be 
expected for the full year. For further information, refer to  the audited consolidated financial 
statements and footnotes included in the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the 
year ended December 31, 2007. 

2. Use of Estimates 
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires the Company to 
make certain estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and 
liabilities, disclosure of any contingent assets and liabilities a t  the date of the financial 
statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. 
Significant estimates include allowances, accruals for pensions, environmental liabilities, 
liability reserves, regulatory deferred tax liabilities, unbilled revenue and over-earnings 
liability. Actual results may differ &om these estimates. 

3. Regulation 
The financial statements are prepared in accordance with the provisions of Statement of 
Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 71 - "Accounting for the Effects of Certain Types 
of Regulation". SFAS No. 71 recognizes that accounting for rate-regulated enterprises should 
reflect the relationship of costs and revenues introduced by rate regulation. A regulated 
utility may defer recognition of a cost (a regulatory asset) or show recognition of an  obligation 
(a regulatory liability) if it  is probable that, through the ratemaking process, there will be a 
corresponding increase or decrease in revenues. The Company has recognized certain 
regulatory assets and liabilities in the condensed consolidated balance sheets. 

As a result, Florida Public Service Commission (FPSC) regulation has a significant effect on 
the Company's results of operations. The FPSC approves rates that are intended to permit a 
specified rate of return on investment. Rate tariffs allow the flexibility of automatically 
passing through the cost of natural gas and electricity to customers. Increases in the 
operating expenses of the regulated segments may require a request for increases in the rates 
charged to customers. 

In November 2007, the Company's electric segment received interim rate relief for partial 
recovery of increased expenditures. These interim rates would produce additional annual 
revenues of approximately $800,000 went into effect for meter readings on and after 
November 22, 2007. 

In April 2008, the FPSC approved the final annual electric rate increase of approximately 
$3,900,000, with the new rates beginning May 22, 2008. These revenues should provide an 
increase to the Company's overall profitabihty for the electric segment and recovery of 
increased expenditures including depreciation, storm readiness mandates and initiatives and 
other expenses beginning in 2008. 

http://www.sec.gov/Archives/~g~/data/37643/000003764308000008/f2ndquarter1Oq.htm 8/18/2008 
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4. Pledged Assets 
Substantially all of the Company’s utility plant and the shares of its wholly owned 
subsidiary, Flo-Gas Corporation, collateralize the Company’s First Mortgage Bonds (long 
term debt). Cash, accounts receivable and inventory are collateral for the line of credit. 

5. Restriction on Dividends 
The Company’s Fifteenth Supplemental Indenture of Mortgage and Deed of Trust restricts 
the amount that is available for cash dividends. At June 30,2008, approximately $10.2 
million of retained earnings were free of such restriction and available for the payment of 
dividends. The Company’s line of credit agreement contains covenants that, if violated, could 
restrict or prevent the payment of dividends. The Company is not in violation of these 
covenants. 

6. Allowance for Uncollectible Accounts 
The Company records an allowance for uncollectible accounts based on historical information 
and current economic conditions. The following is a summary of bad debt activity for the 
second quarter as of June 30: 

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts 
(Dollars in thousands) 

2008 2007 
Bad Debt Write-offs $200 5135 
Bad Debt Accrual Provision $164 $115 

7. Storm Reserves 
As of June 30, 2008, the Company had a storm reserve of approximately $1.8 million for the 
electric segment and approximately $613,000 for the natural gas segment. The Company does 
not have a storm reserve for the propane gas segment. For additional information on the 
Company’s storm reserve, see Note 10, Over-earnings - Natural Gas Segment. 

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets 
The Company does not amortize goodwill or intangibles with indefinite lives. The Company 
periodically tests the applicable reporting segments, natural gas and propane gas, for 
impairment. In the event goodwill or intangible assets related to a segment are determined to  
be impaired, the Company would write down such assets to fair value. The impairment tests 
performed effective January 1, 2008 showed no impairment for either reporting segment. 

Goodwill associated with the Company’s acquisitions consists of $500,000 in the natural gas 
segment and $1.9 million in the propane gas segment. The summary of intangible assets a t  
June 30,2008 and December 31, 2007, is as follows: 

8. 

Intangible Assets 
(Dollars in thousands) 

June 30. December 31, 
2008 2007 

Customer distribution rights (Indefinite life) $1,900 $1,900 
Customer relationships (Indefinite life) 900 900 
Software (Five to nine year life) 3,532 3,499 
Accumulated amortization (2,079) (1,869) 

Total intangible assets, net of amortization $ 4,253 $4 ,430  

The amortization expense of intangible assets was approximately $106,000 and $88,000 for 
the three months ended June 30, 2008 and 2007, respectively, and $210,000 and $174,000 for 

h t t p : / / w w w . s e c . g o v / A r c h i v e s / e d g a r / d a t a / 3 l O q . h t m  8/18/2008 
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the six months ended June 30,2008 and 2007, respectively. 

9. Common Shareholders’ Equity 
Items impacting common shareholders’ equity other than comprehensive income and 
dividends are the dividend reinvestment program, employee stock purchase program, stock 
compensation plans and treasury stock. The net impact of these additional items increased 
common shareholders’ equity approximately $315,000 for the six months ended June 30, 
2008. Accumulated other comprehensive income, comprised of the deferred cost of employee 
benefit plans, totaled approximately $133,000 and $88,000 as of June 30, 2008 and December 
31, 2007, respectively. The change to other comprehensive income for the quarter ending 
June 30, 2008 was a net gain of approximately $22,000. 

Overearnings - Natural Gas Segment 
The FPSC approves rates that are intended to  permit a specified rate of return on investment 
and limits the maximum amount of earnings of regulated operations. The Company has 
agreed with the FPSC staff to limit the earned return on equity for regulated natural gas and 
electric operations. 

Management does not anticipate any natural gas over earnings for 2008. 

The Company recorded estimated 2006 over-earnings for regulated natural gas operations 
and subsequent interest accruals of $26,717. This over-earnings liability is included in the 
over-earnings liability on the Company’s consolidated balance sheet as of June 30, 2008 and 
December 31,2007. The calculations supporting these liabilities are complex and involve a 
variety of projections and estimates before the ultimate settlement of such obligations. 
Estimates may be revised as expectations change and factors become known and 
determinable. 

The 2006 over-earnings liability and the estimate that there is no 2007 and 2008 
overearnings liabihty is based on the Company’s best estimate, but the amount could change 
upon the FPSC iinalization expected later this year. The FPSC determines the disposition of 
over-earnings with alternatives that include refunding to customers, increasing storm 
damage or environmental reserves or reducing any depreciation reserve deficiency. 

10. 

11. Environmental Contingencies 
The Company is subject to federal and state legislation with respect to soil, groundwater and 
employee health and safety matters and to environmental regulations issued by the Florida 
Department of Environmental Protection (FDEP), the United States Environmental 
Protection Agency @PA) and other federal and state agencies. Except as discussed below, the 
Company does not expect to incur material future expenditures for compliance with existing 
environmental laws and regulations. 

Site 
West Palm Beach 
Sanford 

(Dollars in thousands) 
Range From Range To 

$ 4,903 $ 18,130 
609 609 

Pensacola and Key West 121 121 
Total $ 5,633 $ 18,860 

The Company currently has $13.5 million recorded as our best estimate of the environmental 
liability. The FPSC approved up to $14 milhon for total recovery from insurance and rates 
based on the original 2005 projections as a basis for rate recovery. The Company has 
recovered a total of $6.1 million from insurance and rate recovery, net of costs incurred to 

h t t p : / / w w w . s e c . g o v / ~ c h i v e s / e d g a r / d a t a / 3 l O q . h t m  8/18/2008 
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date. The remaining balance of $7.4 million is recorded as a regulatory asset. On October 18, 
2004 the FPSC approved recovery of $9.1 million for environmental liabilities. The 
amortization of this recovery and reduction to the regulatory asset began on January 1, 2005. 
The majority of environmental cash expenditures is expected to be incurred before 2010, but 
may continue for another 10 years. 

West Palm Beach Site 
FPUC completed field investigations for the contamination assessment task in  October 2006. 
Thereafter, FPUC retained The RETEC Group, Inc. to perform a feasibility study to evaluate 
appropriate remedes for the site to respond to the reported soil and groundwater impacts. 
On November 30, 2006, RETEC transmitted a feasibility study to FPUC and FDEP. The 
feasibility study evaluated a wide range of remedial alternatives. The total costs for the 
remedies evaluated in the feasibility study ranged from a low of $2.8 million to a high of 
$54.6 million. Based on the likely acceptability of proven remedial technologies described in 
the feasibility study and implemented at  similar sites, consulting/remediation costs are 
projected to  range from $4.6 million to $17.9 million. This range of costs covers such remedies 
as in situ solidification for the deeper impacts, excavation of surficial soils, installation of a 
barrier wall with a permeable biotreatment zone, or some combination of these remedies. 

By letter dated May 7, 2007, FDEP provided its comments to the feasibility study, the 
substance of which was discussed at  a meeting between FPUC and FDEP on September 14, 
2007. A revised feasibility study was submitted to FDEP on June 30, 2008. FPUC is 
currently awaiting FDEP's comments to the response. 

Based on the information provided in the feasibility study, remaining legal fees/costs are 
currently projected to be approximately $272,700. Consulting/remediation costs are projected 
to range from $4.6 million to $17.9 million. Thus, FPUC's total probable legal and cleanup 
costs for the West Palm Beach MGP site are currently projected to range from $4.9 million to 
$18.1 million. 

Sanford Site 
In late September 2006, EPA sent a Special Notice Letter to FPUC, notifying FPUC, and the 
other responsible parties a t  the site (Florida Power Corporation, Florida Power & Light 
Company, Atlanta Gas Light Company, and the City of Sanford, Florida, collectively with 
FPUC, "the Sanford Group"), of EPA's selection of a final remedy for OU1 (soils), OU2 
(groundwater), and OU3 (sediments) for the site. The total estimated remediation costs for 
the Sanford Gasification Plant Site were projected by EPA to be approximately $12.9 million. 

In January 2007, FPUC and other members of the Sanford Group signed a Third 
Participation Agreement, which provides for funding the final remedy approved by EPA for 
the site. FPUC's share of remediation costs under the Third Participation Agreement is set 
a t  five percent (5%) of a maximum of $13 million ($650,000), providing the total cost of 
the final remedy does not exceed $13 million. If the cost of the final remedy does exceed $13 
mdlion, the Sanford Group members agreed to negotiate in good faith a t  such time that it 
appears that the total cost will exceed $13 million for the allocation of the additional 
cost. FPUC has advised the other members of the Sanford Group that FPUC is unwilling at  
this time to agree to pay any sum in excess of the $650,000 committed by FPUC in the Third 
Participation Agreement. 

An initial call for funds under the Third Participation Agreement was sent to all members of 
the Sanford Group on May 16, 2008, seeking funds totaling $2 million. FPUC's share of the 
initial call for funds was $100,000 (5% of $2 million), which was paid by FPUC to the Sanford 
Group Escrow Account in June 2008. 
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The Sanford Group, EPA and the United States Department of Justice entered into a 
Consent Decree in March 2008 that was lodged with the federal court in Orlando on March 
28, 2008. The Consent Decree provides for the implementation by the Sanford Group of the 
remedy selected by EPA for the site. It is anticipated that the federal court wlll enter the 
Consent Decree later in 2008. The Sanford Group will then be obligated to implement the 
remedy approved by EPA for the site. 

The Sanford Group is currently negotiating with an adjacent property owner, Christian 
Prison Ministries (“CPM), for access to CPMs property for the purpose of implementing a 
portion of the EPA-approved remedy. CPM has advised the Sanford Group that CPM will 
incur damages as a result of the remedy and has demanded that the Sanford Group 
compensate CPM for such damages. The Sanford Group has offered a settlement package to 
CPM that would require the Sanford Group to purchase the CPM property for approximately 
$2 million. FPUC contends that it should not be required to  participate in the funding of this 
settlement based on the absence of any contribution by FPUC of contaminants to the site. At 
present, FPUC does not plan on participating financially in the settlement with CPM. 

Remaining legal feeskosts are currently projected to be approximately 
$59,000. FPUC‘s remaining obligation under the Third Participation Agreement is $550,000. 
Thus, FPUC‘s total probable legal and cleanup costs for the Sanford MGP site are currently 
projected to be approximately $609,000. 

Pensacola Site 
We are the prior owner/operator of the former Pensacola gasification plant, located in 
Pensacola, Florida. Following notification on October 5, 1990 that FDEP had determined that 
we were one of several responsible parties for any environmental impacts associated with the 
former gasification plant site, we entered into cost sharing agreements with three other 
responsible parties providing for the funding of certain contamination assessment activities 
a t  the site. 

Following field investigations performed on behalf of the responsible parties, on July 16, 
1997, FDEP approved a final remedy for the site that provides for annual sampling of 
selected monitoring wells. Such annual sampling has been undertaken a t  the site since 1998. 
The Company’s share of these costs is less than $2,000 annually. 

In March 1999, EPA requested site access in order to undertake an Expanded Site Inspection 
(ESI). The ESI was completed by EPA’s contractor in 1999 and an ESI Report was 
transmitted to the Company in January 2000. The ESI Report recommends additional work 
at  the site. The responsible parties met with FDEP on February 7, 2000 to discuss EPA’s 
plans for the site. In February 2000, EPA indicated preliminarily that it will defer 
management of the site to FDEP; as of April 2008, the Company has not received any written 
confirmation from EPA or FDEP regarding this matter. Prior to receipt of EPAs written 
determination regarding this site management, we are unable to determine whether 
additional field work or site remediation will be required by EPA and, if so, the scope or costs 
of such work. 

Consulting/remediation costs are projected to be $24,600, legal fees/costs are projected to be 
$3,700, for total probable costs for the Pensacola MGP site of $28,300. 

Key West Site 
From 1927-1938, we owned and operated a gasification plant in Key West, Florida. The plant 
discontinued operations in the late 1940s; the property on which the plant was located is 
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13. 

currently used for a propane gas distribution business. In March 1993, a Preliminary 
Contamination Assessment Report (PCAR) was prepared by a Consultant jointly retained by 
the current site owner and the Company and was delivered to FDEP. The PCAR reported 
that very limited soil and groundwater impacts were present a t  the site. By letter dated 
December 20, 1993, FDEP notified us that the site did not warrant further "CERCLA 
consideration and a Site Evaluation Accomplished disposition is recommended." FDEP then 
referred the matter to its Marathon office for consideration of whether additional work would 
be required by FDEP's district office under Florida law. As of June 30, 2008, the Company 
has received no further communication from FDEP with respect to the site. At this time we 
are unable to determine whether additional field work will be required by FDEP and, if so, 
the scope or costs of such work. In  1999, the Company received an  estimate from its 
consultant that additional costs to assess and remediate the reported impacts would be 
approximately $166,000. Assuming the current owner shared in such costs according to the 
allocation agreed upon by the parties for the PCAR, the Company's share of remediation 
expenses, plus attorney's fees and costs, is projected to be $93,000 for this site. 

IRS Examination 
In February of 2007, the IRS completed our 2003 and 2004 tax year examinations. We 
reclassified the tax liability recognized in 2007 as it relates to this audit, and classified it as a 
current tax payable. We paid this tax liability and the interest on this liability of 
approximately $195,000 and $48,000 respectively in July 2008. This adjustment does not 
affect our annual effective income tax rate, and did not result in a material change in our 
financial position. 

The Company has amended its 2004 federal and Florida corporate income tax returns to 
reflect the IRS audit adjustments. 

In July 2008, the IRS began their examination of our 2005 and 2006 tax years. We anticipate 
our unrecognized tax benefits may increase or decrease; however, since our tax positions have 
remained consistent with those from the previously audited tax years, we do not expect any 
material adverse findings as the result of the current IRS audit that have not been included 
in our current tax payable or a tax liability. 

Employee Benefit Plans 
The Company sponsors a qualified defined benefit pension plan for non-union employees 
hired before January 1,2005 and for unionized employees that work under one of the six 
Company union contracts and were hired before their respective contract dates in 2005 or in 
2006 depending on the specific contract. Employees hired after December 31,2004 and union 
employees hired after the above time frames are not eligible for the defined benefit pension 
plan and are in a 401k match plan. The Company also sponsors a post-retirement medical 
plan. 

The following table provides the components of the net periodic benefit cost for our pension 
plan and postretirement benefit plan for the three months and six months ended June 30, 
2007 and 2008. 

FLORIDA PUBLIC UTILITIES COMPANY 
Net Periodic Benefit Casts 

(Dollars m thousands) 

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended 
June 30, June 30, 

2008 2007 2008 2007 
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Pension Plan: 
Service Cost $ 249 $ 283 
Interest Cost 712 566 
Expected Return on Plan Assets (653) (610) (1,301) 
Amortization of Prior Service Cost 176 184 360 

Net Periodic Pension Cost $ 484 $ 423 $ 9 3 5  $ 8 4 6  

Postretirement Benefit Plan: 
Service Cost $ 14 $ 16 $ 28 $ 32 
Interest Cost 34 26 59 52 
Amortization of Transition Obligatiod(Asset) 
Obligatiod(Asset) 11 11 22 22 

Amortization of Net (Gain) or Loss 1 (5) (12) (10 
Net Periodic Postretirement Benefit Cost $ 60 $ 48 $ 97 $ 96 

I I 
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For additional information related to our employee benefit plans, please see Notes to 
Consolidated Financial Statements in the Company’s Form 10-K for the year ended 
December 31, 2007. Approximately 79% of the net deferred and unrecognized gains and 
losses relate to the regulated segment of the business and are recoverable through regulatory 
assets. 

FASB issued Statement No. 158, “Employers’ Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension and 
Other Postretirement Plans”, that requires the Company to show the funded status of its 
pension and retiree health care plan as a prepaid asset or accrued liability, and to show the 
net deferred and unrecognized gains and losses related to the retirement plans, net of tax, as 
part of accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) (AOCI) in shareholders’ equity. The 
accumulated other comprehensive income is a gain of $132,982, net of income tax effect of 
$80,229, a t  June 30, 2008 compared to a gain of $87,528, net of income tax effect of $52,806, 
for December 31, 2007. Previously, the net deferred and unrecognized gains and losses were 
included in the prepaid asset or accrued liability recorded for the retirement plans. 

14. Impact of Recent Accounting Standards 
Financial Accounting Standard No. 161 
In March 2008, the FASB issued Statement No. 161, “Disclosures about Derivative 
Instruments and Hedging Activities - an amendment of FASB Statement No. 133  This 
standard requires enhanced disclosures about an entity’s derivative and hedging activities 
and thereby improves the transparency of financial reporting. This Statement is effective for 
financial statements issued for fiscal years and interim periods beginning after November 15, 
2008. The Company expects to adopt SFAS No. 161 effective January 1, 2009. 

Financial Accounting Standard No. 162 
In May 2008, the FASB issued Statement No. 162, “The Hierarchy of Generally Accepted 
Accounting Principles”. This standard offers guidance on the principles used to prepare 
financial statements in accordance with GAAF’. FASB Statements of Financial Accounting 
Concepts now supersede industry practice. The Company does not anticipate the adoption of 
this standard will have a material effect on our financial position or  results of operation. 

Fair Value of Financial Instruments 
In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157, “Fair Value 
Measurements” (“SFAS 157”), which defines fair value, establishes a framework for 
measuring fair value in GAAP, and expands disclosures about fair value measurements. 
SFAS 157 does not require any new fair value measurements, but provides guidance on how 
to measure fair value by providing a fair value hierarchy used to classify the source of the 
information. In February 2008, the FASB deferred the effective date of SFAS 157 by one year 
for certain non-financial assets and non-financial liabilities, except those that are recognized 
or disclosed at  fair value in the financial statements on a recurring basis (at least annually). 
On January 1, 2008, we adopted the provisions of SFAS 157, except as it applies to those 
nonfinancial assets and nonfinancial liabilities for which the effective date has been delayed 
by one year. The adoption of SFAS 157 did not have a material effect on our financial position 
or results of operations. 

On January 1, 2008, we adopted the provisions of SFAS No. 159 “The Fair Value Option for 
Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities - includmg an amendment of FASB Statement 
No. 115” (“SFAS 159).  SFAS 159 provides companies with an option to report selected 
financial assets and financial liabilities a t  fair value. Unrealized gains and losses on items for 
which the fair value option has been elected are reported in earnings at  each subsequent 
reporting date. The fair value option: (i) may be applied instrument by instrument, with a 
few exceptions, such as investments accounted for by the equity method; (ii) is irrevocable 

15. 
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(unless a new election date occurs); and (iii) is applied only to entire instruments and not to 
portions of instruments. We did not elect to record any adhtional assets or liabilities a t  fair 
value and accordmgly, the adoption of SFAS 159 did not have a material effect on our 
financial position or results of operations. 

16. Segment Information 
The Company is organized into two regulated business segments: natural gas and electric, 
and one non-regulated business segment, propane gas. There are no material inter-segment 
sales or transfers. 

Identifiable assets are those assets used in the Company’s operations in each business 
segment. Common assets are principally cash and overnight investments, deferred tax assets 
and common plant. 

Business segment information at  June 30, 2008, and December 31, 2007 is summarized as 
follows: 

(Dollars in thousands) 2008 2007 
Identifiable assets 

Natural gas $ 100,515 $ 99,295 
Electric 58,015 54,202 
Propane gas 19,052 19,371 
Common 17,566 19,476 

195,148 $ 192,344 Consolidated $ 

Business segment information for the quarter ending and six months ending June 30, 2008, 
and June 30.2007 are summarized as follows: 

(Dollars in thousands) 
Revenues 

Natural gas 
Electric 
Propane gas 
Consolidated 

Operating income, excluding 
income tax 

Natural gas 
Electric 
Propane gas 

Consolidated 

Natural gas 
Electric 
Propane gas 
Common 
Consolidated 

Natural gas 
Electric 

Depreciation and amortization 

Income tax expense (benefit) 

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended 
June 30, June 30, 

2008 2007 2008 2007 

$ 18,973 $ 15,502 $ 41,110 $ 36,075 
18,214 13,135 35,737 26,493 
4,189 3,831 9,559 8,512 

$ 41,376 $ 32,468 $ 86,406 $ 71,080 

$ 225 $ 834 $ 2,617 $ 3,273 
866 422 1,601 997 

51 340 935 1,064 
1,142 $ 1,596 $ 5,153 $ 5,334 $ -~ 

$ 1,129 $ 1,082 $ 2,317 $ 2,208 
796 674 1,583 1,343 
203 200 404 406 

78 75 155 146 
$- 2,206 $ 2,031 $ 4,459 $ 4,103 

$ (172) $ 71 $ 407 $ 706 
171 18 313 141 
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Propane gas 
Common 
Consolidated 

Natural gas 
Electric 
Propane gas 
Common 
Consolidated 

Construction expenditures 

(46) 47 230 241 
26 61 95 138 

(21) $ 197 $ 1,045 $ 1,226 9; 

$ 1,599 $ 1,894 $ 2,854 $ 3,572 
839 1,059 2,331 1,974 
280 327 466 702 
62 170 98 289 

2,780 $ 3,450 $ 5,749 $ 6,537 $ ~ 

17. Reclassification 
Certain amounts in the 2007 financial statements have been reclassified to conform to the 
2008 presentation. 

Item 2. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of 
Operations 

Overview 
We have three primary business segments: natural gas, electric and propane gas. The Florida 
Public Service Commission (FPSC) regulates the natural gas and electric segments. The 
effects of seasonal weather conditions, timing of rate increases, economic condltions, 
fluctuations in demand due to the cost of fuel passed on to customers, and the migration of 
winter residents and tourists to Florida during the winter season have a significant impact 
on income. 

The slump in the economy and higher prices for fuel and other commodities have contributed 
to conservation measures taken by our customers and the reduction in units sold in 2008 
compared to 2007. 

Despite the reduction in  units sold this year, electric gross profit increased due to interim and 
final rate relief. Interim rate relief of approximately $800,000, annually, was approved 
beginning in November 2007. Final electric base rate relief of approximately $3.9 million per 
year was approved in April 2008 with new rates beginning May 22, 2008. 

The new fuel contracts, effective January 1, 2007 in our Northeast division, and effective 
January 1, 2008 in our Northwest division, significantly increased our electricity fuel costs 
and revenues. We expect our electric customers will continue to take conservation measures 
to help offset the recent large fuel increases. We are unable to precisely estimate what impact 
the higher rates could have on electric consumption, but we expect there could be as much as 
a reduction of 10% in unit sales. Management does not expect a significant impact to electric 
gross profit from this expected reduction in sales units since this reduction was considered in 
our recent electric base rate increase approved in April 2008 and the rates were changed to 
compensate for this reduction. 

Earnings continue to be impacted by the overall economic slowdown and management 
expects current conditions to  continue through 2008 with an ongoing impact to our customer 
growth rates, unit sales and sales expense. In adhtion, earnings for 2008 are lower for the 
quarter and year to date ending June 30, 2008 compared to these same periods in 2007 
primarily because of nonrecurring professional fees and expenses incurred in the second 
quarter 2008 of approximately $500,000 related to strategic development activity no longer 
ongoing. The impact to net income for the effects of these nonrecurring administrative and 
general expenses is $304,000 after income taxes or $.05 per share for the quarter and year to 
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Revenues and Gross Profit 
Three Months Ended 

2008 2007 2008 2007 

Six Months Ended 
(Dollars and units m thousands) J u n e  30, June  30, 

Natural Gas 
Revenues $18,973 $15,502 $41,110 $36,075 
Cost of fuel and  other pass through costs 12,846 9,168 26,928 21,690 
Gross Profit $6,127 $6,334 $14,182 $14,385 
Units sold: (MDth) 1,318 1,447 3,179 3,287 
Customers (average for the period) 52,130 51,737 52,148 51,747 
Electric 
Revenues $18,214 $13,135 $35,737 $26,493 
Cost of fuel and other pass  through costs 13,994 9,590 27,853 19,489 
Gross Profit $4,220 $3,545 $7,884 $7,004 
Units so ld  (MWH) 188,421 200,298 361,697 385,934 
Customers (average for the period) 31,294 31,066 31,258 31,004 
Proaane Gas 
Revenues $ 4,189 $ 3,831 $9,559 $8,512 
Cost of fuel 2,511 1,941 5,482 4,289 
Gross Profit $ 1,678 $ 1,890 $ 4,077 $ 4,223 

~ 

~ 

___ 
Units sold: (MDth) 128 143 298 335 
Customers (average for the period) 12,536 13,274 12,602 13,327 
Consolidated 
Revenues $41,376 $32,468 $86,406 $71,080 
Cost of fuel 29,351 20,699 60,263 45,468 
Gross Profit $12,025 $11,769 $26,143 $25,612 
Customers (average for the period) 95,960 96,077 96,008 96,078 

~ 
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Revenues and Gross Profit 
Natural Gas 
Natural gas service revenues increased $3.5 million, or 22%, in the second quarter of 2008 
from the same period in 2007 due to increased revenues to recover our cost of fuel and other 
costs passed through to customers. 

Although customers increased marginally due to the conversion of approximately 500 
customers in our Central Florida division from propane to natural gas, gross profit declined 
by 3% primarily due to reduced unit sales per customer. Management believes the 9% decline 
in unit sales and decrease in usage per customer possibly relates to conservation measures 
taken by our customers as a result of the recent 40% fuel cost increases and overall downturn 
in the economy. 

Electric 
Electric revenues increased $5.1 million in the second quarter of 2008 over the same period in 
2007. Higher cost of fuel and other costs that were passed through to customers accounted for 
$4.4 million of this increase. A new fuel contract in our Northwest division effective January 
1, 2008, significantly increased the cost of fuel to market rates. 

Gross profit this quarter increased by $675,000 or 19% compared to  the second quarter of 
2007 primarily due to the interim base rate increase effective November 2007 and the final 
base rate increase effective May 22, 2008. Other factors slightly impacting gross profit were a 
1% increase in customer growth, offset by a 3% decrease in usage per customer, excluding 
two large industrial customers. Management believes the decrease in usage per customer 
possibly relates to conservation measures taken by our customers as a result of the recent 
increases in fuel and base rates. 

Propane Gas 
Propane revenues increased $358,000 in the second quarter of 2008 compared to the same 
period in 2007. Cost of gas sold increased by $570,000 and contributed to the increase in 
revenue; however, units sold decreased by 10% and gross profit declined by $212,000. 

The decrease in units sold is due in part to the recent conversion of approximately 500 
customers in our Central Florida division from propane to natural gas. This decrease in 
customers and units sold along with increased fuel costs, a $108,000 inventory loss 
adjustment, lower profit margins on commercial bulk accounts, and possible conservation 
measures taken by our customers contributed to the decrease in gross profit. 

Operating Expenses 
Operating expenses increased $710,000 in the second quarter of 2008 as compared to the 
same period in 2007. Administrative and general expenses increased by $528,000, primarily 
due to an increase of approximately $500,000 in nonrecurring professional fees and expenses 
incurred in the second quarter of 2008 related to strategic development activity no longer 
ongoing. 

We reduced the number of sales staff and other related sales expense due to the slow-down in 
the construction industry and the overall economy. Sales expense for the quarter was lower 
than this same period in 2007. 

New plant additions in our operating segments, along with increased electric depreciation 
rates that were effective January 1, 2008 increased depreciation expense by $175,000 in the 
second quarter of 2008 compared to the same period in 2007. 

Other Income and Deductions 
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Merchandise and service revenues and expense decreased by $218,000 and $79,000 
respectively in the second quarter of 2008 compared to the same period last year. We 
continue to experience a decrease in merchandise sales and expenses as the effects of the 
slowdown of new construction and housing projects continue. 

Total interest expense remained relatively flat in the second quarter of 2008 compared to the 
same period last year. 

Six Months Ended June 30,2008 Compared with Six Months Ended June 30,2007. 

Revenue and Gross Profit 
Natural Gas 
Natural gas service revenues increased $5.0 million in the six months ended June 30, 2008 
over the same period in 2007. As the cost of natural gas continues to increase, revenues to 
recover our cost of fuel and other costs passed through to  customers increased by $5.2 million. 

Our gross profit decreased by $203,000 or 1%. The decrease in gross profit is attributable to 
a 3% decrease in units sold in 2008 due primarily to warmer weather and lower usage per 
customer, possibly due to increased fuel costs passed through to our customers and the down- 
turn in the housing market and economy as a whole. 

Customers increased by 1% due to the recent conversion of approximately 500 customers in 
our Central Florida division from propane to natural gas. 

Electric 
Electric service revenues increased by $9.2 million in the six months ended June 30, 2008 
over the same period in 2007. Primarily all of the increase was attributable to  the cost of fuel 
and other costs of $8.4 million that were passed through to customers. A new fuel contract in 
our Northwest division was effective January 1, 2008 and this increased the cost of fuel that 
was passed through to our customers. 

Gross profit increased by $880,000 compared to the six months ending June 30, 2007 due to 
the interim base rate increase effective November 2007 and the final base rate increase 
effective May 2008. Although the number of customers increased by 1%, there was a 1% 
decrease in units sold as a result of warmer weather and possible conservation measures 
taken by our customers due to the recent fuel and base rate increases. 

Propane Gas 
Propane revenues increased by $1.0 million in the six months ended June 30,2008 compared 
to the same period in 2007. The cost of fuel that was passed through to our customers 
accounted for the revenue increase as gross profit actually decreased by 3% and unit sold 
decreased by 11%. 

Lower profit margins on commercial bulk accounts, warmer weather, and possible customer 
conservation due to the downturn in the economy contributed significantly to this gross profit 
reduction. The conversion of approximately 500 customers from propane to natural gas in 
September 2007 also reduced customers and units sold in this segment. In addition, an 
inventory loss adjustment resulted in increased cost of sales expense of $108,000 over the 
prior period. 

Operating Expenses 
Operating expenses were higher by $712,000 in the six months ended June 30, 2008 
compared to the same period in 2007. Administrative and general expenses increased by 
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$575,000 primarily due to an  increase of approximately$500,000 in nonrecurring professional 
fees and expenses incurred in the second quarter of 2008 related to strategic development 
activity no longer ongoing. 

Sales expense decreased $253,000 due to a reduction in sales staff and other related sales 
expense resulting from the slow-down in the construction industry and the overall economy. 
As the divisions continue to grow, capital additions and new electric depreciation rates 
contributed to $356,000 increase in  depreciation expense. 

The new electric depreciation rates are expected to increase annual depreciation expense by 
approximately $280,000 in 2008. A portion of the 2008 depreciation rate increase was not 
recovered in 2008 through the increased electric base rates due to the timing of final rate 
recovery. 

Other Income and Deductions 
Merchandise and service revenue decreased by $411,000 in the six months ended June 30, 
2008 compared to the same period last year. This was offset by a decrease in cost of 
merchandise and services of $265,000. The decrease in revenue was a result of the slowdown 
of new construction projects during the current downturn in the housing market. 

The total interest expense remained flat compared to the prior year to date. 

Income Taxes 
Income tax expense decreased in the six months ended June 30, 2008 by $181,000 over the 
same period last year primarily due to  lower taxable book income. 

Liquidity and Capital Resources 

Cash Flows 

Operating Activities 
Net cash flow provided by operating activities for the six months ended June 30, 2008 
decreased by approximately $6.9 mdhon over the same period in 2007. The timing of the 
receipt of increased customer accounts receivables due to the recent fuel price increases, 
offset by the increased accounts payables from the fuel price increases sigmficantly 
contributed to this decrease. The over-recovered fuel costs collected in 2007 and subsequently 
refunded in 2008 accounted for approximately $1.4 million of the decrease in the current 
year’s net cash flow as compared to the prior year. 

Investing Activities 
Construction expenditures in the six months ended June 30,2008 decreased by $788,000 
compared to the same period last year. This decrease is due primarily to reduced 
expenditures for distribution facilities and installations of approximately $1.1 million as a 
result of the slowdown in the construction industry and economy. Additionally, decreases of 
$545,000 for transportation equipment, computer, and the mapping system contributed to 
this change &om the prior year. Offsetting these decreases, expenditures for the six months 
ending June 30, 2008 included approximately $826,000 for a 2008 replacement transformer 
at  the Northeast Florida electric &vision. 

Financing Activities 
Short-term loan borrowings increased by $1.4 million during the six months ended June 30, 
2008. Cash increases from additional draws under the line of credit for operations were offset 
by a cash payment for dividends in the amount of $1.3 million. As of June 30, 2008, our line 
of credit was $12.5 million as compared to  $11.1 million as of December 31, 2007. 
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Capital Resources 
We have a line of credit with Bank of America, which expires July 1, 2010. In March 2008, 
we amended our line of credit to allow us, upon 30 days notice, to increase our maximum 
credit line to $26 million from the previous maximum of $20 mdhon. The amendment also 
reduces the interest rate paid on borrowings by 0.10% or 10 basis points. Effective April 29, 
2008, we increased the line of credit from $12 million to $15 million. The line of credit 
contains affirmative and negative covenants that, if violated, would give the bank the right to  
accelerate the due date of the loan to be immediately payable. The covenants include certain 
financial ratios. All ratios are currently met. Management believes we are in full compliance 
with all covenants and anticipates continued compliance. 

We reserve $1 million of the line of credlt to cover expenses for any major storm repairs in 
our electric segment and an additional $250,000 for a letter of credlt insuring propane gas 
facilities. As of June 30,2008, the amount borrowed on the line of credlt was $12.5 million. 
The line of credit, long-term debt and preferred stock as of June 30, 2008 comprised 56% of 
total debt and equity capitalization. 

Historically we have periodically paid off short-term borrowings under lines of credit using 
the net proceeds from the sale of long-term debt or equity securities. We continue to review 
our financing options including increasing our short-term line of credit, issuing equity, or 
issuing debt. The choice of financing will be dependent on prevailing market conditions, the 
impact to our financial covenants and the effect on income. The timing of additional funding 
needs will be dependent on projected environmental expenditures, building of the South 
Florida operations facihty, pension contributions, and other capital expenditures. 

Our 1942 Indenture of Mortgage and Deed of Trust, which is a mortgage on all real and 
personal property, permits the issuance of additional bonds based upon a calculation of 
unencumbered net real and personal property. At June 30, 2008, such calculation would 
permit the issuance of approximately $49 million of additional bonds. 

On October 25, 2007 we received approval from the FPSC to issue and sell or exchange an 
additional amount of $45 million in any combination of long-term debt, short-term notes and 
equity securities and/or to assume liabilities or obligations as guarantor, endorser or surety 
during calendar year 2008. In the event we choose not to  proceed in 2008 with such a 
financing, we may seek approval from the FPSC in 2008 for any possible financing in 2009. 

We have $3.5 million in invested funds for payment of future environmental costs. 

There is approximately $6.1 million in receivables &om the 2003 sale of our water assets, of 
which an estimated installment of $300,000 is anticipated to be received in 2009. The 
remaining balance of $5.8 million wlll be collected in 2010. The present value of this 
receivable is $5.7 million. 

We also received a $244,000 legal claim reimbursement in April 2008 from our insurance 
company to reimburse us on a liability claim. 

Capital Requirements 
Portions of our business are seasonal and dependent upon weather conditions in Florida. This 
factor affects the sale of electricity and gas and impacts the cash provided by operations. 
Construction costs also impact cash requirements throughout the year. Cash needs for 
operations and construction are met partially through short-term borrowings from our line of 
credit. 
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Capital expenditures are expected to be lower for the remainder of 2008 compared to the 
same period in 2007 by approximately $3.7 million. 2007 included a non-recurring 
expenditure of $3.5 million to purchase land for a new South Florida operations facility. 

We currently have approximately $500,000 in commitments for capital expenditures for the 
remainder of 2008. These commitments include vehicles for approximately $340,000 and land 
in our Central Florida division for approximately $200,000. 

Cash requirements will increase significantly in the future due to environmental cleanup 
costs, sinking fund payments on long-term debt and pension contributions. Environmental 
cleanup is forecast to require payments of approximately $226,000 in 2008, with remaining 
payments, which could total approximately $13.3 million, beginning in 2009. Annual long- 
term debt sinking fund payments of approximately $1.4 mdhon began in May 2008 and will 
continue for eleven years. Based on current projections, we will make a voluntary 
contribution in our defined benefit pension plan of $278,000 in 2008 for the 2007 plan and we 
will continue in future years to make contributions as required by the Pension Protection Act 
funding rules. 

Based on our current expectations management believes that the cash available, the line of 
credit and cash from operations will be sufficient for the next twelve months. In the future we 
may choose to consider equity or debt financing and the need and timing will depend upon 
operational requirements, the timing of environmental expenditures, pension contributions 
and construction expenditures. In addition, if we experience significant environmental 
expenditures it is possible we may need to raise additional funds in the second half of 2009. 
There can be no assurance, however, that equity or debt transaction financing will be 

available on favorable terms or a t  all when we make the decision to proceed with a financing 
transaction. 

Outlook 

Over-earnings-Natural Gas Segment 
We recorded estimated 2006 over-earnings for the natural gas segment of $25,000. Interest 
accrued on this estimated over-earnings as of June 30, 2008 is $1,717. This liability is 
included in the over-earnings liability on our balance sheet. The calculations supporting 
these liabilities are complex and involve a variety of projections and estimates before the 
ultimate settlement of such obligations. Estimates may be revised as expectations change 
and factors become known and determinable. 

Our 2006 estimates of our over-earnings liabilities could change upon the FPSC finalization 
of our earnings expected during 2008. The FPSC determines the disposition of over-earnings 
with alternatives that include refunds to customers, funding storm or environmental 
reserves, or reducing any depreciation reserve deficiency. 

Medical Insurance 
Insurance costs increased approximately $76,000 in the first six months of 2008 as compared 
to 2007. We continue to experience medical claims which are significantly above average over 
the last several years. These high claims resulted in a significant increase to our plan cost 
which has increased our medical premiums each year. In an effort to better control these cost 
increases, the Company will be more proactive in identifying healthcare options that will help 
control our overall medical costs and strive to  improve our employees’ health. We will be 
exploring various wellness programs that could meet these goals of reduced costs and 
improved employee health. 

Land Purchases 
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We purchased land for $3.4 million in July 2007 for a new South Florida operations facility. 
We are in the process of preparing plans for a building on this property and expect to begin 
construction within the next three years. 

We have a commitment to purchase additional land for approximately $200,000 adjacent to 
our Central Florida operations facility for additional parking. We expect to close on this land 
purchase during the third quarter of 2008. 

Storm Related Expenditures 
Regulators continue to focus on hurricane preparedness and storm recovery issues for u th ty  
companies. Newly mandated storm preparedness initiatives will impact our operating 
expenses and capital expendltures in 2008. Storm hardening initiatives, recently mandated 
by the FPSC, will increase other electric operating expenses for the remainder of 2008. 
However, we received recovery of these storm related expenses in our recent electric base rate 
proceeding, and management does not expect a negative impact to our 2008 earnings as a 
result of these mandates. It is possible that additional regulation and rules will be mandated 
regarding storm related expenditures over the next several years. 

Electric Base Rate Proceeding 
Interim rate relief for partial recovery of the increased expendltures was approved by the 
FPSC on October 23, 2007. Interim rates which will produce additional annual revenues of 
approximately $800,000 went into effect for meter readings on and after November 22, 2007. 

A final annual electric rate increase of approximately $3,900,000 a year was approved in 
April 2008, with the new rates beginning May 22, 2008. These revenues should provide an 
increase to our overall profitability for the electric segment and recovery of increased 
expenditures including depreciation, storm readlness mandates and initiatives and other 
expenses beginning in 2008. 

Natural Gas Base Rate Proceeding 
We plan to file a request with the FPSC in the fourth quarter of 2008 for a base rate increase 
in our natural gas segment. This request will include recovery of increased expenses and 
some capital expenditures since our last rate proceedmg in 2004. Finalization of this request 
and approval, if any, of a natural gas base rate increase would not occur until mid 2009. 
Possible interim rate relief for partial recovery of the increased expenditures may occur in 
early 2009. 

Asphalt Plant 
A new commercial customer in our natural gas segment in the South Florida division is 
expected to be in service during the fourth quarter of 2008. The increase to annual gross 
profit from this new customer is expected to be approximately $86,000. 

Propane Company Asset Purchase 
We expect to purchase most of the assets and materials of a propane company located in 
Central Florida for approximately $140,000 in the third or fourth quarter of 2008. This 
purchase is expected to increase our annual gross profit by approximately $65,000 and our 
customers by approximately 400. 

Bankruptcy and Bad Debt 
A large commercial customer in our natural gas segment located in South Florida has filed 
for Chapter 11 bankruptcy in August 2008. We expect to accrue for this bad debt on their 
accounts receivable for approximately $170,000 as of June 30, 2008 in the third quarter of 
2008. We may receive partial recovery from the bankruptcy courts on this receivable. The 
estimated annual base revenue for this customer is approximately $31,000. 
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Forward-Looking Statements (Cautionary Statement) 
This report contains forward-looking statements including those relating to the following: 

Based on our current expectations for cash needs, including cash needs relating to 
construction of the South Florida operations building, we may choose to consider 
an equity or debt financing. 
Our anticipation of continued compliance in the foreseeable future with our line of 
credit covenants. 
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Our expectation that cash requirements will increase s igdcant ly  in the future 
due to environmental clean-up costs, sinking fund payment on long-term debt and 
pension contributions. 
Our belief that cash from operations, coupled with short-term borrowings on our 
line of credit, will be sufficient to satisfy our operating expenses, normal 
construction expenhture and dwidend payments through 2008. 
Our 2006 over-earnings liability in natural gas will materialize as estimated. 
Realization of actual additional revenues from the May 2008 electric base rate 
increase will occur as expected. 
Earnings continue to be impacted by the overall economic conditions and 
management expects the slow-down to continue through 2008 with ongoing impact 
to our customer growth rates, unit sales and sales expense. 
We are unable to precisely estimate what impact the higher fuel rates could have 
on electric consumption but we expect there could be as much as a reduction of 
10% in sales. Management does not expect a significant impact to electric gross 
profit from this expected reduction in sales units since this reduction was 
considered in our recent electric base rate increase approved in April 2008. 
Storm hardening initiatives recently mandated by the FPSC will increase other 
electric operating expenses for the remainder of 2008 and management does not 
expect a negative impact to our 2008 earnings as a result of these mandates due to 
the recent base rate proceeding. 
We do not expect any material adverse findings as a result of the IRS audit of 2005 
and 2006 tax years. 
The Asphalt customer will be in service by the expected date, and gross profit will 
increase as estimated. 
The Propane Asset purchase in Central Florida will occur as expected. 
The Natural Gas Rate Proceeding will be fled by the end of 2008. Finalization of 
this request and approval, if any, of a natural gas base rate increase would not 
occur until mid 2009. Possible interim rate relief for partial recovery of the 
increased expenditures may occur in early 2009. 
The purchase of land will occur as expected in Central Florida in the third quarter 
of 2008. 
The new electric depreciation rates are expected to increase annual depreciation 
expense by approximately $280,000 in 2008. 
Capital expenditures are expected to be lower for the remainder of 2008 compared 
to the same period in 2007 by approximately $3.7 m a o n .  
The South Florida operations facility will begin construction as anticipated. 
The bankruptcy will result in additional write-offs and bad debt expense as 
anticipated. 

These statements involve certain risks and uncertainties. Actual results may differ 
materially &om what is expressed in such forward-looking statements. Important factors that 
could cause actual results to differ materially from those expressed by the forward-looking 
statements include, but are not limited to, those set forth in “Risk Factors” in our Form 10-K 
for the year ended December 31, 2007. 

Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk 

All financial instruments held by us were entered into for purposes other than for trading. 
We have market risk exposure only from the potential loss in fair value resulting from 
changes in interest rates. We have no material exposure relating to commodity prices because 
under our regulatory jurisdictions, we are fully compensated for the actual costs of 
commodities (natural gas and electricity) used in our operations. Any commodity price 
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increases for propane gas are normally passed through monthly to propane gas customers as 
the fuel charge portion of their rate. 

None of our gas or electric contracts are accounted for using the fair value method of 
accounting. While some of our contracts meet the definition of a derivative, we have 
designated these contracts as “normal purchases and sales” under SFAS No. 133, 
“Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities”, 

We have decided to suspend our previous plan of hedging through a combination of 
purchasing caps and swaps. We had decided to use a plan that, on a rolling four-quarter 
basis, would have purchased a “cap” on approximately one-third of our forecast propane 
volume purchases, performed a pre-buy or hedge with a swap for one-third of our forecast 
anticipated propane purchases, and bought one-third at  market. We are now fluctuating 
with the market or utilizing pre-purchased propane gas. As of June 30, 2008, we had not 
entered into any hedging activities or  pre-purchased gas supplies. 

We have no exposure to equity risk, as we do not hold any equity instruments. Our exposure 
to interest rate risk is limited to investments held for environmental costs, the long-term 
notes receivable from the sale of our water division and short-term borrowings on the line of 
credit. The investments held for environmental costs are short-term fixed income debt 
securities whose carrying amounts are not materially different than fair value. The short- 
term borrowings were approximately $12.5 million at  the end of June 30, 2008. We do not 
believe we have material market risk exposure related to these instruments. The indentures 
governing our two first mortgage bond series outstanding contain “make-whole’’ provisions 
@re-payment penalties that charge for lost interest), which render refinancing impracticable 
until sometime after 2010. 

Item 4T. Controls and Procedures 

Disclosure Controls and Procedures 
In accordance with Exchange Act Rules 13a-15 and 15d-15, we carried out an  evaluation, 
under the supervision and with the participation of management, including our CEO and 
CFO, of the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures as of June 30, 2008. Based 
on that evaluation, our CEO and CFO have concluded that, as of June 30,2008, our 
disclosure controls and procedures were effective. 

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting 
There have not been any changes in the Company’s internal control over financial reporting 
during the fiscal quarter ended June 30,2008 that have materially affected, or are 
reasonably likely to materially affect, the Company’s internal control over financial reporting. 

PART 11. OTHER INFORMATION 

Item lA. Risk Factors 

The risk factors should be read in conjunction with those included in our most recent Form 
10-K for the year ending December 31, 2007. 

The financial performance of Florida Public Utilities Company may be adversely 
affected if its divisions are unable to successfully operate their facilities. 

Florida Public Utilities Company’s financial performance depends on the successful operation 
of its electric, natural gas and propane facihties. Operating these facdities involves many 
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risks, including: 

Pad L. Maddock, Jr. I 5,033,708 1 428,507 
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0 0 

operator error or failure of equipment or processes; 

operating limitations that may be imposed by environmental or other regulatory 
requirements; 

labor disputes; 

fuel or material supply interruptions; 

compliance with mandatory reliability standards; and 

catastrophic events such as fires, earthquakes, explosions, floods, droughts, 
hurricanes, terrorist attacks, pandemic health events such as an avian influenza, or 
other similar occurrences. 

Dennis S. Hudson 111 5,040,936 421,278 0 

A decrease or elimination of revenues &om any one of our facilities or an increase in the cost 
of operating the facilities would reduce the net income and cash flows and could adversely 
impact the financial condition. 

0 

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders 

The Company held its annual meeting of stockholders on May 13, 2008. At that meeting, 
the stockholders were asked to consider and act on the following: 

0 

Election of two 2 directors 
Approve an amendment to the Company’s Employee Stock Purchase Plan to 
increase the number of shares of common stock available in this Plan by 125,000 

Amendment to ESPP 

shares 
RatXcation of the aooointment of BDO Seidman. LLP, as the Company’s 

3,247,079 609,398 1,569,191 36,547 
Ratification of BDO 

Seidman, LLF 35,440 0 23,027 5,403,767 

The following votes were cast in respect of the amendment to the Company’s Employee 
Stock Purchase Plan and the appointment of the Company’s independent registered 
certified public accounting firm, BDO Seidman, LLP: 

I For I i\gainstjWithheld I Brsker Ncmotes I A bstenh- 
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Item 6. 

3.1 

3.2 

3.3 

4.1 

4.2 

4.3 

10.2 

10.3 

10.4 

31.1 

31.2 

32 

Exhibits 

Amended Articles of Incorporation (incorporated herein by reference as Exhibit 3 
(i) to our quarterly report on Form 10-Q for the period ended June 30, 2002). 

Amended By-Laws (incorporated herein by reference as Exhibit 3(ii) to our 
quarterly report on Form 10-Q for the period ended June 30,2002). 

Amendment to Articles of Incorporation increasing the number of authorized 
shares of common stock, $1.50 par value per share, from 6,000,000 to 10,000,000 
shares. 

Indenture of Mortgage and Deed of Trust of FPU dated as of September 1, 1942 
(incorporated by reference herein to Exhibit 7-A to Registration No. 2-6087). 

Fourteenth Supplemental Indenture dated September 1,2001 (incorporated by 
reference to exhibit 4.2 on our annual report on Form 10-K for the year ended 
December 31,2001). 

Fifteenth Supplemental Indenture dated November 1,2001 (incorporated by 
reference to exhibit 4.3 on our annual report on Form 10-K for the year ended 
December 31, 2001). 

Physical Sale Agreement between FPU and Inergy Propane, LLC dated May 1, 
2008. * 

Network Operating Agreement between FPU and Southern Company Services, 
Inc. for the transmission of power purchased &om Gulf Power Company, dated 
June 9, 2008. 

Network Integration Transmission Service Agreement between FPU and 
Southern Company Services, Inc. for the transmission of power purchased from 
Gulf Power Company, dated June 9, 2008. 

Certification of Chief Executive Officer (CEO) per Section 302 of the Sarbanes- 
Oxley Act of 2002. 

Certification of Chief Financial Officer (CFO) per Section 302 of the Sarbanes- 
Oxley Act of 2002. 

Certification of Principal Executive Officer and Principal Financial Officer per 
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002. 

*Confidential treatment requested for portions of this agreement. 

SIGNATURES 

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly 
caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized. 

FLORIDA PUBLIC UTILITIES COMPANY 
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By: ls l  Georee M. Bachman 
George M. Bachman 
Chief Financial Officer 
(Principal Accounting Officer) 
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EXHIBIT INDEX 
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3.3 

10.2 

10.3 

10.4 

31.1 

31.2 

32 

Amendment to Articles of Incorporation increasing the number of authorized 
shares of common stock, $1.50 par value per share, from 6,000,000 to 10,000,000 
shares. 

Physical Sale Agreement between FPU and Inergy Propane, LLC dated May 1, 
2008. * 

Network Operating Agreement between FPU and Southern Company Services, 
Inc. for the transmission of power purchased from Gulf Power Company, dated 
June 9, 2008. 

Network Integration Transmission Service Agreement between FPU and 
Southern Company Services, Inc. for the transmission of power purchased from 
Gulf Power Company, dated June 9,2008. 

Certification of Chief Executive Officer (CEO) per Section 302 of the Sarbanes- 
Oxley Act of 2002. 

Certification of Chief Financial Officer (CFO) per Section 302 of the Sarbanes- 
Oxley Act of 2002. 

Certification of Principal Executive Officer and Principal Financial Officer per 
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002. 

*Confidential treatment request for portions of this agreement. 
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Item 1. Business 

General 
Florida Public Utilities Company (FPU) was incorporated on March 6, 1924 and 
reincorporated on April 29, 1925 under the 1925 Florida Corporation Law. We provide 
natural gas, electricity and propane gas to residential, commercial and industrial 
customers in Florida. We do not produce energy and are not a generating utility. Our 
regulated segments sell natural gas and electricity to approximately 83,000 customers and 
our unregulated segment sells propane gas through a wholly owned subsidiary, Flo-Gas 
Corporation, to approximately 13,000 customers. We also sell merchandise and other 
service-related products on a limited basis as a complement to the natural and propane 
gas segments. 

Our three primary business segments are aligned with our products and are natural gas, 
electric and propane gas. The Florida Public Service Commission (FPSC) regulates the 
natural gas and electric segments. We operate through four divisions based on geographic 
areas: 

(1) South Florida Division - provides natural and propane gas to customers in West 
Palm Beach, Palm Beach Gardens, North Palm Beach, Jupiter, Riviera Beach, 
Palm Beach, Lake Worth, Royal Palm Beach, Wellington, Boynton Beach, Delray 
Beach, Boca Raton, Lauderdale Lakes, Deerfield Beach, Stuart, Palm City and 
other areas near these cities. 

Sanford, Deland, Deltona, DeBary, Orange City, Lake Mary, Winter Springs, New 
Smyrna Beach, Edgewater, Longwood, Port Orange and other areas near these 
cities. Our previous West Florida Division, which provides propane gas to 
customers in Dunnellon, Inglis, Crystal River, Inverness, Brooksville and other 
areas near these cities, has been consolidated with our Central Florida Division. 

(3) Northwest Florida Division - provides electricity to customers in Marianna, Bristol, 
Altha, Cottondale, Malone, Alford and other areas near these cities. 

(4) Northeast Florida Division - provides electricity and propane gas to customers in 
Fernandina Beach, Jacksonville, Callahan, Yulee and other areas near these cities. 

(2) Central Florida Division - provides natural and propane gas to customers in 

Business Environment 
The historic growth that has fueled strong demand for natural and propane gas over the 
last decade has slowed with the slowdown in the new construction housing market and 
the economy in general. However, interest is growing among those who wish to use 
natural and propane gas as an  environmentally friendly, alternative energy source that is 
a very reliable source of energy in the event of a power outage. During 2007, the price of 
natural gas remained stable as no adverse conditions existed to effect pricing. The cost of 
propane gas increased primarily in response to the unprecedented increase in the price of 
crude oil. 

Historically, our sales in the electric segment have not been impacted by increasing 
electric costs due to long-term favorable fixed price contracts for purchasing electricity. 
However, our long-term contracts concluded at  the end of 2006 for our Northeast &vision 
and at  the end of 2007 for our Northwest division. We now have new contracts in place 
with pricing much closer to current market prices. Our electric selling prices, as a result 
of these increased fuel costs, significantly increased. Although this does not directly 
impact our income from operations as increased fuel costs are passed through to the 
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customer, this may decrease the volume of electricity sold, thereby decreasing income 
from operations. 

Business Segments 
We are organized in three operating and reporting segments: natural gas, electric and 
propane gas. We are also involved in limited merchandise sales and other services in our 
natural gas and propane gas areas to complement these segments. For information 
concerning revenues, operating income and identifiable assets of each of our segments, see 
Note 13 in Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements. 

Natural Gas 
Natural gas is primarily composed of methane, which is a colorless, odorless fuel that 
burns cleaner than many other trahtional fossil fuels. Odorant is added to enable easy 
detection of a gas leak. 

We provide natural gas to customers in our South and Central Florida &visions. The vast 
majority of the natural gas we distribute is purchased in the Gulf Coast region, both 
onshore and offshore. 

We use Florida Gas Transmission (FGT) to transport our natural gas supplies through 
their pipeline into peninsular Florida. FGT is under the jurisdiction of the Federal Energy 
Regulatory Commission (FERC). We use gas marketers and producers to procure all gas 
supplies for our markets. We use Florida City Gas, Indiantown Gas Company and TECO 
Peoples Gas to provide wholesale gas sales services in areas distant from our 
interconnections with FGT. We pass all fuel costs on to our customers. We also transport 
natural gas for customers who purchase their own gas supplies and arrange for pipeline 
transportation. Our operating results are not adversely affected if our customers 
purchase gas from third parties because we do not profit on the fuel portion of sales. 

Our natural gas revenues are affected by the rates charged to customers, supply costs for 
natural gas, economic conditions in our service areas and weather. Although the FPSC 
permits us to pass through to customers the increase in price for our gas costs, higher 
rates may cause customers to purchase less natural gas. 

Our current portfolio of natural gas customers is reasonably diverse, with the largest 
customer using natural gas for the generation of electricity. We are not dependent on any 
single natural gas customer for over ten percent of our total natural gas revenues. 

Electric 
We provide electricity to our customers in  our Northwest and Northeast Florida divisions. 
Wholesale electricity is purchased from two suppliers: Gulf Power Company and JEA 
(formerly Jacksonville Electric Authority). 

During 2006 we completed negotiations with JEA and executed final contracts for the 
supply of electricity in our Northeast division beginning January 1, 2007 and our 
Northwest division from Gulf Power Company beginning in January 1, 2008. The rates 
charged to our customers significantly increased when the new contracts became effective 
in 2007 and 2008 because the prices are closer to market price. We are unable to estimate 
what impact higher rates could have on electric consumption in the future, but electricity 
usage could decrease. 
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The Northwest and Northeast divisions experience a variety of weather patterns. Hot 
summers and cold winters produce year-round electric sales that normally do not have 
highly seasonal fluctuations. None of the electric segment’s customers represent more 
than ten percent of our total electric revenues. 

The electric utility industry has not been deregulated in the state of Florida. All 
customers within a given service or fianchise area purchase from a single electricity 
provider in that area. 

Propane Gas 
We provide propane gas to customers in our Northeast, Central and South Florida 
divisions and can purchase our propane gas supply from several different wholesale 
companies. Propane gas supply into Florida comes from a diverse assortment of delivery 
methods such as waterborne barge transports that deliver to port terminals in Tampa and 
Ft. Lauderdale, and the Dixie Pipeline. Railcar and tractor trailer transport the gas to our 
storage facilities. We believe that the propane gas supply infrastructure is adequate to 
meet the needs of the industry in Florida. 

Strategy 
Our strategy is to leverage our expertise in the natural gas, electric and propane gas 
distribution business to assist us in consistently meeting our customer’s expectations. Our 
core focus is to build mutually beneficial relationships with builders, developers and 
customers with high-energy usage requirements. Included in our strategy is a plan to 
enhance our future success by expanding our service territory into new areas with high 
growth potential. 

Competition 
We do not face substantial competition in our electric divisions. This is because no other 
competitor can currently provide electricity in our areas due to FPSC regulations and 
territorial agreements between utilities. In addition, natural gas as an alternative fuel is 
only available in a small area in our electric &visions. Although our natural gas segment 
operates with the same types of guidelines, there is competition from electric utilities. 
Normally each home will have electricity as a base fuel and natural gas as an  alternative 
source of energy used for coolung and heating. Electricity competes with natural gas, in 
large part based on the cost of fuel. Our propane gas segment is unregulated and faces 
competition from other suppliers of propane gas as well as electricity and alternative 
energy sources. Competition in the propane gas segment is primarily based on price and 
service. 

Rates and Regulation 
The natural gas and electric segments are highly regulated by the FPSC. The FPSC has 
the authority to regulate our rates, conditions of service, issuance of securities and certain 
other matters affecting our natural gas and electric operations. As a result, FPSC 
regulation has a significant effect on our results of operations. The FPSC approves rates 
that are intended to permit a specified rate of return on investment and recovery of 
prudent expenses. Our rate tariffs allow the cost of natural gas and electricity to be 
passed through to  customers. Increases in the operating expenses of the regulated 
segments may require us to request increases in the rates charged to our customers. The 
FPSC has granted us the flexibility of automatically passing on increased expenses for 
certain fuel costs to customers. Other operational expenses, such as pension and medical 
expenses require us to petition the FPSC for rate increases. The FPSC is likely to grant 
rate increases to offset increased expenditures necessary for business operations. We 
successfully petitioned for an electric rate increase on March 17, 2004 and a natural gas 

http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/37643/000003 764308000002/fl Ok2007.htm 8/7/2008 



Converted by EDGARwiz Page 7 of 75 

rate increase on November 18, 2004. We are currently seeking adhtional electric rate 
relief in 2008 to recover increased costs including the recent storm preparedness 
requirements, which were mandated to improve reliability of electric utility systems. 

We are subject to federal and state regulation with respect to  soil, groundwater, employee 
health and safety matters and to environmental regulations issued by the Florida 
Department of Environmental Protection (FDEP), the United States Environmental 
Protection Agency (EPA) and other federal and state agencies. 

Prior to the widespread availabdity of natural gas, we manufactured gas for sale to  our 
customers. We have also purchased land from companies that a t  one time manufactured 
gas. The process for manufacturing gas produced by-products and residuals such as coal 
tar. The remnants of these residuals are sometimes found a t  former gas manufacturing 
sites. These sites face environmental regulation from various agencies including the 
FDEP and EPA on necessary cleanup and restoration. For information on our 
environmentally impacted sites, please see Item 3, Legal Proceedings. 

Franchises 
We hold franchises in each of the incorporated municipalities that require franchise 
agreements in order to provide natural gas and electricity. Generally, these franchises 
have terms ranging from 10 to 30 years and terminate on varying dates. We are currently 
in negotiations for franchises with certain municipalities for new service areas along with 
renewing some existing franchises. We continue to provide services to these 
municipalities and do not anticipate any interruption in our service. 

Employees 
As of February 1, 2008, we employed 356 employees, including 10 part-time and 5 
temporary employees. Of these employees, 174 were covered under union contracts with 
two labor unions, the Internal Brotherhood of Electric Workers and the International 
Chemical Workers Union. We believe that our labor relations with employees are good. 

Available Information 
We Gle periodic reports including our Form 10-Qs, Form 10-Ks and Form 8-Ks with the 
Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC). Copies of recent SEC filings as well as our 
Code of Ethics Policy can be obtained through our website http://www.fouc.com). 

Item lk Risk Factors 

A substantial portion of our revenues and, to a large extent, our profitability, 
depends upon rates determined by the FPSC. 

FPSC regulates many aspects of our natural gas and electric operating segments, 
including the retail rates that we may charge customers for natural gas and electric 
service. Our retail rates are set by the FPSC using a cost-of-service approach that takes 
into account our historical operating expenses, our fixed obligations and recovery of our 
capital investments, including potentially stranded obligations. Using this approach, the 
FPSC sets rates a t  a level calculated to recover such costs, adjusted to reflect known and 
measurable changes, plus a permitted return on investment. Any rate adjustments to 
recover increased costs or to otherwise improve our profitability must be obtained through 
a petition, or rate case, frled with the FPSC. The rates permitted by the FPSC will 
determine a substantial portion of our revenues and may have a material impact on our 
consolidated earnings, cash flows and financial position, as well as our ability to maintain 
our common stock dividend or to increase our dividends in the future. 
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Some of our natural gas and electric service costs may  not be fully recovered 
through retai l  rates. 

Our natural gas and electric service retail rates, once established by.the FPSC, remain 
futed until changed in a subsequent rate case. We may at  any time elect to  file a rate case 
to request a change in our rates or intervening parties may request that the FPSC review 
our rates for possible adjustment, subject to any limitations that may have been ordered 
by the FPSC. Earnings could be reduced if our operating costs increase more than our 
revenues during the period between rate cases. In addition, even if we decide to file a rate 
case, our request for a rate adjustment may be rejected. Third parties to a rate case or 
the FPSC staff may contend that our current rates are excessive and petition for a 
decrease in rates. A petition for rate increase by us could be denied on that or another 
basis. 

Our  business segments are sensitive to variations in weather. 

Our segments are affected by variations in general weather conditions and unusually 
severe weather. We forecast energy sales on the basis of normal weather and on historical 
average. Significant variations from normal weather could have a material impact on 
energy sales. Unusual weather, such as hurricanes, could also adversely affect operating 
costs and sales. 

Our natural gas and propane gas customers use gas primarily for heating purposes. As a 
result, our natural gas and propane gas sales peak in the winter and are more weather 
sensitive than electricity sales, which can peak in both summer and winter periods. Mild 
winter weather in Florida can be expected to negatively impact results from our natural 
gas, electric and propane gas operations. Severe weather conditions could also interrupt 
or slow down service and increase the operating costs of any of our segments. 

We operate in an increasingly competitive industry, which may affect o u r  fu ture  
earnings. 

Natural Gas 
The natural gas distribution industry has been subject to  competitive forces for several 
years. We receive our supply of natural gas a t  thirteen city gate stations connected to 
an interstate pipeline system owned by FGT, one gate station connected to an intrastate 
pipeline owned by Florida City Gas Company, one meter connected to the Indiantown Gas 
Company distribution system in Indiantown, Florida, and one meter connected to the 
TECO Peoples Gas distribution system in Ocala, Florida. Gulfstream Natural Gas 
System currently serves peninsular Florida with interstate natural gas transmission 
service; however, we cannot predict if this system will be extended to other areas near our 
existing facilities and how it could affect our natural gas operations. 

Electric 
The U.S. electric power industry has been undergoing restructuring in many areas. There 
is competition in wholesale power sales on a national level. Some states have mandated or 
encouraged competition at  the retail level. While there is active wholesale competition in 
Florida, the retail electric business has remained substantially free kom direct 
competition. Changes in the competitive environment caused by legislation, regulation, 
market conditions or initiatives of other electric power providers, particularly with respect 
to retail competition, could adversely affect our financial condition and results of 
operations. To the extent competitive pressures increase and the pricing and sale of 
electricity assumes more of the characteristics of a commodity business, the economics of 
our electric operating segment could change. In  addition, regulatory changes may increase 
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access to electricity transmission grids by utility and non-utility purchasers and sellers of 
electricity, thus potentially resulting in a significant number of additional competitors. 

Propane Gas 
Our propane gas business is our only non-regulated business segment. Because it is not 
regulated, we face significant competition. Our propane gas business competes directly 
with other distributors of propane gas, and other sources of energy including natural gas 
and electric. If we cannot compete effectively in the propane gas business, whether on the 
basis of price, customer service, alternative energy sources or otherwise, it would have a 
material adverse effect on our financial condition and results of operations. 

Our business could be adversely affected if our supply of natural gas is 
interrupted. 

FGTs pipeline system transports all of our natural gas. FGT is owned by Citrus 
Corporation, which is jointly owned by Cross Country Energy Corporation and El Paso 
Corporation. Our ability to receive a normal supply of natural gas could adversely affect 
earnings if there is an interruption in FGTs service. 

General economic conditions may adversely affect our segments. 

Our segments are affected by general economic conditions. The consumption of the energy 
we supply is directly tied to the economy. A downturn in the economy in our local areas of 
operations, as well as on the state, national and international levels, could adversely 
affect the performance of our segments. Changes in political climate, includmg terrorist 
activities, could further negatively impact our performance. If tourism is down, then the 
demand for the energy we supply is reduced. 

Commodity price changes may affect the operating costs and competitive 
position of our segments. 

Our segments are sensitive to changes in coal, gas, oil and other commodity prices. If we 
are unable to increase the rates we charge to customers to reflect increases in these 
commodity prices, our margins and earnings will be lowered. If increased prices for any of 
these commodities persist for substantial periods, our competitive position could be 
adversely affected by customers who switch to cheaper energy sources. Further, natural 
gas prices have been increasingly volatile and, accordingly, the earnings from our natural 
gas operations are increasingly difficult to predict. Recent increases in oil prices may have 
an adverse impact on the Companfs earnings. 

We could incur material expenses as a result of our obligations to comply with 
existing and new environmental laws and regulations. 
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We are subject to environmental regulations in connection with the ongoing conduct of our 
business and to civil and criminal liability for failure to comply with these regulations. In 
addition, new environmental laws and regulations, or  new interpretations of existing laws 
and regulations, affecting our operations or facilities may be adopted which may cause us 
to incur additional expenses. 

We are subject to federal and state legislation with respect to soil, groundwater, employee 
health and safety matters and to environmental regulations issued by the FDEP, the EPA 
and other federal and state agencies. We may incur material future expenditures in order 
to comply with the environmental laws and regulations. 

We rely on a limited number of natural gas and electric suppliers, the loss of 
which could materially adversely affect our financial condition and results of 
operations. 

Two pipeline suppliers under several contracts expiring at  various dates through 2023, 
transport our natural gas to us. These contracts have provisions which allow us to extend 
the terms ranging &om 2020 to 2032. Our electric services are provided by two suppliers 
under contracts which expire in 2017. If we were to lose any of these contracts we might 
not be able to replace the corresponding energy source on acceptable terms, if at all. In 
addition, in the event of the expiration of the contracts, we might not be able to renew 
them on favorable terms, if a t  all. As a result, the loss of any of these suppliers, the 
termination of any of these supply contracts, or the non-renewal of any of these supply 
contracts before or upon their expiration could have material adverse effects on our 
financial condition and results of operations. 

New supply contracts could result in substantial increases to our prices, and 
could materially adversely affect our financial condition and results of 
operations. 

We have two pipeline suppliers for natural gas and two electric suppliers under contract 
for supply through various dates in the future. 

The recent renewal of the electricity supply contracts resulted in the cost of electricity 
increasing significantly over historic prices. Extensions or renewals of our natural gas 
contracts could result in the cost of natural gas increasing. Although these increases are 
currently passed through to our customers, they could have a significant impact on our 
customers’ usage. If recovery of fuel costs was denied by the FPSC in the future, it would 
have a significant impact on our earnings and our financial condition. 

Fluctuation in prices under long-term purchase and transportation 
commitments may have an adverse effect on our financial condition and results 
of operations. 

To ensure a reliable supply of electricity and natural gas a t  competitive prices, we have 
entered into purchase and transportation contracts with various suppliers and producers, 
which expire a t  various dates through 2023. Purchase prices under these contracts are 
determined by formulas either based on market prices or at fixed prices. 

As of December 31, 2007, we have firm purchase and transportation commitments 
adequate to supply our expected sales requirements for electricity with contracts that will 
expire in 2017. Our contract in the Northeast division of the electric segment began 
January 1,2007 and expires on December 31, 2017, and our contract with a supplier for 
the Northwest division began January 1, 2008 and expires on December 31, 2017. 
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Our natural gas pipeline transportation contracts expire in parts in 2010, 2015 and 2023. 
We are committed to pay demand or similar fixed charges monthly through 2023 related 
to the natural gas pipeline transportation agreements. Significant fluctuation in prices 
under these long-term purchase and transportation commitments may have a material 
adverse effect on our financial condition and results of operations. 

Problems with operations could materially adversely impact us. 

We are subject to various operational risks, including accidents, outages, equipment 
breakdowns or failures, or operations below expected levels of performance or efficiency. 
Problems such as the breakdown or failure of transmission lines, pipelines or other 
equipment or processes and interruptions in service which would result in performance 
below affected levels of output or efficiency, particularly if extending for prolonged periods 
of time, would have a material adverse effect on our financial condition and results of 
operations. 

We are vulnerable to interest rate changes and may not have access to capital at 
favorable rates, if at all. 

Changes in interest rates can affect our cost of borrowing on our line of credit, on 
refinancing of debt maturities and on incremental borrowing to fund new investments. 
Because our stock is not widely held and has a low trading volume, we may not be able to 
access the equity market or may be limited in the amount of equity financing. If we are 
unable to obtain equity or debt financing on satisfactory terms, our ability to fund capital 
expenditures and other commitments will be impaired. Moreover, even if available, the 
capital may not be available on favorable terms and the cost of such financing could 
reduce our margins and materially adversely affect our results of operations. 

Failure to effectively and efficiently manage our growth, as well as changes in 
our business strategies, could have a negative impact on our performance. 

An essential part of our business strategy is to grow our businesses. Much of our growth 
depends on our ability to find attractive development opportunities and to obtain the 
necessary financing for them. Our outlook is based on our expectation that we will be 
successful in finding and capitalizing on development opportunities, but our efforts may 
not be successful. Our failure to effectively and efficiently manage our growth, as well as 
changes in our business strategies, may have a material adverse effect on our financial 
condition and results of operations. If we grow our business with acquisitions there is a 
risk the acquisition will not have a positive effect on our financial condition. 

Our ability to pay dividends on our common stock is limited. 

We cannot guarantee that we will continue to pay dividends at  our current annual 
dividend rate or at all. In particular, our ability to pay or increase dividends in the future 
will depend upon, among other things, our future earnings, our cash requirements and 
our debt covenants. 
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Provisions in our certificate of reincorporation, certain agreements, and the 
Florida Business Corporation Act may inhibit  a takeover, which could adversely 
affect t he  value of our common stock. 

Our certificate of reincorporation as well as provisions of the Florida Business 
Corporation Act (FBCA), contain provisions that could delay or prevent a change of 
control in our management that shareholders might consider favorable and may prevent 
them from receiving a takeover premium for their shares. 

Our certificate of reincorporation contains provisions that make it more difficult to obtain 
control of our company through transactions which have not received the approval of our 
board of directors. These provisions include supermajority voting requirements for 
certain transactions with afmated persons, staggering the terms of the members of our 
board of directors, and certain procedural requirements relating to shareholder meetings 
and amendments to our certificate of reincorporation or bylaws. 

In addition, Florida has enacted legislation that may deter or frustrate takeovers of 
Florida corporations. Subject to certain exceptions, the "Control Share Acquisitions" 
section of the FBCA generally provides that shares acquired in excess of certain specified 
thresholds, beginning at  20% of a corporation's outstanding voting shares, will not possess 
any voting rights unless such voting rights are approved by a majority vote of the 
corporation's disinterested shareholders. 

The "AEXated Transactions" section of the FBCA generally requires majority approval by 
disinterested directors or supermajority approval by disinterested shareholders of certain 
specified transactions (such as mergers, consolidations, sales of assets, issuance or 
transfer of shares or reclassifications of securities) between a corporation and a holder of 
more than 10% of the outstanding shares of the corporation, or any affiliate of such 
shareholder. 

We have agreements with our three executive officers that provide for significant 
payments to those executives upon a change in control under certain circumstances. The 
existence of these contracts may make an  acquisition of our company less attractive to a 
possible buyer. Finally, our pension plan contains provisions that upon a change in 
control an acquirer will be limited in changing the pension plan for a period of time 
without incurring additional pension expenses for enhanced benefits to pension 
participants. 

Conflict or turmoil in oil producing countries could impact fu ture  prices for 
commodities including natural gas, propane gas and electricity, and increases 
in these prices could materially affect our financial condition and results of 
operations. 

Worldwide turmoil could cause the cost of crude oil and its associated products to rise on 
concerns of the conflicts interfering with the production of crude oil. If these conflicts are 
large, escalate or spread, the increase to the cost of all fuel-related commodities could be 
substantial. These increases could materially adversely affect our financial condition and 
results of operations. 

If conservation costs incurred are determined not to be appropriate for 
recovery through conservation programs and rates, these costs would directly 
impact our net operating income and could significantly decrease our earnings. 
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The Company participates in energy conservation programs to provide incentives to 
customers to conserve energy. Costs for these programs are passed directly through to our 
regulated customers and are recovered through conservation rates. These programs and 
costs are reviewed and approved by the Florida Public Service Commission on an annual 
basis. There can be no assurance the FPSC will continue to approve our recovery of those 
costs and this could have an adverse effect on our operations. 

Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments 

None 

Item 2. Properties 

We have natural gas, electric and propane gas related properties. These properties include 
transmission, distribution, storage and general facilities at various locations in our service 
areas. We do not have generating facilities. We maintain property that is adequate for our 
current operations and we expand our existing facilities as required by growth or other 
operational needs. 

We own natural gas mains that distribute gas through 1,611 miles of pipe located in 
Central and South Florida. Additionally, we have adequate gate stations to handle receipt 
of the gas in each distribution system. 

In the electric segment, we own 22 miles of electric transmission lines located in 
Northeast Florida and 1,092 miles of electric distribution lines located in Northeast and 
Northwest Florida. The distribution lines are installed both under and above ground and 
many of the coastal locations have under ground facilities. AU transmission lines are 
installed above ground. Additionally, we own various substations and regulator stations 
that are used in our electric operations. 

Our propane gas segment has bulk storage facilities and tank installations on customers' 
premises. We also have 16 community gas systems that dlstribute propane gas to 
customers in specific developments. These systems are subject to the Federal Department 
of Transportation Office of Pipeline Safety Regulations. 

We own office and warehouse facilities in Northwest, Northeast, Central, and South 
Florida, which are used for our operations and storage of materials. We also have various 
easements and other assets located throughout our service areas that are utilized by our 
operations. 

We own a three-story building in West Palm Beach where our corporate headquarters are 
located. 

All of our property is subject to a lien collateralizing our funded indebtedness under our 
Mortgage Indenture as discussed in Note 1-J in Notes to Consolidated Financial 
Statements. 

Item 3. Legal Proceedings 

We use or have used several properties with contamination that have pending or 
threatened environmental litigation. We are in the process of investigating and assessing 
this litigation. We intend to vigorously defend our rights in this litigation. We have 
insurance and rate relief to cover losses or expenses incurred as a result of this litigation. 
We believe all future contamination assessment and remedial costs, legal fees and other 
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related expenses would not exceed the combined sum of any insurance proceeds received 
and any rate relief granted. 

West Palm Beach Site 
The Company is currently evaluating remedial options to respond to environmental 
impacts to soil and groundwater at and in the immediate vicinity of a parcel of property 
owned by it in West Palm Beach, Florida upon which the Company previously operated a 
gasification plant. The Company entered into a Consent Order with the FDEP effective 
April 8, 1991, that requires the Company to delineate the extent of soil and groundwater 
impacts associated with the prior operation of the gasification plant and to remediate such 
soil and groundwater impacts, if necessary. The Company completed field investigations 
for the contamination assessment task in October 2006. Thereafter, the Company 
retained an engineering consultant, the RETEC Group, Inc. (RETEC), to perform a 
feasibility study to evaluate appropriate remedies for the site to respond to the reported 
soil and groundwater impacts. On November 30, 2006, RETEC transmitted a feasibility 
study to the Company and FDEP. The feasibility study evaluated a wide range of 
remedial alternatives. The total costs for the remedies evaluated in the feasibility study 
ranged from a low of $2.8 million to a high of $54.6 million. Based on the likely 
acceptability of proven remedial technologies described in the feasibility study and 
implemented at  similar sites, consulting/remediation costs are projected to range from 
$4.6 million to $17.9 million. This range of costs covers such remedies as in situ 
solidification for the deeper impacts, excavation of surficial soils, installation of a barrier 
wall with a permeable biotreatment zone, or some combination of these remedies. 

By letter dated May 7, 2007, FDEP provided its comments to the feasibility study, the 
substance of which was discussed a t  a meeting between the Company and FDEP on 
September 14, 2007. A response to the comments was submitted by the Company to 
FDEP on October 31, 2007. We are currently awaiting FDEP's comments to the 
response. 

Based on the information provided in the feasibility study, the remaining legal fees are 
currently projected to be approximately $295,000. Consulting and remediation costs are 
projected to range from $4.6 million to $17.9 million. Thus, the Company's total probable 
legal and cleanup costs for the West Palm Beach site are currently projected to range from 
$4.9 million to $18.2 million. 

Sanford Site 
The Company owns a parcel of property located in Sanford, Florida, upon which a 
gasification plant was operated prior to the Company's acquisition of the property. 
Following discovery of soil and groundwater impacts on the property, the Company has 
participated with four former owners and operators of the gasification plant in the funding 
of numerous investigations of the extent of the impacts and the identification of an 
appropriate remedy. On or about March 25, 1998, the Company executed an 
Administrative Order on Consent (AOC) with the four former owners and operators 
(collectively, the Group) and the EPA. This AOC obligated the Group to implement a 
Remedial InvestigatiodFeasibility Study (RIIFS) and to pay EPA's past and future 
oversight costs. The Group also entered into a Participation Agreement and an Escrow 
Agreement on or about April 13, 1998 (WFS Participation Agreement). Work under the 
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RIlFS AOC and RI/FS Participation Agreement is now complete and the Company has no 
further obligations under either agreement. 

In late September 2006, EPA sent a Special Notice Letter to the Company, notifying it, 
and the other responsible parties a t  the site (Florida Power Corporation, Florida Power & 
Light Company, Atlanta Gas Light Company, and the City of Sanford, Florida, collectively 
with FPUC, "the Sanford Group"), of EPA's selection of a final remedy for OU1 (soils), 
OU2 (groundwater), and OU3 (sediments) for the site. The total estimated remediation 
costs for the Sanford gasification plant site are now projected to be $12.9 million. The 
Sanford Group was further advised that EPA was willing to negotiate a consent decree 
with the Sanford Group to provide for the implementation of the final remedy approved by 
EPA for the site. 

In January 2007, the Company and other members of the Sanford Group signed a Third 
Participation Agreement, which provides for funding the final remedy approved by EPA 
for the site. The Company's share of remediation costs under the Third Participation 
Agreement is set a t  a maximum of $650,000, providing the total cost of the final 
remedy does not exceed $13 million. At present, it is not anticipated that the total cost 
will exceed $13 million. If it does, the Sanford Group members have agreed to negotiate 
in good faith a t  such time that it appears that the total cost will exceed $13 million for the 
allocation of the additional cost. The Company has advised the other members of the 
Sanford Group that the Company is unwilling at  this time to  agree to pay any sum in 
excess of the $650,000 committed by the Company in the Third Participation Agreement. 

On June 26, 2007, the Sanford Group transmitted to EPA a Consent Decree signed by all 
Group Members, providing for the implementation by the Sanford Group of the remedy 
selected by EPA for the site. The consent decree is currently being circulated within EPA 
and the United States Department of Justice for execution by those parties. Thereafter, 
the consent decree will be lodged with the federal court in Orlando, Florida. Following a 
public comment period, it is anticipated that the federal court will enter the consent 
decree. The Sanford Group will then be obligated to implement the remedy approved by 
EPA for the site. 

Remaining legal feeslcosts are currently projected to be approximately $77,000. The 
Company's obligation under the Third Participation Agreement is $650,000. Thus, the 
Company's total probable legal and cleanup costs for the Sanford site are currently 
projected to be approximately $727,000. 

Pensacola Site 
We are the prior owner/operator of the former Pensacola gasification plant, located in 
Pensacola, Florida. Following notification on October 5, 1990 that FDEP had determined 
that we were one of several responsible parties for any environmental impacts associated 
with the former gasification plant site, we entered into cost sharing agreements with 
three other responsible parties providing for the funding of certain contamination 
assessment activities a t  the site. 

Consulting and remediation costs are projected to be $26,000 and legal fees are projected 
to be $4,000, for total probable costs for the Pensacola site of $30,000. 

Key West Site 
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From 1927-1938, we owned and operated a gasification plant in Key West, Florida. The 
plant discontinued operations in the late 1940s; the property on which the plant was 
located is currently used for a propane gas distribution business. In March 1993, a 
Preliminary Contamination Assessment Report (PCAR) was prepared by a consultant 
jointly retained by the current site owner and the Company and was delivered to FDEP. 
The PCAR reported that very limited soil and groundwater impacts were present a t  the 
site. By letter dated December 20, 1993, FDEP notified us that the site did not warrant 
further "CERCLA consideration and a Site Evaluation Accomplished disposition is 
recommended." FDEP then referred the matter to its Marathon office for consideration of 
whether additional work would be required by FDEP's &strict office under Florida law. 

Consulting and remediation costs are projected to be $83,000 and legal fees are projected 
to be $10,000, for total probable costs for the Key West site of $93,000. 

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders 

None 

Executive Officers of the Regis t rant  

The following sets forth certain information about the executive officers of the Company as 
of February 17,2008. 

"e 

John T. English 

Charles L. Stein 

George M. Bachman 

& Position 

64 Chairman of the Board 
Chief Executive Officer 
President 
Chief Operating Officer 

58 Chief Operating Officer 
Senior Vice President 

48 Corporate Secretary 
Chief Financial Officer 
Treasurer 

Date 

2006 - Present 
1998 - Present 
1997 - Present 
1997 - 2000 

2001 - Present 
1997 - Present 

2004 - Present 
2001 - Present 
2001 - Present 

Mr. English was Senior Vice President of the Company from 1993 preceding his 
appointment as President and Chief Operating Officer. 

Mr. Stein was Vice President of the Company from 1993 preceding his appointment as 
Senior Vice President. 

Mr. Bachman was Controller of the Company from 1996 preceding his appointment as 
Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer. 

Each of these executive officers has an employment agreement dated March 31,2006 with 
a term through March 30, 2009, which can be renewed by the Board prior to the expiration 
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of the agreement subject to earlier resignation or removal. There are no family 
relationships among any of the executive officers and directors of the Company. 

PART 11 
Item 5. Market for Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters 

and Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities 

Quarterly Stock Prices and Dividends Paid 

Our common shares are traded on the American Stock Exchange under the symbol FPU. 
The quarterly dividends declared and the reported last sale price range per share of our 
common stock as reported by the American Stock Exchange for the most recent two years 
were as follows: 

2007 2006 
Stock Prices Dividends Stock Prices Dividends 

Quarter ended LOW High Declared L O W  High Declared 
March 31 $11.90 $13.50 50.1075 $13.25 $14.50 $0.1033 
June 30 11.01 12.91 0.1125 11.86 14.40 0.1075 
September 30 11.15 12.49 0.1125 12.61 14.42 0.1075 
December 31 11.24 12.83 0.1125 13.10 14.05 0.1075 

As of February 5, 2008, there were approximately 3,985 holders of record of our common 
shares. 

We intend to pay quarterly cash dwidends for the foreseeable future. Our dividend policy 
is reviewed on an ongoing basis by our Board of Directors and is dependent upon future 
earnings, cash flow, financial condition, capital requirements and other factors. Our 
Fifteenth Supplemental Indenture of Mortgage and Deed of Trust restricts the amount 
that is available for cash dividends. At December 31, 2007, approximately $9.6 million of 
retained earnings were free of such restriction and available for the payment of dividends. 

Securities Authorized for Issuance under Equity Compensation Plans 

Equity Compensation Plan Information 

Plan Category Number of Securities remaining 
available for future issuance under 
equity compensation plans 

Equity compensation plans approved by security holders 41,623* 
Equity compensation plans not approved by security holders 
Total 41,623 

* This includes 17,564 shares for the Non-Employee Director Compensation Plan. This plan was adopted by the 
Board of Directors on March 18,2005 and was approved at the 2005 meeting of shareholders. This also includes 
24,059 shares for the Employee Stock Purchase Plan. 

Item 6. Selected Financial Data 

(Dollars in  thousands, except per share data) 
2003 (1) 
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Years Ended December 31, 2007 2006 2005 2004(3) (3) 
Revenues (2) $ 136,542 $ 134,781 $ 130,285 $ 110,131 $ 102,822 

Gross profit (2) $ 48,721 $ 48,810 $ 47,481 $ 40,781 $ 37,832 
Earnings: 

Continuing operations $ 3,301 $ 4,169 $ 4,248 $ 3,594 $ 2,522 
Discontinued operations (1) 9,901 
Net income $ 3,301 $ 4,169 $ 4,248 3,594 $ 12,423 

Earnings per common share (basic 
and diluted): 

Continuing operations $ 0.54 $ 0.69 $ 0.71 $ 0.60 $ 0.43 
Discontinued operations (1) 1.69 
Total $ 0.54 $ 0.69 $ 0.71 $ 2.12 

Dividends declared per common 
share $ 0.45 $ 0.43 $ 0.41 $ 0.40 $ 0.39 

Total assets (2) $ 192,344 $ 181,234 $ 182,666 $ 170,503 $ 160,944 
Utility plant - net $ 138,372 $ 129,211 $ 123,061 $ 117,191 $ 107,942 
Current debt $ 12,531 $ 3,466 $ 9,558 $ 5,825 $ 2,278 
Long-term debt $ 49,363 $ 50,702 $ 50,620 $ 50,538 $ 50,454 
Common shareholders' equity $ 48,946 $ 47,572 $ 45,503 $ 43,213 $ 41,463 

Note to the Selected Financial Data: 

(1) On December 3,2002, FPU entered into an agreement to sell the assets of its water utility system to the City 
of Fernandina Beach. The transaction closed on March 21, 2003. Revenues, Gross profit and Utility plant-net 
do not include discontinued operations. 

(2) Prior period amounts have been reclassified to conform to current year presentation. 
(3) On July 25, 2005 a three-for-two stock split in the form of a stock dividend was issued to the shareholders of 

record on July 15, 2005. AU common share information has been restated to reflect the stock split for all 
periods presented. 

Item 7. 
of Operation 

Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results 

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS 

General 
The effects of seasonal weather conditions, timing of rate increases, fluctuations in 
demand due to the cost of fuel passed on to customers, and the migration of winter 
residents and tourists to Florida during the winter season, have a significant impact on 
income. 

Revenues and Gross Profit Summary 
The FPSC allows us to bill and include in our revenue the costs of fuel, conservation, and 
revenue-based taxes, incurred in our natural gas and electric segments. Revenues 
collected for these expenses have no effect on results of operations and fluctuations could 
distort the relationship of revenues between periods. Gross profit is defined as gross 
operating revenues less fuel, conservation and revenue-based taxes that are passed 
directly through to customers. Because gross profit eliminates these cost recovery 
revenues, we believe it provides a more meaningful basis for evaluating utility revenues. 
The following summary compares gross profit, units sold, and average customers for the 
past three years. Units sold are shown in one thousand Dekatherm (MDth) for gas and 
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Megawatt Hour (MWH) for electric. 

Revenues and Gross Profit 
(Dollars in thousands) 

Years Ended December 31, 
2007 2006 2005 

Revenues $64,850 $71,139 $69,094 
Cost of fuel and other pass through costs 38,251 43,909 42,815 
Gross Profit $26,599 $27,230 $26,279 

Units sold (MDth) 6,042 6,230 6,224 
Customers (average for the period) 51,589 51,211 50,246 

Revenues $55,521 $48,527 $47,450 

Natural Gas 

Electric 

Cost of fuel and other pass through costs 
Gross Profit 
units sold (MWH) 
Customers (average for the period) 

ProDane Gas 
Revenues 
Cost of fuel 
Gross Profit 

41,142 34,259 33,352 
$14,379 $14,268 $14,098 
810.604 849.124 814.353 ,~ ~ ~. 

31,074 30,635 30,244 

$16,171 $15,115 $13,741 
8,428 7,803 6,637 

$7,743 $7,312 $7,104 
~~ 

Units sold (MDth) 597 621 640 
Customers (average for the penod) 13,140 13,048 12,375 

Revenues $136,542 $134,781 $130,285 
Cost of fuel and other pass through costs 87,821 85,971 82,804 
Gross Profit $48,721 $48,810 $47,481 
Customers (average for the period) 95,803 94,894 92,865 

Consolidated 

Natural Gas 
Natural gas revenues decreased $6.3 million, or 9% in 2007 over 2006. As the cost of 
natural gas continued to decline, the revenue to recover the fuel costs, which are passed 
through to customers, decreased by $5.7 million. Our gross profit, which excludes 
expenses directly passed through to customers, decreased by $631,000 or 2%. Although 
customer growth was up in 2007 compared to  2006, we experienced a 3% decrease in units 
sold primarily due to milder weather. 

Natural gas revenues increased $2.0 million, or 3% in 2006 over 2005 primarily due to 
increased revenue collected for taxes passed directly through to customers. A change in 
legislation regarding the calculation of Gross Receipts tax became effective January 1, 
2006, and along with an increase to overall revenues, increased these taxes paid by our 
customers by approximately $500,000. Franchise fee revenues also increased by 
approximately $500,000 due to increased rates and area expansion. 

Natural gas gross profit increased $951,000, or 4% in 2006 over 2005. We had higher 
revenue and gross profit in 2006 compared to 2005 primarily due to billed revenue not 
exceeding the FPSC allowable earnings as much as in the prior year. In 2006, we reduced 
billed revenues and gross profit by our estimate of over-earnings of $72,000 for the year. 
Our estimate for 2005 was recorded at $700,000 in 2005 and we reduced that estimate in 
2006 by $50,000 to  $650,000. The combined effect of this was to increase our revenues and 
gross profit over the prior year by approximately $678,000. Other factors contributing to 
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the increase in revenues and gross profit were 2% customer growth and storm surcharge 
revenues, which became effective November 2005. The revenues and gross profit increases 
were slightly offset by the loss of approximately $100,000 of revenue from two customers 
who went off-line for several months to do maintenance work. 

Electric 
Electric revenues increased $7.0 million or 14% in 2007 over 2006. Cost of fuel and other 
costs that were passed through to customers contributed to $6.9 million of the increase as 
a result of the new fuel contracts effective January 1, 2007 in our  Northeast division. 
Gross profit, which excludes the fuel and other costs passed through in  revenue, was flat 
compared to 2006. Although the number of customers increased by 1%, there was a 
marginal decrease in units sold, excluding units sold to industrial customers, as a result of 
possible conservation measures taken by our customers due to the fuel cost increases. 

Electric revenues increased $1.1 million in 2006 over 2005. Cost of fuel and other costs 
that were passed through to customers contributed approximately $900,000 of the 
increase. Gross profit increased $170,000 or 1% in 2006 over 2005. The increase in gross 
profit was primarily due to a slight increase in customer growth and units sold. 

Propane Gas 
Propane revenues increased $1.1 million, or 7%. Higher fuel costs caused $625,000 of this 
increase. Gross profit increased $431,000 or 6% in 2007 compared to 2006. We 
experienced a 4% decrease in units sold to customers due to warmer weather; however, 
this was offset by increased rates and service fees. 

Propane revenues increased $1.4 million, or 10% and gross profit increased $208,000 or 
3% in 2006 compared to 2005. Revenues increased primarily due to rising fuel costs. 
Although customers increased by 5% in 2006, the usage per customer declined by 8% 
contributing to a decrease of 3% in units sold. Warmer weather was the primary reason 
for this decrease in usage per customer in 2006 compared to 2005. The increase in gross 
profit was minimal when compared to 2005 primarily due to pre-buy gains of $383,000 
realized in 2005 but not in 2006. 

Operating Expenses 
Operating expenses include operation, maintenance, depreciation, amortization and taxes 
other than income taxes, and exclude fuel costs, conservation and taxes based on revenues 
that are directly passed through to customers and recovered in revenues. 

Natural gas 
Electric 

Operating Expenses 
(Dollars in thousands) 

Year Ended December 31. 
2007 2006 2005 

$ 21,951 $ 21,112 $ 20,230 
11,726 11,215 10,596 

Propane gas 6,223 6,306 6,018 
Total Operating Expenses $ 39,900 $ 38,633 $ 36,844 

Natural Gas 
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Natural gas operating expenses increased $839,000, or 4%, in 2007 as compared with 
2006. Administrative expenses accounted for $503,000 of the increase and are discussed in 
a separate section below. Depreciation expense increased $291,000 due in part to 
construction of mains and addltional meters to dmtribute gas to new developments in 
South Florida along with increasing capacity requirements for existing customers. As a 
result of a new management focus to offset the effects of the construction industry and 
housing market slowdown, we increased our efforts to provide improved customer service 
and upgraded our existing meter equipment resulting in an increase of related expenses of 
$287,000. This increase was offset by a $245,000 reduction in sales expense resulting from 
the elimination of three sales positions due to cut backs related to the slowdown in the 
housing market. 

Natural gas operating expenses increased $882,000, or 4%, in 2006 as compared with 
2005. Outside of the normal inflationary impacts on our expenses, customer account 
expenses increased by $237,000 as a result of our customer service focus initiated in 2005 
based on our strategic plan. We continued the focus on this area and increased the 
number of employees in an effort to respond more effectively to customers. Bad debt 
provision increased $49,000 over the prior year primarily due to increasing revenues, 
aging accounts receivable on several major accounts, and the slowing housing economy. 
We increased our collection efforts in the fourth quarter of 2006 and continued those 
efforts in 2007. 

In 2006, we had additional increases of $90,000 to sales expense resulting from initiatives 
to boost sales by increasing sales staff. Depreciation expense increased $137,000 
principally due to construction of mains and new meters to dlstribute gas to a growing 
number of new developments in South Florida and increasing capacity requirements for 
existing customers. 

Electric 
Electric operating expenses increased $511,000, or 5%, in 2007 as compared with 2006. 
Administrative expenses accounted for $437,000 of the increase and are discussed in a 
separate section below. Due to a quiet hurricane season this year, we were able to re- 
direct work efforts and make some operating and safety improvements of our o v e r d  
electric system, which increased operating expenses by $136,000. As a result of a milder 
storm season, we experienced a decrease in weather-related maintenance of conduct, lines 
and poles expenses of $184,000. 

Electric operating expenses increased $619,000, or 6%, in 2006 as compared with 2005. As 
a result of our efforts to inform and educate our electric customers about the expected 
2007 and 2008 fuel rate increases in upcoming bills, sales expense increased by $120,000. 
Customer account expenses increased $106,000 in 2006 over the prior year mainly due to 
increased bad debt provisions due to higher sales and slower housing economy. 
Depreciation expense increased $202,000 largely due to major construction work done in 
the latter part of 2005 and the beginning of 2006. This included the rebuilding of a 
transmission sub-station, the rebuildmg of an entire distribution sub-station with two 
transformers and the replacement of a failed sub-distribution station transformer. 

Propane Gas 
Propane gas operating expenses decreased $83,000, or 1%, in 2007 as compared with 
2006. The major reason for the decrease was lower selling expenses as a result of a drop in 
demand from the slowdown of new construction in South Florida. Additionally, the 
Summer Glen project was converted from a propane system to natural gas in the fourth 
quarter of 2007 causing all related expenses to shift to our natural gas segment. 
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Propane gas operating expenses increased $288,000, or 5%, in 2006 as compared with 
2005. Depreciation expense increased $99,000 for the addition of plant assets including a 
propane gas delivery system to increase the efficiency of our deliveries and improve our 
overall customer satisfaction. Aging accounts receivable, slowing housing economy and 
increasing revenues contributed to an increase in our bad debt expense over 2005. 

Administrative Expenses 
Administrative expenses increased $1,005,000, or 11%, in 2007 over 2006. Several 
unusual claims resulting in settlements were the primary reasons for the $796,000 
increase to our liability expenses. These claims were for several general liability suits 
related to auto, employment and liability issues. In addition, our payroll expenses 
increased $163,000 as a result of annual pay raises. 

Administrative expenses increased $487,000, or 6%, in 2006 over 2005. These expenses 
generally were related to  all of our operating segments. To continue to  adequately support 
our internal and external customers, we increased staffing in our administrative areas. 
Payroll increases of $322,000 related to an increased number of employees, annual pay 
raises and normal inflationary impacts. In 2006, we discontinued eligibility to  our defined 
benefit pension plan for new employees and replaced the defined benefit pension plan 
with a 401K-match plan for new employees. This change will take time to reduce pension 
expense; we had an increase of $203,000 in our pension expenses in 2006. Medical costs 
increased $120,000 over 2005. 

Total Other Income and Deductions 
Other income and deductions include revenues and expenses from sales, installation, and 
service of merchandise; gains and losses on hsposal of property; interest expense; and 
miscellaneous income and expenses. Merchandise sales and installation and interest 
expenses are the largest components of this section and are discussed below. 

Merchandise and Services Revenue and Expenses 
Merchandise and services revenue and expense decreased by $1,145,000 and $1,270,000, 
respectively, although our overall profit increased $125,000. A lower number of product 
installations actually improved our profit margin on the installation side of our business. 
We had less customer owned tank installations and we discontinued generator sales, both 
are historically less profitable. We continue to face a slowdown in the construction 
industry and housing market to an even greater degree in 2007, and this along with a 
quiet hurricane season, dramatically reduced the demand for new merchandise. 
Management does not anticipate the housing market will rebound in 2008, and expects 
reduced sales levels to continue. 

Although merchandise and services revenue decreased by approximately $268,000 in 
2006, the overall profitability in this area increased by $325,000 compared to 2005. This 
was primarily a result of significant strategic changes made by management. These 
changes included revising the product markup structure, increasing installation fees and 
increasing employee training. We experienced a revenue decrease due to lower demand 
for merchandise as a result of a quiet hurricane season and the slowdown of new 
construction projects in our areas due to the downturn in the housing market. 
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Interest Expense 
Interest expense consists of interest on bonds, short-term borrowings, over earnings and 
customer deposits. In 2007, interest expense increased $262,000, including $76,000 
interest on our 2005 over-earnings that was approved by the Commission for the natural 
gas segment and interest on our increased credit line for adhtional fundmg of over $3 
million to purchase the new site to relocate our South Florida operations facility. 

Other 
Other non-operating income increased $84,000 compared to the prior year primarily due 
to income generated from a sale of land at  Rainbow Lakes. 

Income Taxes 
Income tax expense decreased in 2007 by $541,000 over 2006 due to lower taxable income. 

Liquidity and Capital Resources 

Summary of Primary Sources and Uses of Cash 
(Dollars in thousands) 

Year Ended December 31. 
m 7  2006 w 

Sources of Cash 
Operating activities, including working capital changes 
Net proceeds on short-term debt 
Other sources of cash 

Construction expenditures 
Dividends paid 
Net payment on short-term debt 
Other uses of cash 

Uses of Cash: 

Net source (use) of cash 

Cash Flows 

$14,526 $20,090 $10,213 
7,656 3,733 

923 1,179 1,214 

16,740 13,116 12,441 
2,681 2,551 2,448 

6,092 
290 121 75 

$3,394 $ (611) $ 196 
~ 

Operating Activities 
Net cash flow provided by operating activities decreased in 2007 by approximately $5.6 
million compared to 2006. We had a $6.4 million decrease related to refunding the prior 
over-recovery of fuel and other pass through costs. 

Net cash flow provided by operating activities increased in 2006 by approximately $10 
million compared to 2005. Fuel and other pass through costs accounted for $6.5 million of 
the increase. This increase resulted from the collection of the prior year's under-recoveries 
of $3.4 million and over-recoveries of $3.1 million in 2006. Amounts over-recovered are 
refunded to customers in subsequent calendar years. Lower fuel costs during the latter 
part of the year in our natural gas segment contributed to a decrease in receivables and 
increase in cash of $3 million. The lower fuel costs and timing of payments to our major 
fuel suppliers resulted in a decrease to operating cash of $1 million. Income taxes paid 
increased by approximately $600,000 primarily due to the tax effect of the collection of 
prior year's fuel under-recoveries. 

Znvesting Activities 
Capital expenditures increased in 2007 compared to 2006 by approximately $3.6 milhon. 
The major component of the increase was the purchase of land for approximately $3.5 
milhon for the future site of our South Florida operations facility. 
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Capital expenditures increased in 2006 compared to 2005 by approximately $700,000. The 
increase in 2006 included expenditures for transportation equipment in our electric 
segment for approximately $400,000, vehicles in our natural gas segment above 2005 
levels of approximately $600,000, and various other typical capital expenditures. 
Offsetting total 2006 increases was a $663,000 transformer replacement in 2005. 

Financing Activities 
Short-term borrowings increased by approximately $7.7 million in 2007. The main 
reasons for the increase were the purchase of land for our South Florida operations center 
and the repayment of over-recoveries of fuel costs from prior periods. 

Short-term borrowings decreased by $6 million in 2006. Over-recovery of fuel costs 
provided a large source of cash during 2006 as well as the recovery of the prior year's 
under-recovery of fuel costs in 2006, reducing the need for short-term borrowings. 

Capital Resources 
We have a $12 million line of credit with Bank of America, which expires on July 1,2008. 
Upon 30 days notice we can increase the line of credit to a maximum of $20 million. The 
line of credit contains affirmative and negative covenants that, if violated, would give the 
bank the right to accelerate the due date of the loan to be immediately payable. The 
covenants include certain financial ratios. All ratios are currently met and management 
believes we are in full compliance with all covenants and anticipates continued 
compliance. In March 2008 we amended the 2007 line of credit to increase the maximum 
credit line to $26 million and to extend the expiration of the line to 2010. See below, 
"Outlook and Subsequent Events". 

We reserve $1 million of the line of credit to cover expenses for any major storm repairs in 
our electric segment and an  additional $250,000 for a letter of credit insuring propane gas 
facilities. As of December 31,2007, the amount borrowed on the line of credit was $11.1 
mdhon. The line of credit, long-term debt and preferred stock as of December 31, 2007 
comprised 56% of total debt and equity capitalization. 

Historically we have periodically paid off short-term borrowings under lines of credit 
using the net proceeds &om the sale of long-term debt or equity securities. We continue to  
review our financing options including increasing our short-term line of credit, issuing 
equity, or issuing debt. The choice of financing will be dependent on prevailing market 
conditions, the impact to our financial covenants and the effect on income. The timing of 
additional funding will be dependent on projected environmental expenditures, building of 
the South Florida operations facility, pension contributions, and other capital 
expenditures. 

Our 1942 Indenture of Mortgage and Deed of Trust, which is a mortgage on all real and 
personal property, permits the issuance of additional bonds based upon a calculation of 
unencumbered net real and personal property. At December 31,2007, such calculation 
would permit the issuance of approximately $45.9 milhon of additional bonds. 

On October 25,2007 we received approval from the FPSC to issue and sell or exchange an 
additional amount of $45 million in any combination of long-term debt, short-term notes 
and equity securities and/or to assume liabilities or obligations as guarantor, endorser or 
surety during calendar year 2008. In the event we choose not to proceed in 2008 with such 
a financing, we may seek approval from the FPSC in 2008 for any possible financing in 
2009. 

We have $3.4 million in invested funds for payment of future environmental costs. We 
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expect to use some or all of these funds in 2008 

There is approximately $6.1 million in receivables from the 2003 sale of our water assets, 
of which an estimated installment of $300,000 is anticipated to be received in 2009. The 
remaining balance of $5.8 million will be collected in 2010. The present value of this 
receivable is $5.9 million. 

Capital Requirements 
Portions of our business are seasonal and dependent upon weather conditions in Florida. 
This factor affects the sale of electricity and gas and impacts the cash provided by 
operations. Construction costs also impact cash requirements throughout the year. Cash 
needs for operations and construction are met partially through short-term borrowings 
from our line of credit. 

Capital expenditures are expected to be lower in 2008 compared to 2007 by approximately 
$1.5 million because the anticipated $2.0 million for the construction of the building for 
the new South Florida operations facility in 2008 is lower than the $3.5 million related to 
the purchase of land for the new South Florida operations facility that occurred in 2007. 

Cash requirements wil l  increase significantly in the future due to environmental cleanup 
costs, sinking fund payments on long-term debt and pension contributions. Environmental 
cleanup is forecast to require payments of approximately $1.4 milhon in 2008, with 
remaining payments, which could total approximately $13.7 milhon, beginning in 2009. 
Annual long-term debt sinking fund payments of approximately $1.4 million will begin in 
2008 and will continue for eleven years. Based on current projections, we will make a 
voluntary contribution in our defined benefit pension plan of $250,000 in 2008 for the 
preceding year and will continue for future years to make contributions as required by the 
Pension Protection Act funding rules. 

Based on our current expectations for 2008 cash needs, including the construction of our 
South Florida operations facility, we may rely on the increased line of creht  or may 
choose to consider equity or debt financing. The need and timing wlll depend upon 
operational requirements, the timing of environmental expenditures, pension 
contributions and construction expenditures. In addition, if we experience signscant 
environmental expenditures in the next two or three years it is possible we may need to 
raise additional funds after 2008. We continue to assess the feasibility of refinancing our 
mortgage bonds. If refinancing is deemed cost effective, we may re-issue a bond for 
additional principal. Many of our bonds contain prepayment penalties which effectively 
make refinancing impractical. There can be no assurance, however, that equity or debt 
transaction financing wlll be available on favorable terms or a t  all when we make the 
decision to proceed with a financing transaction. 

Outlook and Subsequent Events 

Electric Power Supply Contracts 
In our Northeast division, we entered into a new long-term supply agreement that began 
January 1, 2007 and wlll expire December 31,2017. We executed a contract for the 
provider of electricity in our Northwest division in December 2006 and the contract was 
approved by the FPSC in July 2007. This contract will be for the purchase of electricity 
beginning January 1, 2008 and will expire December 31, 2017. 

The new supply contracts have resulted in variable rates closer to market, which may 
cause our customers’ bills to double during 2008 over past fixed prices. We are unable to 
precisely estimate what impact the higher rates could have on electric consumption but 
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2005 Natural Gas Over-Earnings Summary 
(Dollars in thousands) 

December 31,2007 
Before After 

Application of 2007 Application of 
PSC Order Adjustment PSC Order 

Current Assets: 
Other regulatory assets-storm reserve current $ 116 $ (116) $ 0 

Page 26 of 75 

Assets: 
Other regulatory assets-storm reserve 131 (13i 0 

I I I 

Revenues: 
Natural Gas Revenue 

Other Income and (Deductions): 
Interest expense on customer deposits and other 

64,866 (16) 64,850 

(659) (76) (735) 

iitaliaation and Liabilities: 
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Regulators continue to focus on hurricane preparedness and storm recovery issues for 
utility companies. Newly mandated storm preparedness initiatives could impact our 
operating expenses and capital expenditures in 2008. The current forecast is not expected 
to exceed additional annual expenditures of approximately $590,000. It is possible that 
adhtional regulation and rules will be mandated regarding storm related expenditures 
over the next several years. We requested that the FPSC allow us to recover the cost of 
the newly mandated storm preparedness initiatives and to defer these storm-related 
expenditures until we receive recovery through a rate increase. The recovery of these costs 
and revisions, if any, of our storm preparedness initiatives will be considered in our 
upcoming electric rate proceeding in the first quarter of 2008. 

Land Purchase 
We purchased land for $3.5 million in July 2007 for a new South Florida operations 
facility. We are in the process of preparing plans for a building on thm property 
and expect to begin construction in 2008. 

Summer Glen Conversion 
In September we successfully completed the conversion of 491 homes from propane to 
natural gas within a large gated community in our Central Florida Division. The 
conversion will allow customers to take advantage of lower natural gas rates and provide 
the Company with greater customer retention. The community is stdl in the process of 
building new homes and when completed will result in 1,000 residential natural gas 
accounts. 

Medical Insurance 
We continue to experience increases in our medical insurance costs. Based on 
negotiations, management expects an increase of approximately 13% or $300,000 in 2008 
over 2007. 

Electric Base Rate Proceeding 
We filed a request with the FPSC in the third quarter of 2007 for a base rate increase in 
our electric segment. This request includes recovery of increased expenses and capital 
expenditures since our last rate proceeding in 2004, as well as additional storm- 
preparedness expenditures as  discussed above. Finalization of this request and approval, 
if any, of an electric base rate increase would not occur until the second quarter of 2008. 

Interim rate relief for partial recovery of the increased expenditures was approved by the 
Commission on October 23, 2007. Interim rates which should produce additional annual 
revenues of approximately $800,000 went into effect for meter readings on and after 
November 22, 2007. The permanent rates may differ from the interim rates, and the 
interim rates are collected subject to refund with interest. 

If the Commission approves partial recovery instead of full recovery of the requested rate 
increase including recovery of increased expenses, return on capital expenditures or our 
requested cost of common equity, the impact to our 2008 and future net operating income 
in our electric segments could be lower than anticipated. 

Electric Depreciation Study 
On January 29, 2008, the Commission approved new electric depreciation rates effective 
January 1, 2008 that are expected to increase depreciation expense by approximately 
$300,000 in 2008. Management expects the Commission will approve recovery of this 
increased depreciation expense in our 2008 electric rate proceeding. 
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Regulatory AssetJLiability - Retirement Plans 
The Company filed a petition with the Florida Public Service Commission in 2008 for 
approval to defer a portion of our costs associated with FASB 158 in a regulatory asset or 
liability that would have otherwise been recorded in equity. In February 2008, the FPSC 
approved deferral of these costs associated with our regulated pension and retiree’s 
medical plan. 

Contractual Obligations 

Table of Contractual Obligations 
(Dollars in thousands) 

Payments due by period Total 1 year 1 to 3 years years 5 years 
Long-term Debt Obligations $52,490 $1,409 $2,818 $2,818 $45,445 
Long-term Debt Interest 59,955 3,880 7,349 6,800 41,926 
Unrecognized Tax Benefits 268 268 
Natural Gas and Propane Gas Purchase Obligations 64,791 41,865 12,548 5,255 5,123 
Electric Purchase Obligations 282,800 26,800 53,600 53,600 148,800 
Other Purchase Obligations 4,220 1,771 2,356 29 64 
Total $464,524 $75,993 $78,671 $68,502 $241,358 

Less than 3 to 5 More than 

Long-term Debt Obligations 
The Long-term debt obligations are principal amounts. 

Long-term Debt Interest 
The Long-term debt interest represents the interest obligation on our Mortgage Bonds 

FIN 48 Obligations 
We performed an assessment of our uncertain tax positions as of December 31, 2007, and 
recognized a FIN 48 liability for various tax positions relating solely to the timing of 
various tax deductions. These tax positions relate to the 2004 through 2007 tax years. 

Natural Gas and Propane Gas Purchase Obligations 
Our Natural Gas Purchase Obligations consist of those contracts necessary to arrange for 
the purchase of natural gas to meet our demand requirements as well as those contacts 
necessary to arrange for the interstate and intrastate transport to our gate stations. In 
addition, our Propane Gas Purchase Obligations consist of those contracts necessary to 
arrange for the purchase and delivery of propane gas to our storage facilities to meet 
demand requirements. 

Electric Purchase Obligations 
During 2006 we completed negotiations and executed final contracts for the supply of 
electricity in our Northeast division beginning January 1, 2007 and our Northwest 
division beginning in January 1,2008. The new contracts, effective in 2007 and 2008, 
significantly increased our contractual obligations over prior years due to a minimum 
purchase provision. 

Purchase Obligations 
A purchase order is considered an obligation if it is associated with a contract or is 
authorizing a specific purchase of material. The Other Purchase Obligation amount 
presented above represents the amount of open purchase orders. 
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Pension, Medical Postretirement and Other Obligations 
Our pension plan continues to meet all funding requirements under ERISA regulations; 
however, under current actuarial assumptions contributions may be required as early as 
2009. Current projections indicate that we will make a voluntary contribution of 
$250,000 in 2008 for our 2007 pension plan year and will continue in future years to make 
contributions as required by the Pension Protection Act funding rules. These payments 
are not included in the Contractual Obligations table. 

Environmental cleanup is anticipated to require approximately $1.4 million in 2008, the 
remainder to be paid in following years. These payments are not included in the 
Contractual Obligations table. 

We have medical postretirement payments relating to retiree medical insurance. These 
payments are not included in the Contractual Obligations table. Estimated future 
payments are described in Note 12 in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements. 

Dividends 
We have historically paid dividends. It is our intention to continue to pay quarterly 
dividends for the foreseeable future. Our dividend policy is reviewed on an ongoing basis 
by our Board of Directors and is dependent upon our future earnings, cash flow, financial 
condition, capital requirements and other factors. 

Line of Credit 
In March 2008, we amended our line of credit with Bank of America to allow us, upon 30 
days notice, to increase our maximum credit line to $26 million kom $20 million. The new 
agreement expires July 1,2010. The amendment also reduces the interest rate paid on 
borrowings by 0.10% or 10 basis points. The new interest rate terms, if effective for 2007, 
would have reduced our overall average interest rate for 2007 to approximately 5.7% from 
5.8% as of December 31, 2007. 

Other 

Impact of Recent Accounting Standards 

Financial Accounting Standard No. 157 
In September 2006, the FASB issued Statement No. 157, “Fair Value Measurements”. 
This Statement clarifies fair value as the market value received to sell an asset or paid to 
transfer a liability, that is, the exit value, and applies to  any assets or liabilities that 
require recurring determination of fair value. The measurement includes any applicable 
risk factors and does not include any adjustment for volume. On February 12,2008, the 
FASB issued proposed FASB Staff Position No. FAS No. 157-2, “Effective Date of FASB 
Statement No. 157” which defers the effective date for all nonfinancial assets and 
nonfinancial liabilities, except those that are recognized or disclosed at  fair value in the 
financial statements on a recurring basis (that is, a t  least annually) to fiscal years 
beginning after November 15, 2008. The Company expects to adopt SFAS No. 157 
effective January 1, 2009. The Company is still evaluating the impact adoption of this 
Statement will have on our financial condition or results of operation. 

Financial Accounting Standard No. 159 
In February 2007, the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standard (SFAS) 
No. 159, “The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities”. This 
Statement permits measurement a t  fair value of certain firm commitments, nonfinancial 
insurance contracts and warranties, host financial instruments and recognized financial 
assets and liabilities, excluding consolidating investments in subsiharies, consolidating 
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variable interest entities, various forms of deferred compensation agreements, leases, 
depository institution deposit liabilities and financial instruments included in 
shareholders’ equity. This Statement is effective for financial statements issued for fiscal 
years beginning after November 15, 2007. The Company does not expect to adopt SFAS 
No. 159. 

Financial Accounting Standard No. 160 
In December 2007, the FASB issued Statement No. 160, “Noncontrolling Interests in 
Consolidated Financial Statements - an amendment of ARB No. 51”. This standard 
requires noncontrolling ownership interests be disclosed separately in equity, separate 
disclosure of income contributable to each party, changes in controlling interests be 
reported consistently, and deconsolidation be measured a t  fair value. As the company 
does not currently have any noncontrolling interests this standard will not have an  
impact on our financial condition or results of operations until the Company acquires a 
noncontrolling interest. 

Financial Accounting Standard No. 141R 
In December 2007, the FASB issued a revision to Statement No. 141, “Business 
Combinations”. This statement is effective prospectively for business combinations 
occurring on or after January 1,2009 for our company. This revision broadens the scope 
of a business combination to include transactions in which no consideration has been 
exchanged, sets the acquisition date as the date control is obtained, replaces the cost 
allocation method with fair value method to assign values to assets and liabilities 
assumed, requires restructuring costs to be recorded separate of the business 
combination, and does not permit deferral of contractual contingencies a t  acquisition 
date. As this revision is adopted prospectively and all qualifying future business 
combinations would be evaluated under the new provisions, the effects on our results of 
operations will depend on the nature and size of any future acquisitions. 

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates 

Regulatory Accounting 
We prepare our financial statements in accordance with the provisions of SFAS No. 71 
“Accounting for the Effects of Certain Types of Regulation” and it is our most critical 
accounting policy. In general, SFAS No. 71 recognizes that accounting for rate-regulated 
enterprises should reflect the relationship of costs and revenues introduced by rate 
regulation. As a result, a regulated utility may defer recognition of a cost (a regulatory 
asset) or recognize an obligation (a regulatory liability) if it is probable that, through the 
rate making process, there will be a corresponding increase or decrease in revenues or 
expenses. SFAS No. 71 does not apply to our unregulated propane gas operations. 

Criteria that give rise to the discontinuance of SFAS 71 include increasing competition 
that restricts our ability to establish prices to recover specific costs, and a significant 
change in the manner in which rates are set by regulators from cost-based regulation to 
another form of regulation. We periodically review these criteria to ensure that 
the continuing application of SFAS 71 is appropriate. Based on a current evaluation of 
the various factors and conditions that are expected to impact future cost recovery, we 
believe that our regulatory assets are probable of recovery. 
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Use of Estimates 
We are required to use estimates in preparing our financial statements so they will be in 
compliance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 
Actual results could differ from these estimates. We believe that the accruals for potential 
liabilities are adequate. The estimates in our financial statements included the accrual for 
pensions, environmental liabilities, over-earnings liability, unbilled revenues, allowances 
for doubtful accounts, uninsured liability claims and the regulatory deferred income tax 
and deferred income tax liabilities. 

Pension and post retirement benefits-An actuary calculates the estimated 
pension liability in accordance with FASB 87, FASB 88 as amended by 
FASB 132 and FASB 158. 
Environmental liabilities-These liabilities are subject to certain unknown 
future events. The Company reviews the environmental issues regularly 
with the geologists performing the feasibility studies and their legal 
counsel specializing in manufactured gas plant issues and negotiates with 
the environmental regulators and the other participating parties to 
determine the adequacy of the estimated liability for environmental 
reserves. 
Over-earnings liability-This liability is subject to regulatory review and 
possible disallowance of some expenses in determining the amount of over- 
earnings. 
Unbilled revenues-Unbilled revenue is estimated with certain assumptions 
including unaccounted for units and the use of current month sales to 
estimate unbilled sales. 
Allowances for doubtful accounts- This liability is estimated based on 
historical information and trended current economic conditions, certain 
assumptions, and is subject to unknown future events. Actual results could 
differ &om our estimates. 
Uninsured liability claims-We are self-insured for the first $250,000 of 
each general and auto liability claim and accrue for estimated losses 
occurring from both asserted and unasserted claims. The estimate for 
unasserted claims arising from unreported incidents is based on an 
analysis of historical claims data and judgment. 
Regulatory deferred income tax and deferred income tax liabilities-These 
liabilities are estimated based on historical data and are subject to 
finalization of our income tax return. Actual results could differ from our 
estimates. 

Revenue Recognition 
We bill utility customers on a monthly cycle basis; however, the billing cycle periods for 
most customers do not coincide with the accounting periods used for financial reporting. 
We accrue estimated revenue for gas and electric customers for consumption used but not 
yet billed for in an accounting period. Determination of unbilled revenue relies on the use 
of estimates and historical data. We believe that the estimates for unbilled revenue 
materially reflect the unbilled gross profit for our customers for units used but not yet 
billed in the current period. 

The FPSC approves rates that are intended to permit a specified rate of return on 
investment and limits the maximum amount of earnings of regulated operations. Any 
earnings in excess of this maximum amount are accrued for as an over-earnings liability 
and revenues are reduced for this same amount. The calculations supporting these 
liabilities are complex and involve a variety of projections and estimates before the 
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ultimate settlement of such obligations. The FPSC determines the disposition of any over- 
earnings with alternatives that include refunding to customers, funding storm damage or 
environmental reserves or reducing any depreciation reserve deficiency. 

Effects of Inflation 
Our tariffs for natural gas and electric operations provide for fuel clauses that adjust 
annually for changes in the cost of fuel. Increases in other utility costs and expenses not 
offset by increases in revenues or reductions in other expenses could have an adverse 
effect on earnings due to the time lag associated with obtaining regulatory approval to 
recover such increased costs and expenses, the uncertainty of whether regulatory 
commissions will allow full recovery of such increased costs and expenses and any effect 
on unregulated propane gas operations. 

Environmental Matters 
We currently use or have used in the past, several contamination sites that are currently 
involved in pending or threatened environmental litigation as discussed in Note 10- 
“Contingencies” in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements. We intend to 
vigorously defend our rights in this litigation. We have insurance and rate relief to cover 
any expected losses or expenses. We believe that the aggregate of all future contamination 
assessment and remedial costs, legal fees and other related expenses would not exceed the 
insurance proceeds received and any rate relief granted. The final 2004 natural gas rate 
relief granted by the FPSC provided future recovery of $8.9 million for environmental 
liabilities. The remaining balance to be recovered from customers through future recovery 
is included on the balance sheet as “Other regulatory assets-environmental”. 

Forward-Looking Statements (Cautionary Statement) 
This report contains forward-looking statements includmg those relating to the following 
expectations: 

Based on our current expectations for cash needs, including cash needs relating to 
construction of the South Florida operations facility, we may choose to  consider an 
equity or debt financing. 

covenants. 

due to environmental clean-up costs, sinking fund payment on long-term debt and 
pension contributions. 

Storm hardening related expenditures may be necessary in 2008 and the total cost 
may be sigdicant. We may receive recovery for these expenditures. 

Our 2006 over-earnings liability in natural gas will materialize as estimated. 
We expect higher fuel costs in our electric divisions could have an impact on 

The Summer Glen customer growth will occur as expected. 
Finalization and approval of an electric base rate increase is expected in the second 

Medxal expenses are expected to increase in 2008. 
Management does not anticipate the housing market will rebound in 2008. 

Our anticipation of continued compliance in the foreseeable future with our LOC 

Our expectation that cash requirements will increase significantly in the future 

electric consumption. 

quarter of 2008. 

These statements involve certain risks and uncertainties. Actual results may differ 
materially from what is expressed in such forward-looking statements. Important factors 
that could cause actual results to differ materially from those expressed by the forward- 
looking statements include, but are not limited to, those set forth above in “Risk Factors”. 

Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk 
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All financial instruments held by us were entered into for purposes other than for trading. 
We have market risk exposure only from the potential loss in fair value resulting from 
changes in interest rates. We have no material exposure relating to commodity prices 
because under our regulatory jurisdlctions, we are fully compensated for the actual costs 
of commohties (natural gas and electricity) used in our operations. Any commodity price 
increases for propane gas are normally passed through monthly to propane gas customers 
as the fuel charge portion of their rate. 

None of our gas or electric contracts are accounted for using the fair value method of 
accounting. While some of our contracts meet the definition of a derivative, we have 
designated these contracts as "normal purchases and sales" under SFAS No. 133, 
"Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities". 

We have decided not to implement a hedging plan combining purchasing caps and swaps. 
We had tentatively decided that on a rolling four-quarter basis, we would purchase a "cap" 
on approximately one-third of our forecast propane volume purchases and pre-buy or 
hedge with a swap one-third of our forecast anticipated propane purchases. Instead, we 
decided to use a combination of pre-purchasing propane gas and purchasing at fluctuating 
market prices. As of December 31, 2007, we had not entered into any hedging activities, 
and we do not anticipate entering into hedging activities in 2008. 

We have no exposure to equity risk, as we do not hold any material equity instruments. 
Our exposure to interest rate risk is limited to investments held for environmental costs, 
the long-term notes receivable from the sale of our water division and short-term 
borrowings on the line of creht. The investments held for environmental costs are short- 
term fured income debt securities whose carrying amounts are not materially different 
than fair value. The short-term borrowings were approximately $11.1 million at  the end of 
December 2007. We do not believe we have material market risk exposure related to these 
instruments. The indentures governing our two first mortgage bond series outstanding 
contain "make-whole'' provisions (pre-payment penalties that charge for lost interest), 
which render refinancing impracticable until sometime after 2010. 

Our non-interest bearing long-term receivable &om the sale of the water operations was 
discounted a t  4.34%. A hypothetical 0.5% (50 basis points) increase in the interest rate 
used would change the current fair value from $5.9 million to $5.8 million. 

In 2007, a hypothetical 0.5% (50 basis points) decrease in the long-term interest rate on 
$52.5 million debt excluding unamortized debt discount would change the fair value from 
$60 million to $63 million. 

Changes in short-term interest rates could have an effect on income depending on the 
balance borrowed on the variable rate line of credit. We had short-term debt of $11.1 
million on December 31, 2007 and $3.5 million on December 31,2006. A hypothetical 1% 
increase in interest rates would have resulted in a decrease in annual earnings for 2007 
by $110,000 and for 2006 by $35,000, based on year-end borrowings. 

8/7/2008 



Converted by EDGARwiz Page 34 of 75 

Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data  

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME 
(Dollars in thousands, exceot Der share data) 

Revenues 
Natural gas 
Electric 
Propane gas 

Total revenues 
Cost of Fuel and Other Pass Through Costs 
Gross Profit 
Operating Expenses 

Operation 
Maintenance 
Depreciation and amortization 
Taxes other than income taxes 

Total operating expenses 
Operating Income 
Other Income and (Deductions) 

Merchandise and service revenue 
Merchandise and service expenses 
Other income 
Other deductions 
Interest expense on long-term debt 
Interest expense on short-term borrowings 
Interest expense on customer deposits and other 

Total other deductions - net 
Earnings Before Income Taxes 
Income Taxes 
Net Income 
Preferred Stock Dividends 

Earnings for Common Stock 
Earnings Per Common Share  (basic and diluted) 
Dividends Declared Per Common Share  
Average Shares Outstanding 

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

. -  
Years Ended December 31 

2007 2006 2005 
$ 64,850 $ 71,139 $ 69,094 

55,521 48,527 47,450 
16,171 15,115 13,741 

136,542 134,781 130,285 
87,821 85,971 82,804 
48,721 48,810 47,481 

25,178 24,422 23,143 
3,402 3,484 3,566 
8,286 7,742 7,266 
3,034 2,985 2,869 

39,900 38,633 36,844 
8,821 10,177 10,637 

(1,697) (2,238) (2,287) 
3,301 4,169 4,248 

29 29 29 
$ 3,272 $ 4,140 $ 4,219 
$ .54 $ .69 $ .71 
s 45 s -43 s 41 

6,039,767 5,993,589 5,952,684 

http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/3 7643/000003 764308000002/fl Ok2007.hhn 8/7/2008 



Converted by EDGARwiz Page 35 of 75 

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS 
(Dollars in thousands) 

ASSETS 
Utility Plant 

Natural gas 
Electric 
Propane gas 
Common 

Total 

Net utility plant 
Less accumulated depreciation 

Current Assets 
Cash 
Accounts receivable 
Notes receivable 
Allowance for uncollectible accounts 
Unbilled receivables 
Inventories (at average or unit cost) 
Prepaid expenses 
Under-recovery of fuel costs 
Deferred charges -current 
Other regulatory assets - storm reserve current 
Other regulatory assets- environmental, current 
Investments held for environmental costs . current 
Deferred income taxes - current 

Total current assets 

Other Assets 

Other regulatory assets - storm reserve 
Other regulatory assets - environmental 
Other regulatory assets - retirement plans 
Long-term receivables and other investments 
Deferred charges 
Goodwdl 
Intangible assets (net) 

Total other assets 
Total 

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

December 31, 
2007 2006 

$ 104,770 
76,520 
17,141 
3,953 

202,384 
64,012 

138,372 

3,478 
12,269 

298 
(326) 
1,879 
4,251 

86 1 

125 

456 
3,444 

949 
27,684 

7,197 

5,622 
6,634 
2,405 
4,430 

26,288 
$ 192,344 

$ 95,393 
72,776 
17,153 
3,646 

188,968 
59,757 

129,211 

84 
12,199 

298 
(429) 
1,957 
4,120 

963 
862 
238 
228 
456 

3,364 
418 

24,758 

55 
7,815 

587 
5,740 
6,258 
2,405 
4,405 

27,265 
$ 181,234 
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS 
(Dollars in thousands) 

CAPITALIZATION AND LIABILITIES 
Capitalization 

Common shareholders' equity 
Preferred stock 
Long-term debt 

Total capitalization 

Current Liabilities 
Line of credit 
Accounts payable 
Long term debt - current 
Insurance accrued 
Interest accrued 
Other accruals and payables 
Environmental liability - current 
Taxes accrued 
Over-earnings liability 
Over-recovery of fuel costs 
Over-recovery of conservation 
Customer deposits 

Total current liabilities 

Other Liabilities 
Deferred income taxes 
Unamortized investment tax credits 
Environmental liability 
Regulatory liability - cost of removal 
Regulatory tax liabilities 
Regulatory liability - retirement plan 
Long-term medical and pension reserve 
Customer advances for construction 
Regulatory liability - storm reserve 

Total other liabilities 
Total 

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

December 31, 
2007 2006 

$ 48,946 
600 

49,363 
98,909 

11,122 
9,901 
1,409 

218 
1,163 
2,729 
1,379 
2,168 

26 
2,761 

446 
10,547 
43,869 

16,630 
266 

12,250 
9,359 

796 
564 

4,817 
2,497 
2,387 

49,566 
$ 192,344 

$ 47,572 
600 

50,702 
98,874 

3,466 
10,279 

181 
789 

2,410 
613 

1,180 
722 

3,656 
355 

9,608 
33,259 

17,101 
335 

13,140 
8,800 

876 

4,580 
2,633 
1,636 

49,101 
$ 181,234 
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CAPITALIZATION 
(Dollars in thousands) 

December 31, 
2007 2006 

Common Shareholders' Equity 
Common stock, $1.50 par value, authorized 10,000,000 shares: 

issued 6,182,983 shares in 2007; issued 6,166,648 shares in 
2006 $ 9,275 $ 9,250 

Paid-in capital 6,076 6,054 
Retained earnings 35,797 35,213 
Accumulated other comprehensive incomelfloss), retirement 

Treasury stock. at cost (129,223 shares in 2007, 160,349 
shares in 2006) (2,290) (2,842) 

Total common shareholders' equity 48,946 47,572 

4 % %  Series A, $100 par value, redemption price $106, 
authorized and outstanding 6,000 shares 600 600 

4 %% Series B Cumulative Preferred, $100 par value, 
redemption price $101, authorized 5,000 and none issued 

$1.12 Convertible Preference, $20 par value, redemption price 
$22, authorized 32,500 and none issued 
Total preferred stock 600 600 

First mortgage bonds series 

plan adjustment, net of income tax benefit 88 (103) 

Preferred Stock 

Long-Term Debt 

9.57 % due 2018 9,091 10,000 
10.03 % due 2018 5,000 5,500 
9.08 % due 2022 8,000 8,000 
4.90 % due 2031 14,000 14,000 

6.85 % due 2031 14,990 15,000 
Unamortized debt discount (1.718) (1,798) 

Total long-term debt 49,363 50,702 

Total Capitalization $ 98,909 $ 98,874 

See Notes to  Consolidated Financial Statements 
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMMON SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY 
(Dollars in thousands) 

Common Stock 
Accumulated 

Other Treasuly Common 
Shares Aggregate Paid-b Retained Comprehensive Shares Treasury Shareholders' 
Issued Par Value Capital Earnings (Loss) Cost Shares Equity 

Balances as of 
December 31, 

- 2004 6,130,097 $9,195 $5,806 $31,849 $ - $(3,637) 205,241 $43,213 

Net income - 4,248 4,248 
Dividends . (2,472) (2,472) 
Stock plans 22,579 34 192 288 (16,247) 514 
Balances as of 
December 31, 

- 2005 6,152,676 9,229 5,998 33,625 - (3,349) 188,994 45,503 

Net income 
Accumulated other 
comprehensive 
loss, retirement 
plans adjustment, 
net of tax 
Dividends 

4,169 4,169 

(103) (103) 
- (2,581) (2,581) 

Stock plans 13,972 21 56 507 (28,645) 584 
Balances as of 
December 31, 

- 2006 6,166,648 9,250 6,054 35,213 (103) (2,842) 160,349 47,572 

Net income - 3,301 
Accumulated other 
comprehensive 
income, retirement 
plans adjustment, 
net of tax 191 
Dividends - (2,717) 

3,301 

191 
(2,717) 

Stock plans 16,335 25 22 552 (31,126) 599 
Balances as of 
December 31, 
2007 6,182,983 $9,275 $6,076 $35,797 $88 $(2,290) 129,223 $48,946 - 

- - 

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 
(Dollars in thousands) 

Years Ended December 31, 
2007 2006 2005 

Cash Flows from Operating Activities: 
Net income 
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash &om 
operating activities: 

Depreciation and amortization 
Deferred income taxes 
Bad debt expense 
Investment tax credits 
Other 
Interest income &om sale of non-utility property 
Compensation expense f?om the issuance of stock 

Receivables 
Unbilled receivables 
Inventories and prepayments 
Accounts payable and accruals 
Over (under) recovery of fuel and other pass through costs 
Area expansion program deferred costs 
Regulatory asset and environmental liability 
Other 

Effects of changes in. 

Net cash provided by operating activities 
Cash Flows from Investing Activities: 

Construction expenditures 
Customer advances received for construction 
Purchase of long-term investments 
Proceeds received on notes receivable 
Other 

Net cash used in investing activities 
Cash Flows from Financing Activities: 

Net change in short-term borrowings 
Proceeds &om common stock plans 
Dividends paid 

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities 
Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash 
Cash at Beginning of Year 
Cash at End of Year 
Supplemental Cash Flow Information 

Cash was paid during the years as follows: 
Interest 
Income taxes 

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

$ 3,301 

(620) 
78 
68 

4,826 
58 

(313) 
175 

(16,740) 
(210) 
(80) 
371 

(16,659) 

7,656 
552 

(2,681) 
5,527 
3,394 

84 
$ 3,478 

$ 4,375 
$ 1,984 

$ 4,169 

7,742 

623 
(75) 
805 

88 

(2,003) 

(252) 

3,115 
(39) 
711 

(976) 
6,500 

$ 4,248 

7,266 
(153) 

359 
(81) 
751 

58 

(4,513) 
367 

(495) 
5,560 

(3,171) 

(192) 

238 109 
584 429 

(1,140) (329) 
20,090 10,213 

(13,116) (12,441) 
361 454 

32 1 304 
(1 51 

(106) (75) 

\ - - I  

(12,555) (11,758) 

(6,092) 3,733 
497 456 

(2,551) (2,448) 
(8,146) 1,741 

(611) 196 
695 499 

$ 84 $ 695 

$ 4,777 $ 4,469 
$ 3,298 $ 2,698 
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

1. Summary of Significant Accounting and Reporting Policies 

A. General 
The Company is an operating public utility engaged principally in the purchase, 
transmission, distribution and sale of electricity and in the purchase, 
transmission, distribution, sale and transportation of natural gas. The 
Company is subject to the jurisdiction of the Florida Public Service Commission 
(FPSC) with respect to its natural gas and electric operations. The suppliers of 
electric power to the Northwest Florida division and of natural gas to the 
natural gas divisions are subject to the jurisdiction of the Federal Energy 
Regulatory Commission (FERC). The Northeast Florida division is supplied 
most of its electric power by a municipality which is exempt &om FERC and 
FPSC regulation. The Company also distributes propane gas through a non- 
regulated subsidiary. 

B. Basis of Presentation 
The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Florida Public 
Utilities Company (FPU) and its wholly owned subsidiary, Flo-Gas Corporation. 
All significant intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated. 
The Company's accounting policies and practices conform to accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) as applied 
to regulated public utilities and are in accordance with the accounting 
requirements and rate-making practices of the FPSC and in accordance to the 
rule requirements of the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC). 

C. Use of Estimates 
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires the 
Company to make certain estimates and assumptions that affect the reported 
amounts of assets and liabilities, disclosure of any contingent assets and 
liabilities a t  the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of 
revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Some of these estimates 
include the accruals for pensions, allowance for doubtful accounts, 
environmental liabilities, liability reserves, unbiUed revenue, regulatory 
deferred tax liabilities and over-earnings liability. Actual results may differ 
from these estimates and assumptions. 

D. Reclassifications 
Certain amounts in the prior years' financial statements have been reclassified 
to conform to the 2007 presentation. 

E. Regulation 
The financial statements are prepared in accordance with the provisions of 
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 71 - "Accounting for 
the Effects of Certain Types of Regulation". SFAS No. 71 recognizes that 
accounting for rate-regulated enterprises should reflect the relationship of costs 
and revenues introduced by rate regulation. A regulated utility may defer 
recognition of a cost (a regulatory asset) or show recognition of an  obligation (a 
regulatory liability) if it is probable that, through the ratemaking process, there 
will be a corresponding increase or decrease in revenues. The Company has 
recognized certain regulatory assets and liabilities in the consolidated balance 
sheets. The Company believes that the FPSC will continue to allow recovery of 
such items through rates. As these regulatory assets and liabilities are 
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recovered through rates or paid through a reduction of rates, the assets and 
liabilities are amortized to revenue and expense. In the event that a portion of 
the Company’s operations are no longer subject to the provisions of SFAS No. 
71, the Company would be required to write-off related regulatory assets and 
liabilities that are not specifically recoverable through regulated rates. In 
addition, the Company would be required to determine if an impairment related 
to other assets exists, including plant, and write-down the assets, if impaired, to 
their fair value. The Company would be required to expense the regulatory 
assets and record revenue or reduce expenses for the regulatory liabilities, with 
the exception of the deferred retirement plan which would be recorded to Other 
Comprehensive income (loss) and cost of removal, if they no longer were subject 
to the provisions of SFAS No. 71, or the FPSC disallowed the deferral of these 
regulatory assets and liabilities. Upon disallowance, it is possible some 
liabilities would have to be refunded to customers. 

Summary of Regulatory Assets and Liabilities 
(Jlollars in thousands) 

2007 2006 

Deferred development costs (1) $ 4,265 $ 3,952 
Assets 

Unamortized fuel related regulatory costs (5) 36 48 
Environmental assets (2) 7,653 8,271 
Storm Reserve assets (3) 283 
Deferred retirement plan costs (4) 587 
Unamortized Rate Case expense (7) 535 368 
Under-recovery of fuel costs (6) 862 
Unamortized piping and conversion costs (1) 1,379 1,521 
Unamortized loss on reacquired debt (1) 190 209 

Total Regulatory Assets $14,058 $16,101 

Liabilities 
Tax liabilities (8) 
Cost of removal (9) 
Deferred retirement plan costs (4) 
Storm reserve liabilities(3) 
Over-recovery of fuel costs (6) 
Over-recovery of conservation (6) 
Over-earnings liability (3) 

Total Regulatory Liabilities 

$ 796 $ 876 
9,359 8,800 

2,387 1,636 
2,761 3,656 

446 355 

564 

26 722 
$16,339 $16,045 

~ 

(1) Deferred development costs, unamortized piping and conversion costs, and 
unamortized loss on reacquired debt are included in deferred charges in the 
consolidated balance sheets. 

(2) The Company has included the amount due from customers as a regulatory 
asset for environmental costs. The FPSC authorized recovery of these 
environmental costs from customers over 20 years. 

(3) The Commission ordered disposition of our 2005 over-earnings to eliminate 
the related regulatory asset-storm reserve and the storm surcharge collected 
from customers in our natural gas operations. The remaining over-earnings 
was used to fund a storm reserve for future storm costs in our natural gas 
division. Our natural gas storm reserve is approximately $613,000 as of 
December 31, 2007 as a result of this order. 

http://www.sec.govlArchives/edgar/data/37643/OOOOO37643O8OOOOO2/fl Ok2007.htm 8/7/2008 



Converted by EDGARwiz Page 42 of 75 

(4) The actuarial valuation of the retirement plan obligations has been completed 
and the recognition provisions of Statement 158 a t  December 31, 2006 
resulted in a regulatory asset for the portion of the loss of $587,000 and at  
December 31, 2007 resulted in a regulatory liability for $564,000. 

January 2006 has been amortizing these over five years according to a FPSC 
order in the November 2005 fuel hearings. 

(6) The Company has certain costs that are passed directly through to customers 
for recovery including fuel and conservation costs. There are amounts related 
to these expenses that are either over or under-recovered in a calendar year. 
These over-recoveries will be returned to customers and under-recoveries will 
be collected from customers in the following year, but both are deferred in the 
current period. 

proceeding before the FPSC. These costs are amortized over a four or  five 
year period. This represents the unamortized portion of these costs. The 
Company has incurred additional rate case costs associated with the electric 
filing expected to be finalized in 2008. The additional costs are expected to be 
amortized over a four year period beginning mid 2008. 

Company uses a FPSC-approved method to amortize these liabilities. 

existing 6xed assets. 

(5) The Company has deferred certain regulatory fuel-related costs and as of 

(7) The Company has costs associated with preparing and filing a rate 

(8) The Company has deferred tax liabilities associated with property. The 

(9) The Company has a liability for the estimated future costs to remove or retire 

The base revenue rates for regulated segments are determined by the FPSC and 
remain constant until a request for an  increase is filed and approved by the 
FPSC or the FPSC orders the Company to reduce their rates. For the Company 
to recover increased costs from the effects of inflation and construction 
expenditures for regulated segments, a request for an increase in base revenues 
would be required. Separate f i n g s  would be required for the electric and 
natural gas segments. The Company is currently seeking rate relief in their 
electric segment, and approval, if any, is expected in the second quarter of 2008. 

At December 31, 2007, all of our  regulatory assets and all of our regulatory 
liabilities are reflected or are expected to be reflected in rates charged to 
customers. 

Criteria that give rise to the discontinuance of SFAS 71 include increasing 
competition that restricts our ability to establish prices to recover specific costs, 
and a significant change in the manner in which rates are set by regulators from 
cost-based regulation to another form of regulation. We periodically review 
these criteria to ensure that the continuing application of SFAS 71 is 
appropriate. Based on a current evaluation of the various factors and conditions 
that are expected to impact future cost recovery, we believe that our regulatory 
assets are probable of recovery. 

F. Derivatives 
None of the Company's gas or electric contracts are accounted for using the fair 
value method of accounting. All material contracts that meet the definition of 
derivative instruments are considered "normal purchases and sales" under 
SFAS No. 133, "Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities". 
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G. Revenue Recognition 
The Company’s revenues consist of base revenues, fuel adjustment charges, 
conservation charges and the pass-through of certain governmental imposed 
taxes based on revenues. 

The FPSC approves base revenue rates that are intended to  permit a specified 
rate of return on investment and limits the maximum amount of earnings of 
regulated operations. Fuel adjustment charges, conservation charges and the 
pass-through of certain governmental imposed taxes based on revenues are 
approved by the FPSC to allow recovery of fuel, conservation and revenue based 
taxes from the Company’s customers. Any over or under-recovery of these 
expense items are deferred and subsequently refunded or collected in the 
following period. 

Annually, any earnings in excess of this maximum amount permitted in the 
base rates are accrued for as  an  over-earning liability and revenues are reduced 
an equivalent amount. The calculations supporting these liabilities are complex 
and involve a variety of projections and estimates before the ultimate settlement 
of such obligations. The FPSC determines the disposition of any over-earnings 
with alternatives that include refundmg to customers, funding storm damage or 
environmental reserves, or reducing any depreciation reserve deficiency. 

The Company bills utility customers on a monthly cycle basis; however, the 
billing cycle periods for most customers do not coincide with the accounting 
periods used for financial reporting. The Company accrues estimated revenue 
for gas and electric customers on usage not yet bllled for the accounting period. 
Determination of unbillcd revenue relies on the use of estimates, fuel purchases 
and historical data. 

Interim rate relief for partial recovery of the increased expenditures was 
approved by the Commission on October 23, 2007. Interim rates which should 
produce additional annual revenues of approximately $800,000 went into effect 
for meter readings on and after November 22, 2007. The permanent rates may 
differ from the interim rates, and the interim rates are collected subject to 
refund with interest. 

H.Taxes Collected from Customers and Remitted to Governmental 
Authorities 
The Company remits to governmental authorities various taxes collected from 
customers throughout the year including gross receipts and franchise taxes. 
These taxes are pass through revenues and expenses and do not impact the 
Company’s results of operations. The amount of gross receipts and franchise 
taxes for the year ending December 31,2007 and 2006 was $7.1 million and $6.9 
million, respectively. 

I. Allowance for  Doubtful Accounts 
The Company records an allowance for doubtful accounts based on historical 
information and trended current economic conditions. The following is a 
summary of the activity in Allowance for Doubtful Accounts for the years ending 
December 31: 

~~~~~ r Allowance for Doubtful Accounts 
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2005 
2006 
2007 

Page 44 of 75 

Balance at Provisions to Bad Balance at End 
Beginning of Year Write-offs Debt Expense of Year 

$269 356 359 $272 
$272 466 623 $429 
$429 551 448 $326 

J. Utility Plant and Depreciation 
Utility plant is stated at original cost. The propane gas utility plant that was 
acquired through acquisitions was stated at fair market value when acquired. 
Additions to utility plant include contracted services, direct labor, 
transportation and materials for additions. Units of property are removed from 
utility plant when retired. Maintenance and repairs of property and 
replacement and renewal of items determined not to be units of property are 
charged to operating expenses. Substantially all of the utility plant and the 
shares of Flo-Gas Corporation collateralize the Company's first mortgage bonds. 

Utility Plant 
(Dollars in thousands) 

Annual 
Composite 

Depreciation 
Plant Classification Rate 2007 2006 
Land $ 4,675 $ 1,130 
Buildings 2.0% to 4.9% 7,085 6,991 
Distribution 2.0% to 7.5% 167,252 158,010 
Transmission 2.2% to 3.8% 6,894 6,878 
Equipment 2.2% to 20.0% 13,307 12,700 
Furniture and Fixtures 4.8% to 20.0% 417 392 
Work-in-Progress 2,754 2,867 

$202,384 $ 188,968 

Depreciation for the Company's regulated segments is computed using the 
composite straight-line method at  rates prescribed by the FPSC for financial 
accounting purposes. Propane gas depreciation is computed using a composite 
straight-line method at  an average rate based on estimated average life of 
approximately 20-30 years. Such rates are based on estimated service lives of 
the various classes of property. Depreciation provisions on average depreciable 
property approximate 3.8% in 2007, 3.9% in 2006 and 3.9% in 2005. 
Depreciation expense was $6.7 million, $6.2 million and $5.7 million for 2007, 
2006 and 2005, respectively. 

I(. Impact of Recent Accounting Standards 

Financial Accounting Standard No. 157 
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In September 2006, the FASB issued Statement No. 157, “Fair Value 
Measurements”. This Statement clarifies fair value as the market value 
received to sell an  asset or paid to  transfer a liability, that is, the exit value, and 
applies to any assets or liabilities that require recurring determination of fair 
value. The measurement includes any applicable risk factors and does not 
include any adjustment for volume. On February 12, 2008, the FASB issued 
proposed FASB Staff Position No. FAS No. 157-2, “Effective Date of FASB 
Statement No. 157” which defers the effective date for all nonfinancial assets 
and nonfinancial liabilities, except those that are recognized or disclosed at  fair 
value in the financial statements on a recurring basis (that is, at least annually) 
to fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2008. The Company expects to 
adopt SFAS No. 157 effective January 1, 2009. The Company is still evaluating 
the impact adoption of this Statement will have on our financial condition or 
results of operation. 

Financial Accounting Standard No. 169 
In February 2007, the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting 
Standard (SFAS) No. 159, “The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and 
Financial Liabilities”. This Statement permits measurement a t  fair value of 
certain firm commitments, nonfinancial insurance contracts and warranties, 
host financial instruments and recognized financial assets and liabilities, 
excluding consolidating investments in subsidiaries, consolidating variable 
interest entities, various forms of deferred compensation agreements, leases, 
depository institution deposit liabilities and financial instruments included in 
shareholders’ equity. This Statement is effective for financial statements issued 
for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007. The Company does not 
expect to adopt SFAS No. 159. 

Financial Accounting Standard No. 160 
In December 2007, the FASB issued Statement No. 160, “Noncontrolhng 
Interests in Consolidated Financial Statements - an amendment of ARB No. 
51”. This standard requires noncontrolling ownership interests be disclosed 
separately in equity, separate disclosure of income contributable to each 
party, changes in controlling interests be reported consistently, and 
deconsolidation be measured a t  fair value. As the company does 
not currently have any noncontrolling interests this standard will not have 
an impact on our financial condition or results of operations until the 
Company acquires a noncontrolling interest. 

Financial Accounting Standard No. 141R 
In December 2007, the FASB issued a revision to Statement No. 141, “Business 
Combinations”. This statement is effective prospectively for business 
combinations occurring on or after January 1, 2009 for our company. This 
revision broadens the scope of a business combination to include transactions in 
which no consideration has been exchanged, sets the acquisition date as the 
date control is obtained, replaces the cost allocation method with fair value 
method to assign values to  assets and liabilities assumed, requires restructuring 
costs to be recorded separate of the business combination, and does not permit 
deferral of contractual contingencies a t  acquisition date. As this revision is 
adopted prospectively and all quahfymg future business combinations would be 
evaluated under the new provisions, the effects on our results of operations will 
depend on the nature and size of any future acquisitions. 

L. Earnings Per Share 
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The Company includes earnings per common share (basic and diluted) on the 
consolidated statements of income. The Company does not have dilutive or anti- 
dilutive shares. 

2. Goodwill and Intangible Assets 
In accordance with SFAS No. 142, "Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets", the Company 
does not amortize goodwill or intangibles with indefinite lives. The Company 
periodically tests the applicable reporting segments, natural gas and propane gas, for 
impairment. In the event a segment becomes impaired, the Company would write-down 
the associated goodwill and intangible assets with i n d e ~ t e  lives to fair value. The 
impairment tests performed in 2006 and 2007 showed no impairment for either reporting 
segment. 

Goodwill associated with the Company's acquisitions is identified as a separate line item 
on the consolidated balance sheet and consists of $1.9 million in the propane gas segment 
and $500,000 in the natural gas segment. 

Intangible assets associated with the Company's acquisitions and software have been 
identified as a separate line item on the balance sheet. Summaries of those intangible 
assets a t  December 31 are as follows: 

Intangible Assets 
(Dollars in thousands) 

2007 x!Q& 
Customer distribution rights (Indefinite life) $ 1,900 $ 1,900 
Customer relationships (Indefinite life) 900 900 
Software (Five to nine year life) 3,499 3,122 
Accumulated amortization (1,869) (1,517) 

Total intangible assets, net of amortization $4,430 $4,405 

The 2007 amortization expense of computer software is approximately $352,000. The 
Company expects the amortization expense of computer software to be approximately 
$300,000 annually over the next five years, with the current level of software investment. 

3. Over-earnings-Natural Gas 
The FPSC approves rates that are intended to permit a specified rate of return on 
investment and limits the maximum amount of earnings of regulated operations. The 
Company has agreed with the FPSC staff to limit the earned return on equity for 
regulated natural gas and electric operations. 

In 2007, there were no estimated natural gas over-earnings 

The Company recorded estimated 2006 over-earnings for regulated natural gas 
operations of $25,000. Interest accrued on this estimated over-earnings as of December 
31, 2007 is $1,300. This liability is included in the over-earnings liability on the 
Company's consolidated balance sheet of December 31, 2007. The calculations 
supporting these liabilities are complex and involve a variety of projections and 
estimates before the ultimate settlement of such obligations. Estimates may be revised 
as expectations change and factors become known and determinable. 

The 2006 over-earnings liability is based on the Company's best estimate, but the 
amount could change upon the FPSC finalization expected in 2008. The FPSC 
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Current Assets: 
Other regulatory assets-storm resewe current 

determines the dsposition of over-earnings with alternatives that include refunding to 
customers, increasing storm damage or environmental reserves or reducing any 
depreciation reserve deficiency. 

On August 14, 2007 the Commission finalized the disposition of 2005 over-earnings for 
the natural gas segment. Total over-earnings was determined to be $666,000, plus 
interest of $76,000. 

The Commission ordered disposition of 2005 over-earnings to eliminate the related 
regulatory asset-storm reserve in natural gas operations and the storm surcharge 
collected from customers. The remaining over-earnings was used to fund a storm 
reserve for any future storm costs. 

I 2005 Natural Gas Over-Earnines Summaw 

December 31,2007 
Before After 

Application of 2007 Application of 
PSC Order Adjustment PSC Order 

$ 116 $ (116) $ 0 

4. Storm Reserves 
As of December 31, 2007, the Company had a storm reserve of approximately $1.8 
million for the electric segment and approximately $613,000 for the natural gas 
segment. The Company does not have a storm reserve for the propane gas segment. 

As noted above, in the August 2007 the Commission ordered disposition of 2005 over- 
earnings to eliminate the related regulatory asset - storm reserve in natural gas 
operations and the storm surcharge collected from customers. The remaining over- 
earnings was used to fund a storm reserve for any future storm costs. 

5. Income Taxes 
Financial Accounting Standard Board Znterpretation No. 48 
In June 2006, the FASB issued Interpretation No. 48, Accounting for Uncertainty in 
Income Taxes (FIN 48). The interpretation clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in 
income taxes recognized in an  entity’s financial statements in accordance with SFAS 
No. 109, Accounting for Income Taxes. The interpretation prescribes a recognition 
threshold and measurement attribute for the financial statement recognition and 
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Balance at  January I, 2007 
Additions based on tax positions related to the current year 
Additions for tax positions of prior years 
Reductions for tax positions of prior years 
Set t 1 em en t s 

Balance at December 31, 2007 

$ -  
(23) 
29 1 

$ 268 

A. Provision for Income Taxes 
The provision (benefit) for income taxes consists of the following: 
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(Dollars in thousands) 

Current payable 
Federal 
State 

Deferred 
Federal 
State 

Current 

Deferred - net 

2007 2006 

$ 2,518 $ 3,652 
446 664 

2,964 4,316 

Investment tax credit (69) (75) 

Total income taxes $ 1,697 $ 2,238 

B. Effective Tax Rate Reconciliation 
The Merence between the effective income tax rate and the statutory federal 
income tax rate applied to pretax income is as follows: 

(Dollars in thousands) 

Federal income tax at statutory rate (34%) 
State income tax, net of federal benefit 
Investment tax credit 
Tax exempt interest 
Other 
Total provision for income taxes 

C. Deferred Income Taxes 

Years ended December 31, 
2007 2006 2005 

181 233 237 
$ 1,699 $ 2,178 $ 2,222 

(69) (75) (81) 

(29) (13) (20) 
(85) (85) (71) 

$ 1,697 $ 2,238 $ 2,287 

Temporary differences which produce deferred income taxes in the accompanying 
consolidated balance sheets are as follows: 

(Dollars in thousands) 
Deferred tax assets: 

Environmental liability 
Self insurance liability 
Storm reserve liability 
Vacation payable 
Other deferred credits 
Allowance for doubtful accounts 
Amortizable customer based intangibles 
General liability 
Rate refund liability 
Pension liability 
Underlover-recovery of conservation costs 
Other liabilities 

Years ended December 31, 
2007 2006 

$ 2,249 $ 2,063 
763 774 
898 509 
384 357 

15 
123 162 
670 
82 68 
10 271 

1,086 789 
167 134 
47 37 
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Total deferred tax assets 6,479 5,179 

Deferred tax liabilities: 
Utility plant related 
Deductible intangibles 
Under-recovery of fuel costs 
Deferred rate case expense 
Loss on reacquired debt 
Other 

Total deferred tax liabilities 

Net deferred income taxes liabilities 

20,677 20,274 
781 696 
406 643 
201 138 
71 79 
24 32 

22,160 21,862 

$ 15,681 $ 16,683 

Deferred tax liabilities included in the consolidated balance sheets are as follows: 

(Dollars in thousands) 2007 2006 

Deferred income tax asset (liability) -current $ 949 $ (579) 
Deferred income tax liability - long term (16,630) (16,104) 
Net deferred income tax liabilities $ (15,681) $ (16,683) 

6. Capitalization 

A. Common Shares Reserved 
The Company has 3,817,017 authorized but unissued shares and 129,223 treasury 
shares as of December 31,2007. The Company has reserved the following common 
shares for issuance as of December 31. 2007: 

Dividend Reinvestment Plan 
Employee Stock Purchase Plan 
Board Compensation Plan 

37,736 
24,059 
17,564 

B. Preferred Stock 
The Company has 6,000 shares of 4 %% Series A preferred stock $100 par value 
authorized for issuance of which 6,000 were issued and outstanding a t  December 31, 
2007. The preferred stock is included in stockholders’ equity on the balance sheet. 

The Company also has 5,000 shares, 4 %% Series B preferred stock $100 par value 
authorized for issuance none of which has been issued. 

The Company also has 32,500 shares, $1.12 Convertible Preference stock, $20 par 
value and $22 redemption price, authorized for issuance none of which has been issued. 

C. Dividend Restriction 
The Company’s Fifteenth Supplemental Indenture of Mortgage and Deed of Trust 
restricts the amount that is available for cash dividends. At December 31, 2007, 
approximately $9.6 million of retained earnings were free of such restriction and 
therefore available for the payment of dividends. The line of credit agreement contains 
covenants that, if violated, could restrict or prevent the payment of dividends. As of 
December 31, 2007 the Company was not in violation of these covenants. 

D. Employee Stock Purchase Plan 
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The Company’s Employee Stock Purchase Plan offers common stock at  a discount to 
qualified employees. 

E. Dividend Reinvestment Plan 
The Company’s Dividend Reinvestment Plan is offered to all Company shareholders 
and allows the shareholder to reinvest dividends received and purchase additional 
shares without a fee. 

7. Long-term Debt 
The Company issued its Fourteenth Series of FPU’s First Mortgage Bond on September 27, 
2001 in the aggregate principal amount of $15 million as security for the 6.85% Secured 
Insured Quarterly Notes, due October 1, 2031 (IQ Notes). Interest on the pledged bond 
accrues a t  the annual rate of 6.85% payable quarterly in arrears on January 1, April 1, 
July 1 and October 1 of each year beginning January 1,2002. 

The Company issued $14 million of Palm Beach County municipal bonds (Industrial 
Development Revenue Bonds) on November 14, 2001 to finance development in the area. 
The interest rate on the thirty-year callable bonds is 4.90%. The bond proceeds were 
restricted and held in trust until construction expenditures were actually incurred by the 
Company. In 2002 the remaining $8 million was drawn from the restricted funds held by 
the trustee. 

In 1992, the Company issued its First Mortgage Bond 9.08% Series in the amount of $8 
million. The thirty-year bond is due in June 2022. 

The Company issued two of its Twelfth Series First Mortgage bond series on May 1, 1988; 
the 9.57% Series due 2018 in the amount of $10 million and 10.03% Series due 2018 in the 
amount of $5.5 million. These two issuances require sinking fund payments of $909,000 
and $500,000 respectively, beginning in 2008. 

Long-term debt on the balance sheet has been reduced for unamortized debt discount. The 
unamortized debt discount a t  December 31 included in long-term debt on the balance sheet 
is $1.7 million in 2007 and $1.8 million in 2006. 

Annual Maturities of Long-Term Debt 
(Dollars in thousands) 

Total 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 Thereafter 

Long-term Debt $52,490 $1,409 $1,409 $1,409 $1,409 $1,409 $45,445 

8. Line of Credit 
In 2004, FPU entered into an amended and restated loan agreement that allows the 
Company to increase the line of credit upon 30 days notice by the Company to a maximum 
of $20 million. In 2006 the agreement was renewed with an expiration date of July 1, 
2008. We have not exercised our option to increase the line of credit limit which is 
currently a t  $12 million with an outstanding balance of $11.1 million. The Company 
reserves $1 million of the line of credit to cover expenses for any major storm repairs in its 
electric segment. An additional $250,000 of the line of credit is reserved for a ‘letter of 
credit’ insuring our propane facilities. In March 2008, we amended our line of credit to 
allow us, upon 30 days notice, to  increase our maximum credit line to $26 million. The new 
agreement expires July 1, 2010. The amendment also reduces the interest rate paid on 
borrowings by .lo% or 10 basis points. The new interest rate terms, if effective for 2007, 
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would have reduced our overall average interest rate for 2007 to approximately 5.7% from 
5.8% as of December 31, 2007. 
The average interest rates for the line of credit were as follows as of December 31: 

Year Rate 
2007 5.8% 
2006 6.2% 
2005 5.3% 

9. Fair Value of Financial Instruments 
The carrying amounts reported in the balance sheet for investments held in escrow for 
environmental costs, notes payable, taxes accrued and other accrued liabilities 
approximate fair value. The fair value of long-term debt excluding the unamortized debt 
discount is estimated by discounting the future cash flows of each issuance at rates 
currently offered to the Company for similar debt instruments of comparable maturities. 
The indentures governing our two first mortgage bond series outstanding contain "make- 
whole" provisions (pre-payment penalties that charge for lost interest). The values a t  
December 31 are shown below. 

2007 2006 
Carrying Approximate Fair Carrying Approximate Fair 

(Dollars in thousands) Amounts Value Amounts Value 
Long-term debt $52,490 $60,000 $52,500 $63,000 

10. Contingencies 

Environmental 
The Company is subject to federal and state legislation with respect to soil, groundwater 
and employee health and safety matters and to environmental regulations issued by the 
Florida Department of Environmental Protection (FDEP), the United States 
Environmental Protection Agency @PA) and other federal and state agencies. Except as 
discussed below, the Company does not expect to incur material future expenditures for 
compliance with existing environmental laws and regulations. 

Site Range From Range To 
West Palm Beach $ 4,926 $ 18,152 
Sanford 727 721 
Pensacola and Key West 123 123 

Total $ 5,776 $ 19,002 

(Dollars in thousands) 

The Company currently has $13.6 million recorded as our best estimate of the 
environmental liability. The FPSC approved up to $14 million for total recovery from 
insurance and rates based on the original 2005 projections as a basis for rate recovery. 
The Company has recovered a total of $6 million from insurance and rate recovery, net 
of costs incurred to date. The remaining balance of $7.6 d o n  is recorded as a 
regulatory asset. On October 18, 2004 the FPSC approved recovery of $9.1 million for 
environmental liabilities. The amortization of this recovery and reduction to the 
regulatory asset began on January 1, 2005. The majority of environmental cash 
expenditures is expected to be incurred before 2010, but may continue for another 10 
years. 

West Palm Beach Site 
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The Company is currently evaluating remedial options to respond to environmental 
impacts to soil and groundwater a t  and in the immediate vicinity of a parcel of property 
owned by it in West Palm Beach, Florida upon which the Company previously operated 
a gasification plant. The Company entered into a Consent Order with the FDEP 
effective April 8, 1991, that requires the Company to delineate the extent of soil and 
groundwater impacts associated with the prior operation of the gasification plant and 
to remediate such soil and groundwater impacts, if necessary. The Company completed 
field investigations for the contamination assessment task in October 2006. 
Thereafter, The Company retained an engineering consultant, The RETEC Group, Inc. 
(RETEC), to perform a feasibility study to evaluate appropriate remedies for the site to 
respond to the reported soil and groundwater impacts. On November 30, 2006, RETEC 
transmitted a feasibility study to the Company and FDEP. The feasibility study 
evaluated a wide range of remedial alternatives. The total costs for the remedies 
evaluated in the feasibility study ranged from a low of $2.8 million to a high of $54.6 
million. Based on the likely acceptability of proven remedial technologies described in 
the feasibility study and implemented at  similar sites, consulting/remediation costs are 
projected to range from $4.6 million to $17.9 million. This range of costs covers such 
remedies as in situ solidification for the deeper impacts, excavation of surficial 
soils, installation of a barrier wall with a permeable biotreatment zone, or some 
combination of these remedies. 

By letter dated May 7, 2007, FDEP provided its comments to the feasibility study, the 
substance of which was discussed at  a meeting between the Company and FDEP on 
September 14,2007. A response to the comments was submitted by the Company to 
FDEP on October 31, 2007. We are currently awaiting FDEPs comments to the 
response. 

Based on the information provided in the feasibility study, remaining legal fees are 
currently projected to  be approximately $295,000. Consulting and remediation costs are 
projected to range from $4.6 million to $17.9 million. Thus, the Company's total 
probable legal and cleanup costs for the West Palm Beach site are currently 
projected to range from $4.9 mdlion to $18.2 million. 

Sanford Site 
The Company owns a parcel of property located in Sanford, Florida, upon which a 
gasification plant was operated prior to the Company's acquisition of the property. 
Following discovery of soil and groundwater impacts on the property, the Company has 
participated with four former owners and operators of the gasification plant in the 
funding of numerous investigations of the extent of the impacts and the identlfication 
of an appropriate remedy. On or about March 25, 1998, the Company executed an 
Administrative Order on Consent (AOC) with the four former owners and operators 
(collectively, the Group) and the EPA. This AOC obligated the Group to implement a 
Remedial InvestigatiodFeasibiIity Study (RIlFS) and to pay EPA's past and future 
oversight costs. The Group also entered into a Participation Agreement and an Escrow 
Agreement on or about April 13, 1998 (WFS Participation Agreement). Work under the 
RIlFS AOC and RI/FS Participation Agreement is now complete and the Company has 
no further obligations under either agreement. 

In late September 2006, the EPA sent a Special Notice Letter to the Company, 
notifying it, and the other responsible parties a t  the site (Florida Power Corporation, 
Florida Power & Light Company, Atlanta Gas Light Company, and the City of Sanford, 
Florida, collectively with FPUC, "the Sanford Group"), of EPAs selection of a final 
remedy for OU1 (soils), OU2 (groundwater), and OU3 (sediments) for the site. 
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The total estimated remediation costs for the Sanford gasification plant site are now 
projected to  be $12.9 million. The Sanford Group was further advised that the EPA was 
willing to negotiate a consent decree with the Sanford Group to provide for the 
implementation of the final remedy approved by the EPA for the site. 

In January 2007, the Company and other members of the Sanford Group signed a 
Third Participation Agreement, which provides for funding the final remedy approved 
by the EPA for the site. The Company's share of remediation costs under the Third 
Participation Agreement is set a t  a maximum of $650,000, providing the total cost of 
the final remedy does not exceed $13 million. At present, it  is not anticipated that the 
total cost will exceed $13 million. If it does, the Sanford Group members have agreed 
to negotiate in good faith at such time that it appears that the total cost will exceed $13 
million for the allocation of the additional cost. The Company has advised the other 
members of the Sanford Group that the Company is unwilling at this time to agree to 
pay any sum in excess of the $650,000 committed by the Company in the Third 
Participation Agreement. 

On June 26, 2007, the Sanford Group transmitted to the EPA a consent decree signed 
by all Group Members, providing for the implementation by the Sanford Group of the 
remedy selected by the EPA for the site. The consent decree is currently being 
circulated within the EPA and the United States Department of Justice for execution 
by those parties. Thereafter, the consent decree will be lodged with the federal court in 
Orlando, Florida. Following a public comment period, it is anticipated that the federal 
court will enter the consent decree. The Sanford Group will then be obligated to  
implement the remedy approved by the EPA for the site. 

Remaining legal fees and costs are currently projected to be approximately 
$77,000. The Company's obligation under the Third Participation Agreement is 
$650,000. Thus, the Company's total probable legal and cleanup costs for the 
Sanford site are currently projected to be approximately $727,000. 

Pensacola Site 
We are the prior owner/operator of the former Pensacola gasification plant, located in 
Pensacola, Florida. Following notification on October 5, 1990 that FDEP had 
determined that we were one of several responsible parties for any environmental 
impacts associated with the former gasification plant site, we entered into cost sharing 
agreements with three other responsible parties providing for the funding of certain 
contamination assessment activities at the site. 

Consulting and remediation costs are projected to be $26,000 and legal fees are 
projected to be $4,000, for total probable costs for the Pensacola site of $30,000. 

Key West Site 
From 1927-1938, we owned and operated a gasification plant in Key West, Florida. The 
plant discontinued operations in the late 1940s; the property on which the plant was 
located is currently used for a propane gas distribution business. In March 1993, a 
Preliminary Contamination Assessment Report (PCAR) was prepared by a consultant 
jointly retained by the current site owner and the Company and was delivered to 
FDEP. The PCAR reported that very limited soil and groundwater impacts were 
present a t  the site. By letter dated December 20, 1993, FDEP notsed  us that the site 
did not warrant further "CERCLA consideration and a Site Evaluation Accomplished 
disposition is recommended." FDEP then referred the matter to its Marathon office for 
consideration of whether additional work would be required by FDEP's district office 
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under Florida law 

Consulting and remediation costs are projected to be $83,000 and legal fees are 
projected to be $10,000, for total probable costs for the Key West site of $93,000. 

11. Commitments 

A. General 
To ensure a reliable supply of electric and natural gas a t  competitive prices, the 
Company has entered into long-term purchase and transportation contracts with 
various suppliers and producers, which expire a t  various dates through 2023. At 
December 31,2007, the Company has firm purchase and transportation 
commitments adequate to supply its expected future sales requirements. The 
Company is committed to pay demand or similar 6xed charges of approximately 
$41.9 million during 2008 related to gas purchase agreements. Substantially all 
costs incurred under the electric and gas purchase agreements are currently 
recoverable &om customers through fuel adjustment clause mechanisms. 

12. Employee Benefit Plans 

The actuarial valuation of the retirement plan obligations has been completed and the 
recognition provisions of Statement 158 resulting in an additional liability for 
retirement plans, pension plan and retirees’ medical plan have been recorded. 

A. Pension Plan 
In September 2006, the FASB issued Statement No. 158, “Employers’ Accounting 
for Defined Benefit Pension and Other Postretirement Plans”. Statement 158 
requires the Company to show the funded status of its pension and retiree health 
care plans as a prepaid asset or accrued liability, and to show the net deferred and 
unrecognized gains and losses related to the retirement plans, net of tax, as part of 
accumulated other comprehensive income in shareholders’ equity. Previously, the 
net deferred and unrecognized gains and losses were netted in the prepaid asset or 
accrued liability recorded for the retirement plans. 

http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/37643/000003764308000002/fl Ok2007. htm 8/7/2008 



Converted by EDGARwiz Page 56 of 75 

Our Company adopted the recognition provisions of Statement 158, as required, a t  
December 31,2006 and used December 31 as the measurement date to  measure the 
assets and obligations of its retirement plans. This resulted in an additional 
liability for retirement plans. The tax on the non-regulated portion of the liability 
has been recorded as a deferred income tax assetfiability. As an offset, the 
regulatory portion of this liability has been deferred as a regulatory 
assetfiability to be recovered in future rate proceedings and the remaining 
incomefloss has been included in other accumulated comprehensive incomefloss. 

The fair value of our retirement plan assets and obligations are subject to change 
based on market fluctuations. 

The Company sponsors a qualified defined benefit pension plan for non-union 
employees that were hired before January 1, 2005 and for unionized employees that 
work under one of the six Company union contracts and were hired before their 
respective contract dates in 2005. 

The following tables provide a reconciliation of the changes in the plan's benefit 
obligations and fair value of assets over the 3-year period ending December 31, 2007 
and a statement of the funded status as of December 31, of all three years: 

Benefit Obligations and Funded Status 
Years Ended December 31, 

2007 2006 2005 

(1) Change in Projected Benefit Obligation 
(a) $38,650,888 $36,349,925 $34,926,383 Projected Benefit Obligation a t  the Beginning 

of the Year 
(b) Service Cost 
(c) Interest Cost 
(d) Actuarial (Gain) or Loss 
(e) Benefits Paid 
(0 Chance in Plan Provisions 

1,053,824 1,225,495 1,195,723 
2,293,540 2,160,719 2,000,099 
(909,856) 541,865 (842,777) 

(1,568,572) (1,529,258) (1,514,341) 
., I 

(g) Curtailment (97,858) 584,838 

$38,650,888 $36,349,925 @) Projected Benefit Obligation a t  the End of the $39,519,824 

$33,693,860 $31,966,513 (i) Accumulated Benefit Obligation (ABO) a t  the $34,139,719 
Year 

End of the Year 
(2) Change in Plan Assets 

Fair Value of Plan Assets a t  the Beginning of 
the Year 

$35,635,214 $32,936,666 $32,385,214 (a) 

(b) Actual Return on Plan Assets 1,923,674 3,977,806 2,065,793 
(c) Benefits Paid (1,568,572) (1,529,258) (1,514,341) 
(d) Employer Contributions 250,000 250,000 
(e) Fair Value of Assets a t  the End of the Year $36,240,316 $35,635,214 $32,936,666 

(3) Funded Status: (2)(e) - (1)h) $(3,279,508) $(3,015,674) $(3,413,259) 

Amounts Recognized in the Statement of Financial Position 

(a) Prepaid (Accrued) Benefit Cost $(3,466,255) $(2,070,740) $(721,333) 
(h) Net Asset fiability) $(3,466,255) $(2,070,740) $(721,333) 

(e) 

(4) Before Applying FAS 158 

Charge to Accumulated Other Comprehensive 
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Income: 
(5) Adjustments Caused by Applying FAS 158 

(a) Increase in Net Asset (Liability): (3) - (4)(b) $186,747 

(29,768) (b) Increase in Charge to Accumulated Other 
Comprehensive Income: 

(156,979) (c) 

(d) Subtotal of Adjustments: (a)+(b)+(c) $ 

Increase in Charge to Regulatory Asset - 
retirement plans 

Amount Recognized in Statement of Financial Position 

(a) Net Asset (Liability): (4)(b) + (5)(a) $(3,279,508) 
(b) Charge to Accumulated Other Comprehensive 

Income: (4)(c) + (5)(b) $(29,768) 
(c) Regulatory Asset-Retirement Plans (5) (c) $(156,979) 

(6) After applying FAS 158 

$(944,934) NIA 

207,885 NIA 

737,049 NIA 

$ NIA 

$(3,015,674) $(721,333) 

$207,885 
$737,049 

Net Asset (Liability) Recognized in the Statement of Financial 
Position 

(a) Noncurrent Assets 
(b) (Current Liabilities) 
(c) (Noncurrent Liabhties) 

(7) After applying FAS 158 
NIA 
NIA 

$(3,279,508) $(3,015,674) NIA 
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(d) Total Net Asset (Liability): (a) + (b) + (c) $(3,279,508) $(3,015,674) NIA 

Amount Recognized in Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income 
And Regulatory Asset -Retirement Plans After applying FAS 158 (8) 
(a) Transition Obligation (Asset) 
(b) Prior Service Cost (Credit) 
(c) Net (Gain) 
(d) Total 

NIA 
$3,255,374 $3,992,489 NIA 
(3,442,121) (3,047,555) NIA 
$(186,747) $944,934 NIA 

(9) Weighted Average Assumption at End of Year 
(a) Discount Rate 6.65% 6.00% 5.90% 
(b) Rate of Compensation Increase 3.90% 3.25% 3.15% 
(c) Mortality RP-2000 GAM 83 GAM 83 

The following table provides the components of net periodic benefit cost for the plans for fiscal 
years 2007,2006 and 2005: 

Net Periodic Pension Costs 
Years Ended December 31, 

2nn7 znnfi mn.5 
(1) Service Cost $1,053,824 $1,225,495 $1,195,723 
(2) Interest Cost 2,293,540 2,160,719 2,000,099 
(3) Expected Return on Plan Assets (2,438,964) (2,426,064) (2,485,985) 
(4) Amortization of Transition Obhgatiod(Asset) 
(5) Amortization of Prior Service Cost 737,115 737,115 737,115 
(6) Amortization of Net (Gain) 
(7) Total FAS 87 Net Periodic Pension Cost 
(8) FAS 88 Charges I (Credits) 

$1,645,515 $1,697,265 $1,446,952 

( 4  Curtailment (97,858) 
Total Net Periodic Pension Cost and $1,645,515 $1,599,407 $1,446,952 (9) Comprehensive Income 

(10) Weighted Average Assumptions 
(a) Discount Rate a t  Beginning of the Period 6.00% 5.90% 5.75% 
(b) Expected Return on Plan Assets 8.50% 8.50% 8.50% 
( 4  Rate of Compensation Increase 3.25% 3.15% 3.00% 

Plan Assets 
Target Percentage of Plan 

Allocation Assets at December 31 
2008 2007 2006 2005 

(1) Plan Assets 
(a) Equity Securities 40%. 75% 64% 68% 67% 
03) Debt Securities 25% - 50% 36% 30% 32% 
(C) Real Estate 0% - 0% 0% 0% 0% 

0% - 15% 0% 2% 1% 
100% 100% 100% 

Expected Return on Plan Assets 
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The expected rate of return on plan assets is 8.5%. The Company expects 8.5% to 
fall within the 50 to 60 percentile range of returns on investment portfolios with 
asset &versification similar to that of the Pension Plan's target asset allocation. 

Investment Policy and Strategy 
The Company has established and maintains an investment policy designed to 
achieve a long-term rate of return, including investment income and appreciation, 
sufficient to meet the actuarial requirements of the Pension Plan. The Company 
seeks to accomplish its return objectives by investing in a diversified portfolio of 
equity, futed income and cash securities seeking a balance of growth and stability as 
well as an adequate level of liquidity for pension distributions as they fall due. Plan 
assets are constrained such that no more than 10% of the portfolio will be invested 
in any one issue. 

Cash Flows 

(1) Expected Contributions for Fiscal Year Ending December 31, 2008 
(a) Expected Employer Contributions $250,000 
(b) Expected Employee Contnbutions 
Estimated Future Benefit Payments Reflecting Expected Future Service 
for the years ending December 31, 
(a) 2008 $1,854,039 
(b) 2009 $2,012,880 
(c)  2010 $2,141,170 
(d) 2011 $2,237,970 
(e) 2012 $2,370,069 
(0 2013-2017 $14,320,239 
Amount of Plan Assets Expected to be Returned to the Employer in the 

(2) 

(3) Fiscal Year Ending 12/31/08 

Other Accounting Items 
Years Ended December 31. 

2007 2006 2005 

Market-Related Value ofAssets as of the 
Beginning of fiscal year 
Amount of Future Annual Benefits of Plan 
Participants Covered by Insurance Contracts 
Issued by the Employer or Related Parties 
Alternative Amortization Methods Used to 
Amortize 
(a) Prior Service Cost 
@) 
Average Future Service 
Employer Commitments to Make Future Plan 
Amendments (that Serve as the Basis for the 
Employer's Accounting for the Plan) 
Description of Special or Contractual 
Termination Benefits Recognized During the 
Period 
Cost of Benefits Described in (6) 

Unrecognized Net (Gain) or Loss 

Explanation of Any Significant Change in Benefit 
Obligation or Plan Assets not Otherwise 

$31,290,939 

$ 0  

Straight Line 
Straight Line 

10.56 

None 

NIA 
N/A 

$29,290,131 

$ 0  

Straight Line 
Straight Line 

10.80 

None 

NIA 
NIA 

$30,016,761 

$ 0  

Straight Line 
Straight Line 

10.95 

None 

N/A 
NIA 
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Apparent in the Above Disclosures 

(9) Measurement Date Used 

NIA NIA NIA 
December 31, December 31, December 31, 

2007 2006 2005 

B. Medical Plan 
The Company sponsors a postretirement medical program. The medical plan is 
contributory with participants' contributions adjusted annually. The following 
tables provide required financial disclosures over the three-year period ended 
December 31, 2007: 

Benefit Obligations and Funded Status 
Fiscal Year Ending 

12/31/2007 12/31/2006 12/31/2006 
Change in Accumulated Postretirement Benefit 

(1) Obligation (ABO) 
I 

$1,865,353 $2,343,583 $1,925,254 Accumulated Postretirement Benefit Obligation 
a t  the Beginning of the Year (a) 

(b) Servicecost 54,603 59,982 100,054 
(c) Interest Cost 95,348 105,483 127,312 
(d) Actuarial (Gain) or Loss (329,969) (568,755) 282,812 
(e) Benefits Paid (96,975) (117,459) (135,166) 
(0 Change in Plan Provisions 
(9) Plan Participant's Contributions 33,193 42,519 43,317 

$1,621,553 $1,865,353 $2,343,583 
(h) 

Accumulated Postretirement Benefit Obligation 
a t  the End of the Year 

(2) Change in Plan Assets 

$ $ $ 
Fair Value of Plan Assets a t  the Beginning of 

(a) theyear . .  
(b) Benefits Paid 
(c) Employer Contributions 

(96,975) (117,459) (135,166) 
63,782 74,940 91,849 

(d) Plan Participant's Contributions 33,193 42,519 43,317 
(e) Fair Value of Assets a t  the End of the Year $ $ 

(3) Net Amount Recognized 
(a) Funded Status: (2)(e) - (l)(h) $( 1,62 1,553) $0,865,353) $(2,343,583) 
Amounts Recognized in the Statement of Financial 
Position Before Applying FAS 158 
(a) Prepaid (Accrued) Benefit Cost $(2,138,886) $(2,057,833) $(1,942,393) 
(b) 
(c) Intangible Asset 
(d) Net Asset (Liability): (a) + (b) + (c) $(2,138,886) $(2,057,833) $(1,942,393) 

(e) Income: 

Adjustments Caused by Applying FAS 158 
(a) Increase in Net Asset (Liability): (3) - (4)(d) $517,333 $192,480 NIA 

(4) 

(Adhtional Liability due to an Unfunded ABO) 

Charged to Accumulated Other Comprehensive 

(5) 

Increase in charge to Accumulated Other 
6) Comprehensive Income: (110,565) (42,346) NIA 
. .  

(406,768) (150,134) NIA 
(c) retirement plans 
(d) Subtotal of Adjustments: (a) + (b) + (c) $ $ NIA 

Increase in charge to Regulatory Asset- 

Amounts Recognized in the Statement of Financial 
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(6) Position After applying FAS 158 
(a) Net Asset (Liability): (4)(d) +(5)(a) $(1,621,553) $(1,865,353) $(1,942,393) 

(110,565) (42,346) 

(406,768) (150,134) 

Charge to Accumulated Other Comprehensive 

Charge to Regulatory Asset-Retirement Plans 
@) Income: (4)(e) + (5)@) 

(c) ( 5 k )  
Net Asset (Liability) Recognized in the Statement of 
Financial Position After Applying FAS 158 
(a) Noncurrent Assets $ $ NIA 
@) (Current Liabilities) (88,176) (150,589) NIA 
(c) (Noncurrent Liabilities) (1,533,377) (1,714,764) NIA 
(d) Total Net Asset (Liability): (a) + @) + (c) $(1,621,553) $(1,865,353) NIA 
Amounts Recognized in Accumulated Other 
Comprehensive Income and Regulatory Asset After 

(a) Transition Obligation (Asset) $214,470 $257,366 NIA 
(b) Prior Service Cost (Credit) NIA 
(c) Net (Gain) or Loss (731,803) (449,846) NIA 
(d) Total $(517,333) $(192,480) NIA 
Weighted Average Assumptions a t  the End of the 

(a) Discount Rate 6.45% 6.00% 5.90% 
@) Rate of Compensation Increase NIA NIA NIA 
(c) Mortality RP-2000 GAM 83 GAM 83 

(10) Assumed Health Care Cost Trend Rates 

(a) Year 

(7) 

(8) Applying FAS 158 

(9) Year 

10.50% 11.50% 9.00% Health Care Cost Trend Rate Assumed for Next 

@) Ultimate Rate 
(c) Year that the Ultimate Rate is Reached 

5.00% 5.00% 5.00% 
2014 2014 2010 

Net Periodic Postretirement Benefit Cost 
Years ended December 31, 

2001 2006 2005 
(1) Service Cost $54,603 $59,982 $100,054 
(2) Interest Cost 95,348 105,483 127,312 
(3) Amortization of Transition Obligation/(Asset) 42,896 42,896 42,896 
(4) 
(5) Amortization of Net (Gain) or Loss (48,012) (17,981) 
(6) Total Net Periodic Benefit Cost $144,835 $190,380 $270,262 
(7) Weighted Average Assumptions 

(a) Discount Rate 6.00% 5.90% 5.75% 
(b) Expected Return on Plan Assets NIA NIA NIA 
(c) Rate of Compensation Increase NIA NIA NIA 
Assumed Health Care Cost Trend Rates 

Amortization of Prior Service Cost 

(8) 
(a) Health Care Cost Trend Rate Assumed for 11.50% 12.50% 10.00% 

Current Year 

Year that the Ultimate Rate is Reached 
(b) UltimateRate 
(c) 

5.00% 5.00% 5.00% 
2014 2014 2010 . ,  

Expected Amortizations 
Years ended December 31, 
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2007 2006 2006 
(1) Expected Amortization of Transition Obligation (Asset) $42,896 $42,896 NIA 
(2) Expected Amortization of Prior Service Cost (Credit) NIA 
(3) Expected Amortization of Net Loss (Gain) (51,238) (48,012) NIA 
(9) Impact of One-Percentage-Point Change in 

Assumed Health Care Cost Trend Rates Increase Decrease 
(a) Effect on Service Cost + Interest Cost $19,948 $(17,221) 
(b) Effect on Postretirement Benefit Obligation $185,949 $(162,342) 

Plan Assets  

Target Percentage of Plan 
Allocation Assets at December 31 

2008 2007 2006 2005 

(1) Plan Assets 
(a) Equity Securities NIA NIA NIA N/A 
(b) Debt Securities NIA N/A NIA NIA 
(C) Real Estate NIA NIA NIA N/A 

NIA NIA NIA NIA 
N/A NIA NIA NIA 

(1) Expected Contributions for Fiscal Year Ending 1213112008 
(a) Expected Employer Contributions $88,176 
(b) Expected Employee Contributions $30,968 

Estimated Future Benefit Payments Reflecting Expected Future Service for the Fiscal 
(2) Year($ Ending 

Medicare Part-D 
Total Reimbursement Emdovee EmDlover 

(a) 12/31/2008 $126,474 $7,330 $30,968 $88,176 
(b) 12/31/2009 $130,300 $8,172 $33,442 $88,686 
(c) 12/31/2010 $166,738 $8,678 $39,755 $118,305 
(d) 1213112011 $180,399 $9,266 $41,073 $130,060 
(e) 12/31/2012 $204,537 $9,819 $45,314 $149,404 
(f) 12/31/2013 - 1213112017 $1,136,086 $66,675 $253,092 $816,319 

Amount of Plan Assets Expected to be Returned to the Employer in the Fiscal Year Ending 
(3) 12/31/08 $0 

Other Accounting Items 
Years Ended December 31, 

2007 2006 2005 
(1) Market-Related Value of Assets NIA NIA N/A 

(2) 

(3) 

Amount of Future Annual Benefits of Plan 
Participants Covered by Insurance Contracts Issued 
by the Employer or Related Parties 
Alternative Amortization Methods Used to Amortize 
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(a) Prior Service Cost 
(b) 
Average Future Service 
Employer Commitments to Make Future Plan 
Amendments (that Serve as the Basis for the 
Employer's Accounting for the Plan) 
Description of Special or Contractual Termination 
Benefits Recognized During the Period 
Cost of Benefits Described in (6) 
Explanation of Any Significant Change in Benefit 
Obligation or Plan Assets not Otherwise Apparent 
in the Above Disclosures 

Measurement Date Used 

Unrecognized Net (Gain) or Loss 

Discount Rate Assumntion 

Straight h e  
Straight Line 

10.90 

None 

NIA 
NIA 

N/A 
December 31, 

2007 

Straight Line 
Straight Line 

11.10 

None 

NIA 
NIA 

NIA 
December 31, 

2006 

Straight Line 
Straight Line 

13.35 

None 

NIA 
NIA 

NIA 
December 31, 

2005 

The discount rate assumption used to determine the postretirement benefit 
obligations is based on current yield rates in the double A bond market. 
The current year's discount rate was selected using a method that matches 
projected payouts from the plan with a zero-coupon double A bond yield curve. This 
yield curve was constructed from the underlying bond price and yield data collected 
as of the plan's measurement date and is represented by a series of annualized, 
individual discount rates with durations ranging from six months to thirty years. 
Each discount rate in the curve was derived from an equal weighting of the double 
A or higher bond universe, apportioned into distinct maturity groups. These 
individual discount rates are then converted into a single equivalent discount rate, 
which is then used for FAS discount purposes. To assure that the resulting rates 
can be achieved by a postretirement benefit plan, only bonds that satisfy certain 
criteria and are expected to remain available through the period of maturity of the 
plan benefits are used to develop the discount rate. Prior years' discount rate 
assumptions were set based on investment yields available on double A, long-term 
corporate bonds. 

Actuarial Equivalent 
In determining "Actuarial Equivalence," a prescription drug pricing tool was used. 
This tool allowed us to determine the estimated Per Member Per Month (FMPM) 
prescription drug cost for both the Company plan and the Medicare plan. The two 
PMPMs were adjusted for monthly retiree contributions. We assumed that 60% of 
the monthly combined medical and prescription drug retiree contribution for the 
Company plan applies towards prescription drugs. Because the subsidy is the same 
regardless of the cost sharing structure (unless the plan is not "Actuarial 
Equivalent"), in general a plan that has higher cost sharing would reduce their 
annual cost as a percentage greater than a plan would that has lower cost sharing. 

Voluntary Prescription Drug Coverage 
Legislation enacted in December 2003 provides for the addition of voluntary 
prescription drug coverage under Medicare starting in 2006. The legislation also 
provides for a 28% tax-free subsidy for each qualified covered retiree's drug cost 
between certain thresholds if the employer's coverage is a t  least actuarially 
equivalent to the standard Medicare drug benefit. Based on the final regulations 
issued by the Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services on January 21, 2005, we 
determined our prescription drug coverage of the Postretirement Medical Benefits 
plan to be actuarially equivalent to Medicare Part D. 
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C. Health Plan 
In December 2003, the Company became fully insured for its employee and retiree’s 
medical insurance. Net health care benefits paid by the Company were 
approximately $1.8 million in 2007, $1.7 million in 2006 and $1.6 million in 2005 
excluding administrative and stop-loss insurance. 

D. 401K Plan 
The Company has discontinued eligibility to the defined benefit pension plan for all 
new hires, and replaced it with a new 401K match. 

For new hires not eligible for the defined benefit pension plan, we established an 
employer match to the employee’s contribution to their 401K plans. It provides for a 
company match of 50% for each dollar contributed by the employee, up to 6% of 
their salary, for a Company contribution of up to 3%. Beginning in 2007, for non- 
union employees the plan was enhanced to provide a company match of 100% for 
the first 2% of an employee’s contribution, and a match of 50% for the next 4% of an  
employee’s contribution, for a total company match of up to 4%. This enhanced 
match was successfully negotiated with our six union contracts in 2007. Employees 
are automatically enrolled at 3% contribution, with the option of opting out, and are 
eligible for the company match after six months of continuous service, with vesting 
of 100% after three years of continuous service. 

The Company offers an employee stock purchase plan to substantially all of its 
employees. The plan offers a 15% discount on the Company’s stock a t  market price 
fixed six months prior to the date of purchase. The recorded stock compensation 
expense relating to the Company’s employee stock purchase plan is not material. 

E. Employee Stock Purchase Plan 

13. Segment Information 

The Company is organized into two regulated business segments: natural gas and 
electric, and one non-regulated business segment, propane gas. There are no material 
inter-segment sales or transfers. 
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Identifiable assets are those assets used in the Company’s operations in each business 
segment. Common assets are principally cash and overnight investments, deferred tax 
assets and common plant. 

Business segment information for 2007, 2006 and 2005 is summarized as follows: 

(Dollars in thousands) 
Revenues 

Natural gas 
Electric 
Propane gas 
Consolidated 

Operating income, excluding 
income t a x  

Natural gas 
Electric 
Propane gas 
Consolidated 

Identifiable assets 
Natural gas 
Electric 
Propane gas 
Common 
Consolidated 

Natural gas 
Electric 
Propane gas 
Common 
Consolidated 

Depreciation and amortization 

Construction expenditures 
Natural gas 
Electric 
Propane gas 
Common 
Consolidated 

Income tax expense 
Natural gas 
Electric 
Propane gas 
Common 
Consolidated 

2007 2006 2005 

$ 64,850 $ 71,139 $ 69,094 
55,521 48,527 47,450 
16,171 15,115 13,741 

136,542 $ 134,781 $ 130,285 $ 

$ 4,647 $ 6,118 $ 6,049 
2,653 3,053 3,502 
1,521 1,006 1,086 

$ 8,821 $ 10,177 $ 10,637 

$ 99,295 $ 93,689 $ 96,106 
54,202 52,251 51,317 
19,371 19,239 19,567 
19,476 16,055 15,676 

$ 192,344 $ 181,234 $ 182,666 

$ 4,374 $ 4,095 $ 3,928 
2,714 2,610 2,404 

898 720 621 
300 317 313 

$ 8,286 $ 7,742 $ 7,266 

$ 11,134 $ 7,643 $ 6,357 
4,387 3,184 3,775 

773 1,885 2,133 
446 404 176 

16,740 $ 13,116 $ 12,441 $ 

$ 730 $ 1,336 $ 1,283 
430 546 666 
272 110 245 
265 246 93 

1,697 $ 2,238 $ 2,287 $ 

14. Quarterly Financial Data (Unaudited) 

The quarterly financial data presented below reflects the influence of seasonal weather 
conditions, the timing of rate increases and the migration of winter residents and tourists to 
Central and South Florida during the winter season. 
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First Second Third Fourth 
(Dollars in thousands, except per share amounts): Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter 
2007 
Revenues 
Gross profit 
Operating income 
Earnings before income taxes 
Net Income 
Earnings per common share (basic and dduted) 

2006 
Revenues 
Gross profit 
Operating income 
Earnings before income taxes 
Net Income 
Earnings per common share (hasic and diluted) 

$ 38,612 $ 
$ 13,843 $ 
$ 3,738 $ 
$ 2,827 $ 
$ 1,798 $ 
$ 0.30 $ 

$ 43,410 $ 
$ 14,197 $ 

$ 4,528 $ 
$ 3,507 $ 
$ 2,221 $ 
$ 0.37 $ 

32,468 $ 
11,769 $ 

1,596 $ 
607 $ 
410 $ 

0.07 $ 

29,975 $ 
11,499 $ 
2,065 $ 
1,162 $ 

738 $ 
0.12 $ 

31,641 $ 33,821 
11,062 $ 12,047 
1,414 $ 2,073 

519 $ 1,045 
355 $ 738 
0.06 $ 0.12 

29,535 $ 31,861 
10,987 $ 12,127 
1,263 $ 2,321 

384 $ 1,354 
335 $ 875 

0.05 $ 0.14 

http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/3 7643/000003 764308000002/fl Ok2007.htm 8/7/2008 



Converted by EDGARwiz Page 67 of 75 

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM 

To the Directors and Shareholders of FPU: 

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets and statements of 
capitalization of Florida Public Utihties Company and its wholly-owned subsihary, Flo-Gas 
Corporation as of December 31, 2007 and 2006 and the related consolidated statements of 
income, comprehensive income, common shareholders’ equity and cash flows for each of the 
three years in the period ended December 31,2007. These financial statements are the 
responsibdity of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an  opinion on 
these financial statements based on our audits. 

We conducted our audits in  accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting 
Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit 
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material 
misstatement. The Company is not required to have, nor were we engaged to perform, an 
audit of its internal control over financial reporting. Our auh t s  included consideration of 
internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we 
express no such opinion. An audit also includes examining, on a test basis, evidence 
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements and schedules, assessing 
the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as 
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. We believe that our audits 
provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all 
material respects, the financial position of Florida Public Utilities Company and its wholly- 
owned subsihary, Flo-Gas Corporation a t  December 31,2007 and 2006, and the results of its 
operation and its cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31,2007, 
in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

As discussed in Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements, effective January 1, 2007, the 
Company adopted Financial Accounting Standard Board (FASB) Interpretation No. 48 
“Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes (an interpretation of FASB Statement No. 109)” 
and FASB Staff Position No. FIN 48-1 “Definition of Settlement in FASB Interpretation 
No. 48.” 

BDO Seidman, LLP 
Certified Public Accountants 
West Palm Beach, Florida 
March 25,2008 
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Item 9. 
Financial Disclosure 

None 

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures 

Disclosure Controls and Procedures 
In accordance with Exchange Act Rules 13a-15 and 15d-15, we carried out an evaluation, 
under the supervision and with the participation of management, including our CEO and 
CFO, of the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures as of December 31, 2007. 
Based on evaluation, our CEO and CFO have concluded that, as of December 31, 2007, our 
disclosure controls and procedures were effective in that they provide reasonable assurance 
that information required to be disclosed by us in our reports f led or submitted under the 
Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the “Exchange Act”) is recorded, processed, summarized and 
reported within the time periods specified in the SEC‘s rules and forms. 

Management’s annual report on internal control over financial reporting 

Management of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate 
internal control over financial reporting as defined in Rules 13a-l5(f) and 15d-l5(f) under the 
Exchange Act. The Company’s internal control over financial reporting is designed to provide 
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of 
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles. Because of the inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may 
not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to 
future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes 
in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

Management assessed the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial 
reporting as of December 31, 2007. In making this assessment, management used the criteria 
set forth by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission in 
Internal Control-Integrated Framework. Based on such assessment and those criteria, 
management believes that the Company’s internal control over financial reporting was 
effective as of December 31, 2007. 

Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and 

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 
There have not been any changes in the Company’s internal control over financial reporting 
during the fiscal quarter ended December 31,2007 that have materially affected, or are 
reasonably likely to materially affect, the Company’s internal control over financial reporting. 

This annual report does not include an attestation report of the Company’s registered public 
accounting firm regarding internal control over financial reporting. Management’s report was 
not subject to attestation by the Company’s registered public accounting firm pursuant to 
temporary rules of the SEC that permit the Company to provide only management’s report in 
this annual report. 
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PART I11 

Item 10. 

Information required by this item concerning directors and nominees of the Registrant will be 
included under the caption “Information About Nominees and Continuing Directors” in the 
Registrant’s Proxy Statement for the 2008 Annual Meeting of Shareholders (the “2008 Proxy 
Statement”) and is incorporated by reference herein. Information required by this item 
regardmg the Au&t Committee wdl be included under the caption “Board of Directors and 
Committees-Audit Committee” in the 2008 Proxy Statement and is incorporated by reference 
herein. Information required by this Item regarding the code of ethics will be included under 
the caption “Board of Directors and Committees - Corporate Governance and Communication 
with Shareholders” in the 2008 Proxy Statement and is incorporated by reference herein. 
Information required by this Item regarding compliance with Section 16(a) of the Exchange 
Act will be set forth in the 2008 Proxy Statement under “Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership 
Reporting Compliance” and is incorporated by reference herein. Information required by this 
Item concerning executive officers is set out in Part I of this Form 10-K, above. 

Item 11. Executive Compensation 

Information required by this Item concerning executive compensation is included under the 
captions “Board of Directors and Committees - 2007 Director Compensation”, “Executive 
Compensation”, and “Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation” in the 
2008 Proxy Statement and is incorporated by reference herein. 

Item 12. 

Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance 

Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and 
Related Stockholder Matters 

Information required by this Item concerning the security ownership of certain of the 
Registrant’s beneficial owners and management is included under the caption “Security 
Ownershp of Management and Certain Beneficial Owners” in the 2008 Proxy Statement and 
is incorporated by reference herein. See Item 5 above for equity compensation plan 
information, which is incorporated by reference herein. 

Item 13. 
Independence 

Information required by this Item concerning director independence is included under the 
caption “Board of Directors and Committees - Board of Directors” in the 2008 Proxy 
Statement and is incorporated by reference herein. There were no transactions to report 
under Item 404 of Regulation S-K. 

Item 14. 

Information required by this Item is set forth in the Registrant’s 2008 Proxy Statement under 
the caption “Principal Accountant Fees and Services” and is incorporated by reference herein. 

Certain Relationships and Related Transactions and Director 

Principal Accountant Fees and Services 
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Item 15. 

(a) 

Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules 

The following documents are filed as part of this report: 

(I) Financial Statements 
The following consolidated financial statements of the Company are included 
herein and in the Registrant's 2007 Annual Report to Shareholders: 

Consolidated Statements of Income 
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income 
Consolidated Balance Sheets 
Consolidated Statements of Capitalization 
Consolidated Statements of Common Shareholders' Equity 
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm 

(2) Financial Statement Schedules 
The following valuation and qualifying accounts table is included in Note 1.1. 
herein and in the Registrant's 2007 Annual Report to Shareholders: 

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts 

(3) Exhibits 

3(i) Amended Articles of Incorporation (Incorporated herein by reference as  Exhibit 
3(i) to FPU's quarterly report on Form 10-Q for the period ended June 30,2002. 
SEC File No. 1-10608) 

3(ii) Amended By-Laws (Incorporated herein by reference as Exhibit 3(ii) to FPU's 
quarterly report on Form 10-Q for the period ended June 30,2002. SEC File No. 
1- 10608) 

4(a) Indenture of Mortgage and Deed of Trust of FPU dated as of September 1, 1942 
(Incorporated by reference herein to Exhibit 7-A to Registration No. 2-6087) 

4(b) Fourteenth Supplemental Indenture dated September 1, 2001. (Incorporated by 
reference to exhibit 4(b) on FPU's annual report on Form 10-K for the year 
ended December 31, 2001) 

4(c) Fifteenth Supplemental Indenture dated November 1, 2001. (Incorporated by 
reference to exhibit 4(c) on FPU's annual report on Form 10-K for the year 
ended December 31,2001) 

10(a)First Amendment to Amended and Restated Loan Agreement and Promissory 
Note between FPU and Bank of America dated August 25,2006. (Incorporated 
by reference to exhibit lO(2) on FPU's Form 10-Q for third quarter ending 
September 30, 2006, File No. 001-10608) 

10(b) Contract for the transportation of natural gas between FPU and the City of 
Lake Worth dated March 25, 1992 (Incorporated by reference to exhibit lO(0 on 
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FPU's Form S-2 for July 1992, File No. 0-1055) 

1O(c) Contract for the purchase of electric power between FPU and Jacksonville 
Electric Authority dated January 29, 1996. (Incorporated by reference to exhibit 
10(h) on FPU's annual report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 
2000) 

lO(d)Contract for the purchase of electric power between FPU and Gulf Power 
Company effective November 21, 1996. (Incorporated by reference to exhibit 10 
(i) on FPU's annual report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31,2000) 

10(e) Contract for the purchase of as-available capacity and energy between FPU and 
Container Corporation of America dated September 19, 1985 (Incorporated by 
reference to exhibit 1O(i) on FPU's Form S-2 for July 1992, File No. 0-1055) 

1O(f) Contract for the sale of electric service between FPU and Container Corporation 
of America dated August 26, 1982 (Incorporated by reference to exhibit 106) on 
FPU's Form S-2 for July 1992, File No. 0-1055) 

1O(g) Contract for the sale of electric service between FPU and ITT Rayonier Inc. 
Dated April 1, 1982 (Incorporated by reference to exhibit lo&) on FPU's Form 
S-2 for July 1992, File No. 0-1055) 

lO(h)Form of Stock Purchase and Sale Agreement between FPU and three persons 
who, upon termination of two trusts, will become the record and beneficial 
owners of an aggregate of 313,554 common shares of the Registrant 
(Incorporated by reference to exhibit 1O(p) on FPU's Form S-2 for July 1992, File 
No. 0-1055) 

lO( i )  Contract for the sale of certain assets comprising FPU's water utility business to 
the City of Fernandina Beach dated December 3,2002. (Incorporated by 
reference to exhibit 10(0) on FPU's annual report on Form 10-K for the year 
ended December 31, 2002) 

106) Transportation agreement between FPU and the City of Lake Worth 
(Incorporated by reference to exhibit 99.2 on FPUs Form 8-K filed April 4, 2003, 
File No. 001-10608) 

10(k)A Mutual Release agreement, as of March 31, 2003, by and between FPU, Lake 
Worth Generation, LLC, The City of Lake Worth, and The AES Corporation. 
(Incorporated by reference to exhibit 99.3 on FPU's Form 8-K filed April 4, 2003, 
File No. 001-10608) 

lo@) Amended and Restated loan agreement between FPU and Bank of America, 
N.A. dated October 29, 2004. (Incorporated by reference as exhibit lO(n) on 
FPU's annual report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2004) 
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10(m) Security agreement between FPU and Bank of America, N.A. dated October 29, 
2004. (Incorporated by reference as exhibit 10(0) on FPU's annual report on 
Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2004) 

lO(n)# Non-Employee Director Compensation Plan, approved by Board of Directors on 
March 18, 2005. (Incorporated by reference as exhibit l o b )  on FPUs annual 
report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2004) 

lO(o) Amendment to Electric Service Contract by and between JEA and FPU dated 
September 25, 2006, effective January 1, 2007. (Incorporated by reference as 
Exhibit 10.1 to our Form 10-Q, for the quarter ending September 30, 2006, File 
No. 001-10608) 

lO(s)* Contract for the Agreement for Generation Services by and between FPU and 
Gulf Power Company dated December 28,2006, effective January 1, 2008 
(Incorporated by reference as Exhibit 1O(s) on FPUs annual report on Form 10- 
K for the year ended December 31, 2006) 

10(t) Agreement for the purchase of land in south Florida, dated July 5, 2007. 
(Incorporated by reference as Exhibit 10.1 to our Form 10-Q, for the quarter 
ended June 30,2007) 

lO(u)Agreement for the Firm Transportation Service with Florida Gas Transmission, 
for services beginning 11/01/07, expiring 2/29/2016, Contract No. 107033 
(Incorporated by reference as Exhibit 10.1 to our Form 10-Q, for the quarter 
ended on September 30, 2007) 

lO(v) Agreement for Firm Transportation Service with Florida Gas Transmission, for 
services beginning 11/01/07, expiring 3/31/2022, Contract No. 107034 
(Incorporated by reference as Exhibit 10.2 to our Form 10-Q, for the quarter 
ended on September 30, 2007) 

lO(w)Agreement for Firm Transportation Service with Florida Gas Transmission, for 
services beginning 11/01/07, expiring 2/29/2016, Contract No. 107035 
(Incorporated by reference as Exhibit 10.3 to our Form 10-Q, for the quarter 
ended on September 30, 2007) 

1O(x) Agreement with Chevron Natural Gas dated December 13, 2007. 

lO&)Amendment to physical sale Agreement with Inergy Propane, LLC dated 
October 31,2007 

1O(z) Agreement with Crosstex Gulf Coast Marketing LTD dated December 14, 2007. 

10(aa)# Employment Agreement between the Company and John T. English dated 
March 31, 2006, amended October 22, 2007 

lO(ab)#Employment Agreement between the Company and Charles L. Stein dated 
March 31, 2006, amended October 22,2007 

10(ac)# Employment Agreement between the Company and George M. Bachman 
dated March 31,2006, amended October 22, 2007 
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14 Ethics Policy (Incorporated by reference to exhibit 99.3 on FPU's Form 10-K, 
filed March 30,2004 File No. 001-10608) 

Change in certifying accountants (Incorporated herein by reference as exhibit 16 
to FPU's current report on Form 8-K, 6led April 18, 2003) 

Subsidiary of the registrant (Incorporated by reference to exhibit 21 on FPU's 
annual report on Form 10-K, for the year ended December 31, 2000) 

Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm's Consent BDO Seidman LLP 

16 

21 

23 

31.1 Certification of Principal Executive Officer (302) 

31.2 Certfication of Principal Financial Officer (302) 

32 Certification of Principal Executive Officer and Principal Financial Officer (906) 

#Denotes management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement 
*Confidential treatment is being requested for a portion of this agreement 
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SIGNATURES 

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, 
the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, 
thereunto duly authorized. 

FLORIDA PUBLIC UTILITIES COMPANY 

/s/ George M. Bachman 
George M. Bachman, Chief Financial Officer 
(Duly Authorized Officer) 

Date: March 25, 2008 

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been 
signed below by the following persons, on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on 
the dates indxated. 

/s/ John T. Enelish 
John T. English 
Chairman of the Board, President, Chief Executive Officer, and 
Director (Principal Executive Officer) 

Date: March 25, 2008 

/s/ GeorPe M. Bachman 
George M Bachman, Chief Financial Officer 
(Principal Financial Officer and Principal Accounting Officer) 

/s/ Ellen T e r n  Benoit 
Ellen Terry Benoit, Director 

/s/ Richard C. Hitchins 
Richard C. Hitchins, Director 

/s/ Dennis S. Hudson I11 
Dennis S. Hudson 111, Director 

/s/ Paul L. Maddock. Jr. 
Paul L. Maddock, Jr., Director 

/s/ Troy W. Maschmever. Jr. 
Troy W. Maschmeyer, Jr., Director 

Date: March 25, 2008 

Date: March 25, 2008 

Date: March 25, 2008 

Date: March 25, 2008 

Date: March 25, 2008 

Date: March 25, 2008 
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FLORIDA PUBLIC UTILITIES COMPANY 
EXHIBIT INDEX 

Regulation S-K 
Item Number 

Agreement for the purchase of land in south Florida, dated July 5, 2007. 

Agreement for the Firm Transportation Service with Florida Gas 
Transmission, for services beginning 11/01/07, expiring 2/29/2016, Contract 
No. 107033 

Agreement for Firm Transportation Service with Florida Gas 
Transmission, for services beginning 11/01/07, expiring 3/3 1/2022, Contract 
No. 107034 

Agreement for Firm Transportation Service with Florida Gas 
Transmission, for services beginning 11/01/07, expiring 2/29/2016, Contract 
No. 107035 

Agreement with Chevron Natural Gas dated December 13,2007. 

Amendment to physical sale Agreement with Inergy Propane, LLC dated 
October 31,2007 

Agreement with Crosstex Gulf Coast Marketing LTD dated December 14, 
2007. 

Employment Agreement between the Company and John T. English dated 
March 31,2006, amended October 22, 2007 

Employment Agreement between the Company and Charles L. Stein dated 
March 31, 2006, amended October 22, 2007 

Employment Agreement between the Company and George M. Bachman 
dated March 31,2006, amended October 22,2007 

Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm’s Consent BDO Seidman 
LLP 

Certification of Principal Executive Officer (302) 

Certification of Principal Financial Officer (302) 

Certification of Principal Executive Officer and Principal Financial Officer 
(906) 
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Florida Public Utilities Company 
2009 Sources and Uses of Funds Forecast 

(In Thousands) 

Significant cash flow items 

Total Operating Income 

Deductions 

(Note 1) 

Operating 8 Maintenance 
Taxes 
Interest 
Environmental 
Dividends Paid 
Other 

Total Deductions 

Balance 
Construction expenditures: 
Cash Refundl(Contributions) 
Contingency Requirements 

Balance 
Proceeds (repayment) of Short Term Borrowing 
Proceeds (repayment) of Long Term Borrowing 
Proceeds from Equity Issuance less costs 
Proceeds from Sale of Disc Ops 8 LWG 
Requested Remaining Financing 

2009 

57,065 

31,504 
6,599 
5,466 

395 
3.016 
(102) 

46,876 

10,187 
13.938 

401 
- 

(4,152) 
(16,931) 
13,469 
7,520 

300 

Balance 206 
Beginning Cash 
Ending Cash 

124 
330 

Florida Public Utilities Company 
2009 Construction Budget for Gross Property Additions 

(In Thousands) 

Notes 

1) Projected amounts do not include any effect of potential changes in retail base or other 
regulated activities which could cause the projections to change. 

Excludes AFUDC. All of the estimated construction expenditures are subject to 
continuing review and adjustment. Actual construction expenditures may vary from 
these estimates due to factors such as; changes in customers, energy sales, 
business and economic conditions, construction and design requirements, fuel supply 
and costs, availability of labor, supplies and materials, regulatory treatment, 
environmental and conservation requirements, and existing and proposed legislation. 
FPUC is keeping its construction program as flexible as possible with the intention 
of accommodating those factors that may develop or change. 

2) 
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Florida Public Utilities Company 
Statement of Capital Stock and Debt 

June 30,2008 

Dividend Rate 

4.75% 

Preferred Stock without Sinking Fund Requirements: 

Shares Amount 
Authorized and Authorized and Annual Dividend 

Series l s u e  Date Outstanding Outstanding Requirement 

1959 6,000 $ 600,000.00 $ 28,500.00 

Other: 

Affiliated Corporations 

$13,376,685 00 
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Florida Public Utilities Company 
Statement of Capital Stock and Debt 

June 30,2008 

Series 

First Mortgage Bonds: 

Principal Proceeds / 
Issuedate Maturity Outstanding (Expenses) 

9 57% 
1003% 
9 08% 

5/1/1988 5/1/2018 S 9,091,000 
5/1/1986 5/1/2018 S 5.000.000 
6/1/1992 6/1/2022 S 8,000.000 

6 85% 9/27/2001 

MOS 

10/1/2031 $14,990,000 

Remaining 

I 00739 962 

7.39% 

Unsecured Short Term Debt: 

Current Proceeds I 
(Expenses) 

12,529,wO 
3.36% 11,122,000 

Other: 
Amount Pledged by Applicant: I 0 
Amount held in any Fund 0 

Pretax interest coverage: 

Net inwme before interest and income taxes 
Interest expense 

Net Inc Interest Exp lnwme Tax 

2 27 2,031 2.418 t.045 = 
2.418 
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